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Corporate Information
YGRS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Former Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as an executive director and
the chief financial officer on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as the chief financial officer on 15 December 2020)

Mr. Fan Fugiang
(appointed as an executive director on 15 December 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
Mr. Ko Ping Keung

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman)
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Fan Fugiang
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheng Zhihua

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 828, 8/F
Topsail Plaza

11 On Sum Street
Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF
CHINA (THE “PRC”)

No. 3 Taihong Road
Hi-tech Industry Park
Kunshan

Jiangsu Province
PRC

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.qtechglobal.com

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW
Sidley Austin

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Council Ordinance
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Corporate Information
YGRS

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Merchants Bank Company Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Stock Code: 1478

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jiangiang

(resigned on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Fan Fugiang

(appointed on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Cheng Zhihua
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Q Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a global leading mid-to-high
end camera and fingerprint recognition module manufacturer for
intelligent mobile terminals. The Group is primarily engaged in
the design, research and development, manufacture and sales of
camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules, and centred
on mid-to-high end camera and fingerprint recognition module
market for intelligent mobile terminals such as global smart phone
and tablet PC brands, Internet of Things (IoT), smart vehicles, etc.
The Group is one of the first few manufacturers in the PRC to
use chip on board (“COB”) and chip on flex (“COF”) technologies
and molding on board (“MOB”) and molding on chip (“MOC”)
technologies in the manufacture of camera modules, as well as to
produce ultra-thin camera modules with resolutions of 108 mega
pixels and above, dual/multiple camera modules, 3D modules,
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules and fingerprint
recognition modules with various technologies on a mass
production scale. Currently, the Group’s product mix covers ultra-
thin camera modules ranging from 2 mega pixels to 108 mega
pixels, dual/multiple camera modules, optical image stabilization
(OIS) camera modules, 3D camera modules, automotive camera
modules, smart home camera modules, capacitive fingerprint
recognition modules and optical under-screen fingerprint
recognition modules. The Group is committed to becoming an
advanced intelligent vision company and continuously enhancing
ability building of three aspects of intelligent vision products, being
optical designs, computational imaging and system integration.
We believe, through resolute and consistent promotion of the
three strategies of large-scale intelligent manufacturing, research
and development of new technology and vertical integration, we
will stand out in the fast-growing camera module and fingerprint
recognition module markets and realise the mission of “to
illuminate machines”.
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Five-Year Financial Summary
HFRHE

(In Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousands, except per share amounts or (A RIEF 7> R EE S E 15855450
otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December 8E+-“B=+—HIL=FE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
bt T hF 2 N\F —E—+tfF ET—RHE

Consolidated

=Nis
Operating results R
Revenue WA 17,400,369 13,169,678 8,135,161 7,938,958 4,991,158
Gross profit EF 1,770,585 1,179,872 353,108 882,733 422,437
Finance costs RO AR A (53,524) (52,811) (44,146) (16,912) (5,548)
Profit before taxation BRI AR F 970,068 606,901 1,330 509,515 214,587
Income tax PR (129,960) (64,529) 13,069 (73,238) (23,832)
Profit for the year FERiEEF 840,108 542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755
Attributable to: ]
Shareholders of the EiN/NSTD
Company 840,108 542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755
Non-controlling interests FEIERS R - _ _ _
840,108 542,372 14,399 436,277 190,755
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(In Renminbi (“RMB”) thousands, except per share amounts or

otherwise indicated)

For the year ended 31 December

Five-Year Financial Summary

B FIEHE

ANRET T SR8 5 B15HEI)

BE+_A=1+—HL=FE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZEEF —NF —N\FE —tF “E-REF
Consolidated
kil

Basic earnings per share EXxEREF

(RMB cents) NG ) 71.9 47.6 1.3 39.8 18.4
Diluted earnings per share BEgRRA

(RMB cents) NG o) 71.4 47.2 1.3 38.9 18.1
Assets and liabilities BERARE
Non-current assets FRBEE 3,520,863 3,271,908 2,210,953 1,953,154 826,185
Current assets MEEE 7,882,131 7,363,293 4,228,658 4,147,096 3,694,144
Total assets HESE 11,402,994 10,635,201 6,439,611 6,100,250 4,520,329
Bank borrowings RITER 1,263,232 1,328,785 1,178,241 1,078,119 335,432
Other liabilities HEthaE 6,353,936 6,439,461 3,157,935 2,876,474 2,616,932
Total liabilities aREHE 7,617,168 7,768,246 4,336,176 3,954,593 2,952,364
Net assets BERE 3,785,826 2,866,955 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965
Total equity e 3,785,826 2,866,955 2,103,435 2,145,657 1,567,965
Key Financial Ratio TEMBLILE
Gross profit margin (%) EHZE(%) 10.2 9.0 4.3% 11.1% 8.5%
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 4.8 4.1% 0.2% 5.5% 3.8%
Gearing ratio (%) BAREELE%)

(Note 1) _ (1) 34.6 48.2% 56.0% 50.2% 21.4%
Rate of return on net asset (%) FEERDIERE%) 22.2 18.9% 0.7% 20.3% 12.2%
Current ratio (times) TRENLLE (f8) (BYa22)

(Note 2) R 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3
Quick ratio (times) REJLLE (B) (523)

(Note 3) 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0
Net asset value per share attributableZs A 5] S B H5 5 A F&

to equity shareholders of the HERFEE

Company 3.23 2.48 1.86 1.92 1.45
Price per share as at 31 December +—A=+—H&K

(HKD) 1%1% (Bi&T) 13.14 12.90 4.45 11.00 4.00
Price earnings ratio (Note 4) = (Bfzt4) 15.38 24.28 299.93 23.10 20.29
Market capitalization as at -I- ﬁ +—HmE

31 December (HKD thousand) (BT ) 15,403,378 14,931,440 5,036,164 12,271,567 4,327,084
Dividend per share SRKE ARED)

(RMB cents) 4.2 9.0 - 7.8 3.5
Dividend vyield [EIEREmE 0.46% 1.30% - 0.90% 1.21%
EBITDA (Note 5) BRI E R 5H AT

FE (Hrats) 1,408,093 951,027 281,217 662,232 284,155

Note 1:  Gearing ratio represents the balance of bank borrowings and  gfzz7 - BAGE IERis®EE HARMET
related parties’ loans as of the end of the year/period divided by 52 & B8 L BiERGERUREE S
total equity as of the end of the year/period. BRSO 25 48 %8 o

Note 2:  Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total Wizo . HEHERIEHEF MR RE B EL
current liabilities as of the end of the year/period. ERLAEhEEEEE -

Note 3: Quick ratio represents total current assets less inventories  p=r3 © FEHLRIEHEE BEANATEE
divided by total current liabilities as of the end of the year/ BEREGEEBERU S aEEEo
period.

Note 4:  Price earnings ratio represents the market price of shares  gzrg - HEEE HEE /HEANBREHER
divided by earnings per share as of the end of the year/period. J—/(!Hx 3% o

Note 5: EBITDA represents earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) +  gz35 :  EBITDAIS EMATHE (EBIT) +IFE S

depreciation cost + amortization cost.

R+ ER-
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Five-Year Financial Summary

B FRIEHE
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Dear Shareholders,

We are very honored to present to the shareholders the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), the
seventh annual results of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
since its listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

At the beginning of the Chinese New Year this Year, the abrupt
outbreak of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) epidemic soon
evolved into a global pandemic. Countries around the world
experienced multiple-wave of the pandemic. Control measures
to restrict social and economic activities had to be taken, such
as lockdown, suspension of work and classes, resulting in a
severe blow to economic activities. Regarding international social
cooperation, as 10 ASEAN countries and 15 countries including
China, Japan, Korea, Australia and New Zealand have officially
signed the “Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership
Agreement”, the multilateral trade will get back on track. At the
same time, however, the macro economy is still facing great
uncertainty as the populist governments continue to dominate the
political trend as well as the intense geopolitical situation. Despite
the complicated backdrop, according to the data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics of China on 28 February 2021, the
gross domestic products (GDP) of the PRC for the Year increased
by 2.3% as compared to that of last year, and the overall economy
remained stable, which is a solid foundation for the steady growth
of the Company’s results.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Consumer confidence was adversely affected by economic
fluctuations, which had a negative impact on smartphone sales.
According to the summary data of various independent third-party
institutions’ research, smartphone shipments for the whole year
of 2020 decreased by 6% to 10% year-on-year, of which decline
was more significant for high-end handsets with unit selling price
above USD500. According to the data released by the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC in January
2021, the shipment volume of domestic smartphones in the
PRC decreased by approximately 20.8% year-on-year during the
Year. Nevertheless, the proportion of sales of 5G mobile phones
continued to increase and accumulated to approximately 163
million units in 2020, reflecting that the new wave of smartphone
replacement was in the process of development and set to go.
Meanwhile, consumers’ continuing demand for enhancing photo
shooting effect of handsets has driven the improvement on
specifications of camera module products such as multi-camera,
ultra-high pixel, optical zoom and optical image stabilisation,
leading to a relatively stable development of camera-module-
related industry against the backdrop of more stringent cost
control adopted by smartphone brands.

With the trust and supports of customers and the joint efforts of
all employees, despite facing great challenges from the macro
economy, the Group still overcame difficulties and successfully
sustained the growth momentum of last year. Both the sales
revenue and net profit reached new high and achieved three
strategic goals: (i) the product structure and unit price of camera
modules increased significantly year-on-year, strengthening the
market position of the Group as one of the Tier 1 manufacturers of
camera modules; (ii) more balanced and comprehensive coverage
of major mobile phone brand customers adopting Android system
at home and abroad; and (i) the continuous improvement of
layout of non-handset business such as automotive camera
modules and Internet of Things (loT) product camera modules
and the successive mass production and sales, paving way for
long-term growth. However, as affected by factors including the
pandemic, the Group failed to achieve the sales volume and
production expansion targets of camera modules set at the
beginning of the Year.
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HEELORIKEEEMATITE &
SEFHNHESKREETLE K55
REUF=HHENREH#E —_ 2
TEFEEFHNBEEREE T
T6%E10% > HHHEBEEES00%ETT
MENBSIHEFHREBEEABE RiEH
HERIEBIN_S_—F—BAMH
NEE AREERRBEASEEFENH
EE2E L T_A20.8% i > 5GTF 1
B EMIEIFEE N — S -_2F Kt
EEN1.63EE KM EEFHIKR
BWHETEE EBFLE - AF EX
HEEHFHRIRENRERFTERS
E—TDHERGBEREEL TS E B
BRE-ABEEMAZHEEFAN
BHRRA CEBGEEARRITEES
EFHLERFEARAZFNE S
T BREREE-

AEEPHNEEXFNE2EE THHEF
BAOT @AEEERZBCENBRAK
B REBEDADEM L RINTEEE
FHREIE HEWANFANEEE
M TERT=ZKREEER ()ER
BREEmSEMEBRLLRBIRE
BEAERESEP-—R—BEBERRA
BEARSENHISEEN ;(VEHEHNE
EEEZBEAMNBINEIEZSESZRGFTF
WamEER | R(NEFHEEFUNBHE
GEBEEAMN B AT E RiBEEEH
MEFENELEZENELTEHE &
EREBERHGEH - HEXRBEIERT
B AEEBRGEREHEMBNER
EERERAREBRFVILUNERE

o



Looking back to the Year, the average selling price of camera
modules increased significantly, driving the Group’s sales
revenue to approximately RMB17,400,369,000, representing an
increase of approximately 32.1% as compared to approximately
RMB13,169,678,000 for last year. During the Year, the proportion
of the sales volume of camera module products with resolutions
of 10 mega pixels and above to the sales volume of camera
module products of the Group increased by approximately 17.5
percentage points to approximately 71.3%, and the proportion
of the sales volume of camera module products with resolutions
of 32 mega pixels and above to the sales volume of camera
module products increased by approximately 14.6 percentage
points to approximately 24.2%, driving the average selling price
of camera modules to increase by approximately 51.7% from
approximately RMB25.52 for last year to approximately RMB38.72.
Such increase has fully reflected the significant improvement
in the Group’s supplier position of high-end products to its
core customers and the continuous improvement in customer
recognition.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

During the Year, despite the weakness in sales of smartphones,
the sales volume of the Group’s camera module products was
generally stable and reached approximately 392.59 million units,
representing a slight decrease of approximately 3.3% as compared
to approximately 406.04 million units of last year, which was
within the shipment target as amended in the positive profit alert
and revision of the objective of shipment of camera modules
announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2020, i.e. “endeavor
to achieve that the shipment of camera modules in 2020 will
decrease by not more than 5% to increase by approximately 5%
comparing with that of the previous year”. The sales volume of
camera modules for the Year was below expectation, mainly due
to: (i) the impact of the scope and time of COVID-19 outbreak was
beyond expectation, resulting in a decrease in the global sales
volume of handsets as compared to that of last year; (i) certain
customers were affected by the trade disputes between major
economies around the world and were unable to procure critical
parts and components, which limited the manufacturing capacity,
while other customers were unable to completely fill the gap in
the market in a timely manner; and (iii) semiconductor production
capacity in the fourth quarter of 2020 remained tight, as part of
the core components used for the production of mobile phones
were out of stock, which affected the corresponding demand
of handset manufacturers for camera modules. However, the
decrease in the sales volume of camera modules of the Group was
less than that of smartphones, mainly due to three reasons: (i) the
increase in the proportion of handsets with tri-camera and quad-
camera design, resulting in the continuous increase in the average
number of camera modules assembled by each smartphone;
(i) the Group’s efforts to capture market share, especially the
increase in market share of high-end camera modules; and (iii)
continuous optimisation of customer structure, in which the
Group successfully obtained the supplier qualification of important
overseas smartphone customers during the Year and gradually

increased the shipment.
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The stagnant shipment of smartphones had a relatively bigger
impact on the sales volume of the Group’s fingerprint recognition
module products. At the same time, the impact of the pandemic
on the shipment volume of high-end mobile phones had a more
severe impact on the average selling price of fingerprint recognition
modules, mainly due to: (i) each mobile phone is usually equipped
with only one fingerprint recognition module, leading to a highly
correlated shipping volume of both products; (i) under-glass
fingerprint recognition module is more widely adopted by high-end
smartphones, the weakness of sales of which indirectly caused
the product mix enhancement of fingerprint recognition module
products slowdown; (iii) the decrease in consumption power of
consumers as a result of the pandemic, mobile phone brands
partially delayed the specification upgrade of fingerprint recognition
modules, and the launch of certain new products such as ultra-
thin fingerprint recognition modules and large-size fingerprint
recognition modules was delayed; and (iv) the increase in
competition for sensing chips, which led to a decrease in material
costs and lowered the overall product selling price.

During the Year, the Group’s gross profit margin was approximately
10.2%, representing an increase of approximately 1.2 percentage
points as compared with approximately 9.0% in last year. Despite
the unsatisfactory production capacity utilization rate as a result of
the pandemic affecting the shipment of mobile phones, the gross
profit margin still recorded a positive growth, which was mainly
attributable to: (i) the significant optimisation of the product mix of
camera modules helped to enhance the added value of camera
module business and reduce marginal costs such as labour costs
and depreciation; and (ii) the intensified effectiveness of production
line upgrading and reformation through automated and digitized
production as well as the reducing demand for production staff
with the same production capacity, resulting in a continuous
decrease in the proportion of labour cost.
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During the Year, the Group vigorously promoted the core
strategy of vertical integration of intelligent visual products.
In the field of lens sets, the Group carried out more in-depth
technical cooperation with an associate, Newmax Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Newmax Technology”, a company listed on the Taipei
Exchange in Taiwan, stock code: 3630). The Group strengthened
communication and resource integration in the field of high
resolution RGB lens, and strived to assist Newmax Technology
in obtaining the supplier qualification of multiple customers, so
as to promote Newmax Technology to a better improvement on
customer base, technical capability and production capacity.
In the first half of the Year, Newmax Technology was hit by
the suspension of production due to the pandemic, recording
a net loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
NT$190,000,000. However, with all the hardworks of the
management team and the support of customers, the results in the
second half of the Year improved significantly, the sales revenue
increased by approximately 40.1% on a half-on-half basis. At the
same time, the core competitiveness of Newmax Technology, such
as customer base, technical capabilities and production capacity
scale, continued to improve. In the second half of the Year, the
Company made a breakthrough in the expansion of the high-
resolution RGB lens business, including successfully obtained
the supplier qualification of two famous mobile phone brand
customers using Android system, and gradually secured more
projects of the handset RGB lens of 5P or above. In addition,
the construction of the new plant in the central science park of
Taichung was progressing satisfactorily. It is expected that the
civil construction and decoration works will be completed by mid-
2021, and the production capacity of lens sets will be expanded
to a relatively larger scale according to customer needs. After the
technology accumulation and customer structure optimisation this
Year, it will expectantly enter a new stage of sales expansion.
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In addition, during the Year, the Group strived for continuous
development in system capability of intelligent vision products, and
vigorously promoted the Turnkey Solution that takes into account
both performance and cost efficiency, including main camera
module products with resolutions of 13 mega pixels, 48 mega
pixels and 64 mega pixels, all of which are striving to be adopted
by multiple customers and targeted to mass production gradually
in 2021.

During the Year, the Group continued to promote the research and
development (“R&D”) of camera module products, strengthen the
R&D of new materials, new processes and new products, resulting
in an remarkable improvement in the functions and performance
of camera module products. In terms of functions, the Group has
become one of the three largest camera module manufacturers in
the PRC with single camera modules with resolutions of 32 mega
pixels and above. Not only has the Group successfully produced
64 mega pixels and 108 mega pixels products, but it has also
fully mastered the production process of various products such as
large-chip and different sizes of pixel, being the main supplier of
fixed-focus, automatic focus, telescope and wide-angle camera
module projects for the flagship models of multi-brand customers.
In terms of performance, during the Year, the Group successfully
brought the micro-gimble image stabilisation technology into
the mobile phone, which doubled the range of traditional optical
image stabilisation (OIS) angle, redefined the scope of video
image stabilisation and low light condition shooting of the mobile
phone camera module, and fully grasped the technologies of five-
fold periscope optical zoom module, ultra-micro-image module,
variable aperture and close loop-like auto-focus (AF) module
and other new technologies. At the same time, the R&D team
completed a number of pre-research work on cutting-edge
technologies in the industry, including the dToF module technology
used in the rear camera 3D solution, which realised the function of
single-zone and multi-zone light emitting dToF, which can be used
for high precision measurement.
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The Group has always strived to position itself as an advanced
intelligent vision product system company serving its intelligent
mobile terminal customers including smartphones, automobiles,
smart homes and other 10T application scenarios. In addition to the
smartphone segment, after years of hard work and collaboration
by the Company’s team, preliminary results have been achieved
in various market segments such as in-vehicle and IoT products.
The Company launched its automotive camera module products
for the first time since the second quarter of 2018, obtained the
Tier 1 or Tier 2 supplier qualifications for various well-known
domestic automobile brands within less than two years, as well as
successfully commenced the mass production of advanced driver
assistance system (ADAS) and intelligent cabin (In-Cabin) camera
module products. At present, the camera module projects of more
than ten automobile models have entered the stage of product
R&D and certification, striving to achieve mass production in 2021.
At the same time, the Group began to make mass production
of loT products such as sweeping robots camera modules and
drones camera modules for the Year, covering leading customers
in the relevant industry, entered into the camera module market of
wearable devices, including smart watch products, and continued
to expand in non-handset industry fields.

During the Year, the Group continued to promote the industrial
4.0 mass production infrastructure and carried out large-scale
production automation upgrading and transformation. The
production lines of the Kunshan production base have basically
completed the automatic connection of the front, middle and back
end production processes, from the COB packaging process,
dispensing, welding to testing, all processes were interconnected
and intercommunicable, fully adopted the construction standard of
fully-automated digital intelligent factory to achieve more efficient
errorproof, anti-mixing and omission-proof standards, thereby
optimising production yield and efficiency. In addition, the Group
made extensive use of automatic optical inspection equipment
(AOI), set up automatic warehousing system, strengthened
logistics control on bulk delivery to promote lean production.
Moreover, the Group continued to optimise its customer service
standard by directly connecting with the delivery system of
customers to promote the development of “one-click delivery”
system, which significantly enhanced the overall experience of
customers in terms of delivery efficiency and quality. Meanwhile,
although the construction of the second phase plant of the
production base in India was delayed in the first half of the Year
due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the overall progress had been
resumed and various public works had been fully commenced. The
production capacity layout is expected to be gradually put in place
in 2021 to meet the fast-growing order demand from overseas
customers.
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In summary, development opportunities and challenges coexist in
the camera module and fingerprint recognition module industry
in the future. In the long run, with the continuous upgrading
of optical specifications of handset terminals, in-vehicle and
loT products, together with the increasingly complex optical
design and structural design of products, and camera module
manufacturers integrating upstream component design capabilities
and large-scale automated production capabilities, the Group is
expected to stand out in fierce competitions and become a leader
in providing integrated intelligent vision solutions. The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) believe that with its continuous effort
in promoting large-scale intelligent manufacturing, R&D of new
technology and vertical integration, firmly propelling the strategies
in platform, components as well as system integration, adhering
to a customer-centric service strategy, firmly promoting lean
management, the Group will be able to maintain its relatively long-
term competitiveness, provide high-end and high quality products
and quick response services for our general customers, and
ultimately strive to achieve the vision of the Group as “to illuminate
machines”.

PROSPECTS

In 2020, the global economy was affected by the sudden
outbreak of a once-in-a-century pandemic, and experienced
unprecedented ups and downs. Restrictive measures on social
and economic activities such as lockdown, suspension of work
and suspension of market were imposed one after another. The
gross domestic product of major economies except the PRC
experienced a decline, and the unemployment rate remained high.
The later the pandemic is alleviated, the greater the damage to
the national economy, affecting the consumer confidence even
further. Although the global economy is highly interconnected and
it is difficult for anyone to get rid of it, China’s early achievements
in pandemic prevention work and economic production activities
have generally returned to normal, making China as one of the few
countries with positive GDP growth in 2020.
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Although the economy is unlikely to recover in the short term,
the Directors believe that 5G is one of the definitive directions
for global technology and economic development, as smart
mobile communication terminal is an important carrier for the
further commercialisation of 5G and the popularisation of loT.
Therefore, the intelligent mobile communication terminal industry
still has good development opportunities and broad development
prospects. As a fundamental communication network, 5G will
change users’ information consumption habits and completely
lift the bandwidth limit of emerging applications. According to
the data released by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC on 11 January 2021, the accumulated
shipment of 5G mobile phones in China reached approximately
163 million units in 2020, representing a continuous increase in
its proportion to total shipment of mobile phones from 26.5% in
January to 68.4% in December, and the cumulative number of
new 5G mobile phones launched reached 218. According to the
forecast data from independent third-party research institutions,
the number of global 5G mobile users will reach 2.5 billion
by 2025, and Chinese products will continue to account for
approximately half of the global market share.

The intelligent vision systematic product is still one of the highlights
that consumers are most concerned with when purchasing
intelligent mobile communication terminals, and is also one of
the important interfaces for information interaction in new loT
fields such as automobiles and smart homes. Therefore, the
Directors remain confident in the long-term development prospects
of the intelligent vision industry, and will continue to establish
technological advantages by promoting the R&D of new materials,
new processes and new products, further enhancing profitability
by optimising customer structure and improving product structure,
improving production efficiency and reducing manufacturing costs
by further strengthening production automation and striving to
move towards intelligent production, enhancing risk prevention
capability by strengthening internal control management, and
strengthening the systematic capability of intelligent visual
products by further promoting vertical integration of core parts and
components, so as to enhance the core competitiveness of the
Group, better cope with the possible fluctuations in the situation in
2021 and seize the opportunities of industry development.
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The Directors are unswervingly committed to the strategy of
continuously promoting the development of intelligent vision
systematic products. The importance of camera modules in mobile
terminals has increased and the changes in the technological
trend of the industry in recent years will be beneficial to the first-
tier module manufacturers with vertical integration capabilities. The
main reasons are as follows: (i) the trend of consumers’ demand
for higher quality intelligent vision system products remains
unchanged, but the upgrade path has gradually shifted from
focusing on optical lens design and semiconductor chip design in
the past to strengthening structural design, such as new optical
image stabilisation, continuous optical zoom, variable aperture,
etc. The upstream materials used in camera modules tend to
be customised and require module manufacturers to be highly
involved in product design and coordination and integration, which
will help module manufacturers to increase the added value of
products; and (ii) the increase in the popularity of 5G commercial
applications and 3D imaging applications will continue to change
the habits of mobile phone users, whereas more applications of
dynamic shooting, games and AR/VR will continue to enhance the
iteration of the specifications of mobile phone camera modules.

At the same time, the non-handset application market will lead
the camera module industry to a new growth territory with the
increase in demand for camera modules by smart vehicles and loT
terminals. The Group will adhere to the development strategy of
developing camera modules for mobile phones as the foundation
and actively promoting the business of camera modules for vehicle
and loT. Automotive camera modules provide an interactive
information entrance for drivers. Unlike laser radar, which is mainly
used as a distance measurement, it is the only sensor used in
vehicles for objects sensing. It will be used in large-scale driving
assistance systems for road conditions sensing, surround view
parking or detect driver fatigue. The increased penetration rate of
intelligent driving systems will significantly increase the adoption
of camera modules and impose more stringent requirements on
specifications. In the past two years, the Group has laid a solid
foundation in terms of technology layout, customer layout and
product layout, and achieved mass production. In the future, the
Group will focus on securing more new projects and capacity
construction, endeavoring to expand production scale in the
short to medium term, and strive to become one of the major
manufacturers in the industry.
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The rapid growth of the loT market also brings opportunities
to the intelligent vision industry. In particular, the pandemic has
changed the way people interact with one another, and the
consumption habits of users were passively changed by the non-
contact economy. In addition, the 5G network has empowered
various artificial intelligence products, providing the necessary
conditions for the Internet of Everything. The sub-markets such
as service robots such as sweeping robots, delivery robots and
drones are expected to have significant growth. In particular,
the functional requirements such as the path identification, the
target identification and the avoidance of obstacles will bring
new opportunities to the camera module industry. At the same
time, the face recognition function of mobile payment, wearable
devices, smart home and other new consumption patterns are
emerging, which will provide favorable conditions for the Group’s
development in line with consumers’ pursuit of a healthy and
convenient lifestyle.

The Group will adhere to the vision of “to illuminate machines”,
actively strengthen the capacity building in three aspects, namely
optical design, computing imaging and system integration,
continue to strengthen the R&D of new materials, new processes
and new products, continue to improve the large-scale automated
precision manufacturing capabilities, continue to promote
the construction and expansion of production bases in India,
actively promote lean management, actively carry out customer
relationship marketing, actively strive to increase the share of
customer cooperation, and continuously enhance the Group’s
core competitiveness. The Group will also focus on promoting
the development of high-end products such as high pixel camera
modules, multi-camera modules, optical image stabilisation
modules, ToF modules, periscope camera modules and optical
under-glass fingerprint recognition modules in various forms,
and assist in promoting the development of the camera module
lens, 3D module lens and under-glass fingerprint recognition
module lens of the associate company. The Company will strive
to strengthen the technical cooperation and resource integration
of camera modules and key components such as lens sets, and
strive to achieve further breakthrough in the application of camera
modules in non-mobile phone field.
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The Group will strive to achieve the following objectives in 2021:
(i) the shipment volume of camera modules in 2021 will increase
by not less than 30% as compared with that of the previous year,
of which the shipment volume of camera modules with resolutions
of 32 mega pixels and above will account for not less than 30%;
(i) the shipment volume of fingerprint recognition modules in
2021 will increase by not less than 30% as compared with that of
the previous year, of which the shipment volume of under-glass
fingerprint recognition modules will account for not less than 50%;
and (iii) continue to review customers’ demand and the business
development of the Group and gradually expand the production
capacity of camera modules from approximately 53 million units
per month by the end of 2020 to 65 million units per month by
the end of 2021 (the production capacity statistics of which are
still based on the previous standard efficiency of camera modules
with resolutions of 13 mega pixels); and the production capacity of
fingerprint recognition modules will gradually expand from a total of
approximately 14 million units per month by the end of 2020 to not
less than 18 million units per month by the end of 2021.

The Directors are confident in leading the Group to embrace the
challenges, make further efforts to achieve good development and
strive to create greater value for the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”).
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AWARDS AND HONOURS

During the Year, the Group continued to adhere to our customer-
oriented service strategies, always considered the provision of
good personal experience for customers as our operation direction
and devoted our best efforts to satisfy customers’ needs in
product R&D, sales delivery, after-sales service, product quality
and technology innovation, and gained high recognition of the
Group’s comprehensive ability, products and services from the
local governments, industry and our customers.

In March 2020, Kunshan QTech Microelectronics Co., Ltd. (ELL
EHMEFRERADABRAT) (formerly known as “Kunshan Q
Technology Limited” (EWLESMEFREBRAE)) (“Kunshan
QT China”), a subsidiary of the Company, was awarded the “Top
Ten Intelligence Production Transformation Enterprise and Top
Economies of Scale Production Enterprise in Kunshan City for the
Year 2019” qualification granted by the People’s Government of
Kunshan City;

In July 2020, Kunshan QT China was honored with the title
of “2020 Jiangsu Southern National Independent Innovation
Demonstration Zone Gazelle Enterprise” granted by the
Construction and Promotion Service Centre of Jiangsu Southern
National Independent Innovation Demonstration Zone;

In July 2020, Kunshan QT China was awarded with RMB1 million
for the “Meeting the Target 48M OIS First Pass Yield” award
granted by OPPO, a world-renowned smartphone brand;

In October 2020, Kunshan QT China received the “2020
Outstanding Contribution Award for the Stable Growth of Foreign
Investment” and the “2020 Outstanding Contribution Award for the
Stable Growth of Industry” granted by the People’s Government of
Kunshan City;

In November 2020, Kunshan QT China was awarded the title of
“2020 Advanced Enterprise for Poverty Alleviation through Labour
Cooperation and Employment in Eastern and Western Regions”
granted by Suzhou Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau;
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In December 2020, Kunshan QT China received the “Best
Innovation Award”, “Excellent Quality Award” and “Best Delivery
Award” for 2020 granted by vivo Mobile Communication Co., Ltd.

(HEXBHBEBEIRAT), a world-renowned smartphone brand;

In December 2020, Kunshan QT China received the “Excellent
Supplier” award for 2020 granted by Shanghai Huaqin Technology
Co., Ltd (L BEHRMBRNHBRRE),

smartphone manufacturer;

a world-renowned

In January 2021, Kunshan QTech Biological Recognition
Technology Limited (B E#SEMHBIFIEBRAE) (“QTech
Biological Recognition”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received the “Excellent Delivery Guarantee Award” for
2020 granted by Huawei, a world-renowned smartphone brand;

In January 2021, the Company was honored with the “2020
Quality Excellence Award” granted by Ecovacs Robotics Co., Ltd
(BUREFRBRARGOBRRE),

manufacturer;

a world-famous robot product

In January 2021, the Company was awarded the “Best TMT
Company” at the 5th Golden Hong Kong Stocks’ Annual Awards
Ceremony co-hosted by Zhitongcaijing.com (£ 38 #4 4%) and Hithink

RoyalFlush Information Network Co., Ltd. (BITEIEEF4E) ; and

In February 2021, Kunshan QT China received the 2020 “Excellent
Delivery Team” award granted by OPPO Guangdong Mobile

(OPPOERBEFBEAMRAF),

world-renowned smartphone brand

Communication Co., Ltd.

He Ningning
Chairman

Hong Kong
13 April 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

During the Year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
RMB17,400,369,000, representing a year-on-year growth
of approximately 32.1% as compared with approximately
RMB13,169,678,000 in 2019. The steady growth in revenue
was mainly attributable to the significant progress made in the
implementation of the Group’s product structure optimisation
strategy over the years, which led to a notable year-on-year
increase in the average selling price of camera modules, driving
the steady growth of the Group’s revenue from sales of camera
modules for the Year as compared to that of last year.

Cost of sales

During the Year, the cost of sales of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB15,629,784,000, representing a year-on-year
growth of approximately 30.4% as compared with approximately
RMB11,989,806,000 in 2019. The increase in cost of sales was
primarily attributable to: (i) the increase in raw material cost by
approximately 30.4% as compared with that of last year due to
the expansion of sales scale; and (i) the increase in depreciation
cost of production base and equipment, which were invested
for expanding production capacity, by approximately 27.8%
from approximately RMB244,549,000 in 2019 to approximately
RMB312,593,000.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

For the Year, gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB1,770,585,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,179,872,000),
representing an increase of approximately 50.1% as compared
with that in 2019, while gross profit margin was approximately
10.2% (2019: approximately 9.0%). The steady increase in
gross profit margin was mainly attributable to: (i) the apparent
optimisation of product structure of camera modules helped
to increase the added value of camera module business; and
(i) the continuous optimisation of labour and depreciation
costs promoted by the production automation upgrade and
transformation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other revenue

During the Year, other revenue of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB129,839,000, representing an increase
of approximately 201.9% as compared with approximately
RMB43,013,000 in 2019. The increase in other revenue was
mainly attributable to: the increase of government grants and
incentives received from local governments at different levels by
approximately 289.1% as compared to that of last year.

Other net loss

During the Year, the Group recorded other net loss of
approximately RMB85,513,000, representing an increase
of approximately 34.0% as compared with other net loss of
approximately RMB63,839,000 in 2019. Such other net loss was
mainly attributable to: (i) net foreign exchange gain for the Year,
when aggregated with total net realised and unrealized loss or
gain on foreign exchange option contracts and foreign currency
forward contracts, amounted to a net loss of approximately
RMB45,952,000, while the net foreign exchange loss of last
year, when aggregated with total net realised and unrealized
loss on foreign exchange option contracts and foreign currency
forward contracts, amounted to a net loss of approximately
RMB35,738,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 28.6%; and (ii) the increase of impairment loss
of machinery by approximately 165.9% from approximately
RMB10,587,000 of last year to approximately RMB28,155,000 of
the Year.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the Year, selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB26,066,000, representing an
increase of approximately 74.4% as compared with approximately
RMB14,946,000 in 2019. The ratio of selling and distribution
expenses to revenue was approximately 0.1%, which was at
similar level of that of 2019. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in sales staff for
further enhancement of customer marketing and services for fields
such as phone, vehicle and loT, resulting in an increase in sales
staff salaries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Administrative and other operating expenses

For the Year, total administrative and other operating expenses
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB152,626,000,
representing an increase of approximately 19.1% as compared
with approximately RMB128,140,000 in 2019. The increase
in administrative and other operating expenses was mainly
attributable to the increase of staff salaries and labour expenses by
approximately 44.0% from approximately RMB50,828,000 in 2019
to approximately RMB73,176,000 resulting from the increase in
number of staff and average salary in the Year.

R&D expenses

For the Year, the total R&D expenses of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB589,737,000, representing an increase
of approximately 48.8% as compared with approximately
RMB396,244,000 in 2019. The R&D expenses for the Year were
mainly utilised in the Group’s continuous R&D investments in
new products, new processes and automation upgrading and
transformation.

Finance costs

During the Year, the finance costs of the Group were approximately
RMB53,524,000, representing an increase of approximately 1.4%
as compared with approximately RMB52,811,000 in 2019. The
increase in finance costs was mainly attributable to the increase in
withdrawal and average amount of bank borrowing balance of the
Group in the Year in order to fulfill the requirements for production
and operation scale expansion.

Share of loss of an associate

During the Year, Newmax Technology, an associate of the
Company, recorded a loss. The share of loss of an associate
attributable to the Company was approximately RMB22,890,000,
while a share of profit of an associate of approximately
RMB39,996,000 was recorded in 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Income tax expenses

During the Year, income tax expenses of the Group was
approximately RMB129,960,000, whereas the income tax
expenses in 2019 were approximately RMB64,529,000. It was
mainly attributable to the profit before tax recorded by the Group
for the Year amounting to approximately RMB970,068,000,
representing a growth of approximately 59.8% as compared with

approximately RMB606,901,000 in 2019.

Profit for the Year

Based on the foregoing, the profit of the Group for the
Year amounted to approximately RMB840,108,000 (2019:
approximately RMB542,372,000),
approximately 54.9% as compared with that of 2019.

representing an increase of

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB1,263,232,000,
of approximately 4.9% from approximately RMB1,328,785,000

representing a decrease

as at 31 December 2019. Among the borrowings, short-term
borrowings were approximately RMB1,104,021,000 whereas long-
term borrowings were approximately RMB159,211,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings were
mainly denominated in RMB and/or USD. The cash flow overview
of the Group for the Year and 2019 was set out as follows:

R_B_TFE+_RB=+—H'+&H
ZIRITEREEUARER HET
HE-AEERAFER_FT-NEN
EEE NI

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—H

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

As of 31 December 2020, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,983,516,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,571,999,000
from approximately RMB411,517,000 as at 31 December
2019. The increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly
attributable to the profit of the Group for the Year increased rapidly
as compared to last year, with net cash inflow from operating
activities.

Operating activities

During the Year, the Group recorded a net cash inflow from
operating activities amounting approximately RMB3,603,951,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,204,400,000
as compared with the net cash inflow of approximately
RMB2,399,551,000 in 2019, which was mainly attributable to
the steady growth of revenue and steady increase of gross profit
margin of the Group during the Year as compared to that of last
year, and with the strong support from its overall customers,
the overall turnover days of accounts receivables and bills
receivables decreased from approximately 109 days in last year
to approximately 87 days, while turnover days of trade and other
payables were similar to that of last year. At the same time, the
accounts payable of approximately RMB979,214,000 was directly
paid by the bank to the suppliers in the settlement method of
bank trade financing products, which was not included in the cash
outflow from operating activities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investing activities

The net cash outflow used in investing activities of the Group
during the Year amounted to approximately RMB695,865,000,
while the net cash outflow amounted to approximately
RMB1,271,487,000 in 2019, which was mainly the expenses
for plant expansion and purchasing equipment amounting to
approximately RMB540,837,000. The decrease in net cash outflow
was mainly attributable to the expansion plan for production
capacity of camera modules that did not meet its expectations
during the Year due to the impact of COVID-19 epidemic.

Financing activities

The net cash outflow used in the financing activities of the Group
during the Year amounted to approximately RMB1,314,869,000,
while the net outflow in 2019 was approximately
RMB816,739,000. The net cash outflow was increased by
approximately RMB498,130,000 as compared with that of 2019,
which was mainly attributable to: (i) the fund raised from the
placing of shares of approximately RMB182,155,000 in the year
of 2019, while there was no placing of shares during the Year;
and (ii) the distribution of final dividend for the year of 2019 of
approximately RMB107,152,000 during the Year, while there was
no distribution of final dividend for the year of 2018 during the year
of 2019.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2020, as
defined by the total balance of bank borrowings and lease liabilities
divided by total equity at the end of the Year, was approximately
34.6%, representing a decrease of approximately 13.6 percentage
points from approximately 48.2% as at 31 December 2019, which
was mainly attributable to: the total amount of bank borrowings
and lease liabilities at the end of the Year was similar to that at
the end of last year, while the total equity at the end of the Year
increased by approximately 32.1% as compare to that at the end
of last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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TREASURY POLICIES

The Group’s treasury policy was disclosed in the prospectus of
the Company dated 20 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), and
was amended by the risk management committee (the “Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company on 24 March 2016,
the details of which were disclosed under the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section of the 2016 to 2019 annual
report. The Board,
the Company and the staff at the relevant positions always
remain alert to the performance and risk assessment of the

the Risk Management Committee of

wealth management products so as to ensure that the wealth
management operation does not pose excessive risk to the
principal amount. At the same time, the Company also pays close
attention to the liquidity and debt asset position of the Group in
order to ensure the sufficiency of its working capital and maintain
the debt asset ratio at a reasonable level.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 15 December 2020, the Company submitted an application
in relation to a possible spin-off and separate listing of Kunshan
QT China on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange or Shanghai Stock
Exchange in the PRC (the “Proposed Spin-off’) to the Stock
Exchange for approval pursuant to Practice Note 15 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). The Proposed Spin-off, if materialised, may
constitute a notifiable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the inside
information announcement of the Company dated 15 December

2020.
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material

acquisitions or disposals of its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures for the year ended 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020,
Group included bank deposits and shares of an associate
of approximately RMB433,167,000 (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB478,632,000), which were used as guarantee

the assets pledged by the

for bank borrowings and bank guarantee letters.

EMPLOYEE POLICIES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the contractual staff of the Group has
increased and the number of which reached 7,127 (excluding non-
contractual staff such as staff under labour service agreements
and internship agreements) (as at 31 December 2019: 3,745).
The Group is committed to providing all staff with fair working
environment, providing newly recruited staff with induction
training and job technical counseling to help them to adapt
to job requirements quickly, providing all staff with clear job
responsibilities guidelines and for employees at different positions
with on-the-job training together with other training programmes
to help improving their skills and knowledge, and strived to
provide all staff with competitive remuneration packages. For the
Year, the remuneration of the employees (including staff under
labour service agreements and internship agreements) of the
Group was approximately RMB923,108,000 (2019: approximately
RMB725,391,000).
includes performance bonus, medical insurance and provident

Apart from basic salary, the package also

fund (staff under labour service agreements and internship
agreements are treated according to the laws and regulations of
the PRC).
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Meanwhile, the Company has granted a total of 89,561,600 share
options to its staff on 26 October 2016, 9 June 2017, 7 December
2018, 21 June 2019 and 16 September 2020 respectively
pursuant to a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted on 13 November 2014 (details of the Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in sections D1 headed “Share Option
Scheme” of Appendix IV “Statutory and General Information” of the
Prospectus), with specific details as follows:

() On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options to 165 staff (including two
executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu)
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Options 2016”), and grantees may apply to exercise the share
options by phases from 1 April 2018 onwards upon fulfilling
certain conditions (please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 26 October 2016 for details). During the
Year, the Company has accepted the applications from 127
staff (including two executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu) and issued a total of 9,495,480 ordinary
shares at the exercise price of HK$4.13 per share and total
consideration received was approximately HK$39,216,000. A
total of 120,720 options granted on 26 October 2016 were
lapsed or cancelled as a result of the personal performance of
8 staff during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, none of the
Share Options 2016 were outstanding.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of 8,083,000
share options to 48 staff (none of the grantees are Directors,
chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates) in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme (the “Share Options 2017”), and the
grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2018 onwards upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
9 June 2017 for details). During the Year, the Company has
accepted the applications from 21 staff and issued a total
of 945,600 ordinary shares at the exercise price of HK$6.22
per share and total consideration received was approximately
HK$5,882,000. As at 31 December 2020, none of the Share
Options 2017 were outstanding.

On 7 December 2018, the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options to 83 staff (none of the grantees
are Directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders
of the Company or any of their respective associates) in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Options 2018”), and the grantees may apply to exercise the
share options by phases from 1 April 2020 onwards upon
fulfilling certain conditions (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 7 December 2018 for details). During
the Year, the Company has accepted the applications from 70
staff and issued a total of 4,333,600 ordinary shares at the
exercise price of HK$4.65 per share and total consideration
received was approximately HK$20,151,000. A total of
528,000 and 44,800 options granted on 7 December 2018
were lapsed or cancelled respectively as a result of the
resignations of 4 staff and the personal performance of 3
staff during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, a total of
6,189,600 Share Options 2018 were outstanding.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEmADh

(iv)

On 21 June 2019, the Company granted a total of
11,454,000 share options at the exercise price of HK$6.02
per share to 68 staff (none of the grantees are Directors,
chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates) in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme (the “Share Options 2019”), and the
grantees may apply to exercise the share options by phases
from 1 April 2021 onwards upon fulfilling certain conditions
(please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21
June 2019 for details).
during the Year; and a total of 2,266,000 options granted on

Such options were not exercisable

21 June 2019 were lapsed as a result of the resignation of
12 staff during the Year. As at 31 December 2020, a total of
4,508,000 Share Options 2019 were outstanding.

In addition, on 16 September 2020, the Company granted
a total of 17,879,600 share options at the exercise price
of HK$9.22 per share to 119 staff (including two executive
Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang™® and Mr. Hu Sanmu) in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme (the “Share
Options 2020”), and the grantees may apply to exercise the
share options by phases from 1 April 2021 onwards upon
fulfilling certain conditions (please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 16 September 2020 for details). Such
options were not exercisable during the Year; and a total of
653,200 options granted on 16 September 2020 were lapsed
as a result of the resignation of 4 staff during the Year. As
at 31 December 2020, a total of 17,226,400 Share Options
2020 were outstanding.

Note:

On 15 December 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang resigned from his
position as an executive director and the chief executive officer of
the Company; and Mr. Fan Fugiang was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on the same day, he was also granted
630,000 Share Options 2020 on 16 September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily due to certain
receivables, payables, cash balances and loans that are
denominated in foreign currencies other than RMB arising from
the operating activities such as bank borrowings, product sales
and purchase of raw materials. The Group is also exposed to
currency risk from the exchange or translation of USD and Hong
Kong Dollars into RMB. During the Period, as the sales income
of the Group was still mainly settled in RMB but various raw
materials for production and some equipment for production were
purchased from overseas and settled in USD, while the central
parity rate of RMB against USD recorded an upward adjustment
of approximately 6.5% from 6.9762 at the beginning of the Year
to 6.5249 at the end of the Year, the Group eventually recorded
a loss for the realised or unrealised foreign option contracts
previously entrusted, and the amount of which exceeded the
foreign exchange revenue and the revenue amount of realised and
unrealised foreign currency forward contracts. As such, the Group
recorded an exchange loss of approximately RMB45,952,000,
representing an increase as compared to approximately
RMB35,738,600 in 2019. As affected by multiple factors such as
politics, economic, and supply and demand, the trend of RMB
against USD in the future is subject to great uncertainties. It is
difficult to adjust the business model of the Group in the short
run. Therefore, the profit or loss of the Group may still be affected
by exchange rate fluctuation in the future. The Group will, on
one hand, continuously strive to strengthen the expansion of
overseas business and strive to reduce the proportion of USD
expense; on the other hand, the Group will continuously enhance
daily monitoring of the exchange rate, and fix the future foreign
exchange costs by properly using financial instruments, so as to
strengthen the management of foreign exchange risks and strive to
reduce foreign exchange loss. However, the Group is also clearly
aware that there are many factors affecting exchange rates, and
the mechanism to determine exchange rate is complicated and
fickle, making it is difficult to estimate its trend. Therefore, the
profit or loss of the Group may still be affected by exchange rate
fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING

On 2 December 2014, the shares (the “Shares”) of the Company
were initially listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange by
global offering. The net proceeds from the above global offering
was approximately HK$658,000,000 (after deducting relevant
listing expenses). As at 31 December 2020, the fund raised was
fully utilised in accordance with the intended use of the global
offering.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

On 12 December 2016, the Company completed the placing
of 40,000,000 new ordinary Shares under a general mandate
granted to the Directors by the Shareholders to two placees, being
Value Partners Hong Kong Limited and The People’s Insurance
Company (Group) of China Limited, who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners are third parties independent of the Company
and its connected persons, at the placing price of HK$3.90
per placing Share. The net proceeds of the aforesaid placing
were approximately HK$154,428,000, after deducting relevant
placing commission, professional fees and all related expenses.
As at 31 December 2020, the fund raised was fully utilised. The
capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use of the net
proceeds of the placing.

On 29 December 2017, the Company completed the placing of
20,000,000 new ordinary Shares under a general mandate granted
to the Directors by the Shareholders to not less than six placees,
being professional, institutional and/or other investors, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons, at the placing price of
HK$10.80 per placing Share. The net proceeds from the above
placing was approximately HK$214,218,000, after deducting
the related placing commission, professional fees and all related
expenses. As at 31 December 2020, the fund raised was fully
utilised. The capital utilisation was consistent with the intended use
of the net proceeds of the placing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 23 December 2019, the Company completed the placing of
15,000,000 existing shares (the “Placing Shares”) at the placing
price of HK$13.68 per each placing share (the “Placing”) to not
less than six placees (who were professional investors and whose
respective ultimate beneficial owners were (a) independent of,
and not connected with, the Company and its connected person;
and (b) independent of, and are not acting in concert with, QT
Investment, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and
persons acting in concert with QT Investment). On 30 December
2019, the Company allotted and issued 15,000,000 new shares
to QT Investment (the “Subscription”). Upon the completion of
the Placing and Subscription, the net proceeds obtained by the
Company was approximately HK$203,300,000, after deducting all
costs and expenses incurred by QT Investment in connection with
the Placing and Subscription and to be borne by the Company,
and other expenses incurred by the Company which included the
placing agent’s commission, the stamp duty, the Stock Exchange
trading fee and the SFC transaction levy. As at 31 December
2020, the net proceeds was fully utilised. Among the net
proceeds used: (i) approximately HK$162.6 million, representing
approximately 80% of the net proceeds from the Subscription,
was used as capital expenditure required for production capacity
expansion for camera modules; and (i) approximately HK$40.7
million, representing approximately 20% of the net proceeds
from the Subscription, was used for R&D. The capital utilisation
was consistent with the intended use of the net proceeds of the
Placing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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DIVIDEND

Taking into consideration of the required capital expenditures
for the expansion of capacity planning of camera modules and
the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended

fingerprint recognition modules in the year of 2021,

31 December 2020 of HKD5.0 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB4.2 cents) per share (final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019: HKD10.0 cents (equivalent to approximately
RMB9.0 cents) per share) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday,
3 June 2021. Subject to the approval by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company
to be held on 24 May 2021,
expected to be paid in cash on or around Friday, 18 June 2021.

the proposed final dividend is

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to attend the AGM to
be held on 24 May 2021, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from 18 May 2021 to 24 May 2021.
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must

All transfer

be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17
May 2021.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 1 June 2021 to 3 June 2021, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2021.

38 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

HQ l%\

EZRI _E - FEREREGBEEREA
MIEH N EAEEREMEENE
AALZ EFETFEZAN_ZEI—F
AAB=ZH (EHM) 23 AKX RABKRERS
MzBRRIREHE_Z _ZTF+_H
—t+—HLEFEZRBERESKS.08
I (BEROARKLI27) (HEZS
—NWEF+IZA=T—HLEFEZXH
EA ! @HQ‘]O 0Bl BERHOAR
#9.093)) - BBEXRMKRETFEHREFHENZ

_—E/\ﬁ ‘I’/\ B (28R stz 85
BLARSIRN EERER - —%
AFEZF+MHBRTHNARBERRE
BEARE ((REBFAG)) LEEKE
Lo

SHHER(MIBR B FE

%ﬁ HE_E-_—FHA-+WMH

THREBEFAEER AQBFER
:g:—$£H+AEI:$:—E
FAZ+ OB (BEEMXBEERN) =
MIBERMBRERFEB-FIENKHNE
EXHERBEBARE HEAR_T-—
FERA+EtATFEE=1+28EE
KANBIRNERAZEBESELDES AT
RESEBLABRAD MU AT EEF
EEKBEBRI8IFEMPL17EI712-
1716578 o

%?Aﬁﬁwwxﬁku ZIN/NCIFESIS
TEC—FRB—HE_Z_—F5X
B=—H EEMXEEER) GEHHIER
MBRERFE HEAGETEMR
MBRER -FMBRMDBERAXHERE
MRE  WEAR S _—FRA=1+—
ET#EE—+ﬁva§$“ﬂF*
BB SELDEEBEPRESE

BRQAG  HitABBAEFTE FﬁL%
18358 S M 1718 1712FE 1716588 o



Management Discussion and Analysis

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT

The Group has strictly complied with the applicable environmental
protection laws and policies in the jurisdictions where the
respective members of the Group are located. During the Year,
the Group had continued to revise, improve and implement a
number of internal rules and regulations in relation to environmental
protection management such as the implementation of
Wastewater Management Regulations, Waste Gas Management
Regulations and Greenhouse Gas Management Measures, and
to further perfect the wastewater, waste gas and greenhouse
gas treatment system in order to strengthen its management
and control in production and domestic sewage so as to ensure
that the wastewater discharge is in compliance with statutory
requirements, and clarified the ranges, procedure and instrument
of collecting the data of greenhouse gas for the effective
management of greenhouse gas of the Group in the long run and
prepared for reducing carbon emissions. As the same time, the
Group had also amended and implemented certain regulations
and measures including improving the Fire Safety Management
Regulations and Emergency Plan, held fire drills with particular
focus on strengthening of self-check of the fire control facilities and
improving the fire prevention and control capability, and Kunshan
QT China successfully obtained the compliance certificate in
terms of work safety granted by Administration of Work Safety
and Environmental Protection of Kunshan Hi-tech Industrial
Development Park.

Particulars of the environmental protection management of
the Company are disclosed in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out in this annual report of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREILE ZEEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
consists of six Directors, comprising three executive Directors,
namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang, and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin.

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning ({22 28) (“Mr. He"), aged 50, was appointed as
a Director on 5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director on 13 November 2014. Mr. He has been the chairman
of the Board and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) of the Board of the Company since 13 November
2014. He is primarily responsible for overall strategic planning
and formulation of investment strategies of our Group. Mr. He
founded Kunshan QT China in October 2007 and has more than
20 years of experience in the electrical and electronic industries.
Prior to founding the Group, Mr. He served as a sales officer of
Samsung Electro-Mechanics Dongguan Co., Ltd. ((R5E=E Ei%
BR/AT), a manufacturer of electronic components, from July
1992 to April 1997 where he was primarily responsible for sales
and delivery management. In November 2000 and June 2004,
Mr. He founded Surewheel Asia Pacific Limited (EHEE R XA
FRA &) (“Surewheel”), a company principally engaged in agency
sales of printheads, and Shenzhen Xike Dexin Telecom Equipment
Co., Ltd. (RYITHAEPIEEBERKMKZESRRAF) (“Shenzhen
CK”), a company principally engaged in the research, development
and sales of complete handsets components, and has been the
chairman of Surewheel and Shenzhen CK. Mr. He is primarily
responsible for the strategic planning. In December 2004, Mr. He
founded CK Telecom Limited (FRIEEHEMTEE CAR) BRA
3l) (“Heyuan CK”), a company principally engaged in the sales and
manufacturing of complete handsets and handset components
and modules, and has been the chairman of Heyuan CK. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for the strategic planning of Heyuan CK. Mr.
He is the sole director and the sole shareholder of QT Investment,
a controlling shareholder of the Company as at the date of this
report. Mr. He received his bachelor’s degree in science, majoring
in weather dynamic, from the Peking University in July 1992 and
his master’s degree of business administration from the University
of California in March 2002.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. He is also a director of each of Q Technology (Great China)
Inc., Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (“Kunshan QT
Hong Kong”), Kunshan QTech Ever Capital Limited (E L F #4212
BBEHBRAF) (“QTech Ever Capital”), Kunshan QT China, QTech
Biological Recognition, Kunshan QTech Optoelectronic Technology
Limited (B B8t BRI ARAR) (“QTech Optoelectronic”),
Kunshan Q Technology International Limited (“QT International”),
Q Technology (Singapore) Private Limited (“Singapore QT”) and
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited (“India
QT"), each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Hu Sanmu (B3=) (“Mr. Hu"), aged 45, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company since 8 July 2016, and
was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company
since 15 December 2020. He is primarily responsible for the daily
operation management of the Company, especially in the operation
management of biological recognition module business of the
Group. Mr. Hu was appointed as an executive Director of the
Group since 8 July 2016. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu held
various positions in VTech (Shenzhen) Electronic Limited ({8 5 &
BFEMS CFRY) BR/AT), a company principally engaged in
manufacturing of telecommunication products, from July 1998 to
November 2002, where he last served as a mechanical structure
engineer and was primarily responsible for the mechanical design.
From November 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Hu held various
positions in Tianjin Amphenol Kae Co., Ltd. (R:Z2LZEHYEBEE
FAMRAT), a manufacturer of connector products, where he
last served as a sales engineer and was primarily responsible
for maintaining the relationship with existing customers and the
expansion of sales network. From July 2004 to November 2009,
Mr. Hu held various positions in Van Telecom Limited (M 2274
BIRAT), a company principally engaged in manufacturing and
sales of precise connectors, where he last served as the sales
director and was primarily responsible for sales management
and product planning. Mr. Hu received his bachelor’s degree in
engineering, majoring in mechanical design and manufacture from
the Xi'an University of Science and Technology (FAZ#l# K &),
previously known as Xi'an Mining Institute (FEZ B2 23 %) , in July
1998.

Mr. Hu is also a director and the general manager of QTech Ever
Capital and QTech Biological Recognition, each of which is a
subsidiary of the Company.
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Mr. Fan Fugiang GEE38) (‘Mr. Fan”), aged 43, was appointed
as an executive Director of the Company since 15 December
2020. Mr. Fan was a member of the Risk Management Committee
of the Company since 13 November 2014. Mr. Fan is primarily
responsible for financial management, securities affairs and risk
control functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan held various
positions in Heyuan branch of the Bank of China, a stateowned
bank principally engaged in providing a range of corporate
banking, personal banking, investment banking and other services,
from July 1996 to June 2011 and last served as the general
manager of Heyuan High-tech Zone sub-branch of Bank of China
and vice general manager of the corporate department of Heyuan
branch of Bank of China, where he was primarily responsible for
the grant of the credit facilities, risks management and international
settlement. From May 2013 to April 2014 and July 2011 to April
2014,
financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK, and was primarily

respectively, Mr. Fan served as the assistant to the chief

responsible for legal compliance matters and risk control. Mr. Fan
received a professional certificate from Guangdong International
Finance College (BREMEEBIZ 2 located in the PRC, in July
1996, majoring in international finance. He received a university
diploma from the Central Party School of Guangdong Provincial
Committee (FHEEREZEZER) located in the PRC,
2008, majoring in public management, and received a graduation
certificate from South China University of Technology GERgIE T
KE)in July 2019, majoring in administrative management. Mr.

in January

Fan was one of the joint company secretaries of the Company
before his resignation on 21 November 2017. Mr. Fan was also the
chief financial officer of the Company since 8 July 2016 before his
resignation on 15 December 2020.

Mr. Fan is also a director of QTech Ever Capital, the secretary of
board and chief financial officer of Kunshan QT China, and the
director and general manager of Zhuhai Q Technology Limited
B B ME FRELBRAB)and Shenzhen Q Technology
Limited CRIITH LIXMEFREABRAQF), each of which is a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Fan received the Top Ten Distinguished Employees (+1£& T)
Award of Heyuan branch of Bank of China for the years 2005 and
2006 and the Innovative Employee Award (43 T %) by Heyuan
branch of Bank of China for the year 2007.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Ping Keung (&%) (‘Mr. Ko”"), aged 70, JP, was
appointed an independent non-executive Director (the “INED”),
a member of each of the audit committee (‘Audit Committee”)
of the Board, the remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) of the Board, the Nomination Committee and the
chairman of the Risk Management Committee of the Company
on 31 May 2017. Mr. Ko holds a Bachelor of Science (Honours)
degree from The University of Hong Kong, and holds a Master
of Science degree and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of California at Berkeley. He is an Adjunct Professor of
Peking University and Tsinghua University and Emeritus Professor
of Electrical & Electronic Engineering and the former Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr. Ko was the Vice Chairman of Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science Department of the University
of California at Berkeley from 1991 to 1993 and a member of
Bell Labs in USA from 1982 to 1984. Mr. Ko is an independent
nonexecutive director of each of Henderson Investment Limited
(Stock code: 0097), Henderson Land Development Company
Limited (Stock code: 0012) and VTech Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 00303) respectively, all of which are Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Ko is also a director of Beken Corporation (1§85
LE RS (E8) IR1DABR/AF]) (stock code: 603068.SH) (“Beken”),
which is a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (#1 X #) (“Mr. Chu”), aged 51,
appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration

was

Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 13 November
2014. From June 1997 to June 2002, Mr. Chu served at various
ERERHBRA

3]), which is a provider of computing devices, testing and skilled

positions in Hewlett-Packard Taiwan Ltd. (3

solutions, and last served as a sales expert and was primarily
responsible for overseeing its sales department in respect of the
computing devices. From May 2002 to August 2004, Mr. Chu
served as the investment manager of CDIB Venture Capital Corp.
(PEMERELRERMBRAB), which was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Development Financial Holding Corporation (57
ERESMIZERK M BRAF) (Stock Code: 2883) listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange and was primarily engaged in enterprise
operations, management, and consulting services. Mr. Chu was
primarily responsible for exploring and assessing investment
plans and post-investment management. In January 2014, Mr.
Chu established WK Innovation Ltd. (E:8IHFRMDBRAR),

a venture capital firm, and served as the managing director and
acted as its chairman and chief executive officer, where he was
primarily responsible for its strategic planning. From August 2004
to January 2014, Mr. Chu served as the general manager of WK
A2 E > previously known asiZ sl Al
KRERMBRRAT), a venture capital firm. Mr. Chu was primarily

Technology Fund (i

responsible for exploring and assessing investment plans and
post-investment management. He was the legal representative
of Litmax Electronics Inc. (S BRRB B RA R » Stock code:
4995) and Raydium Semi-conductor Corporation (it &S 11 A
FR/AF] > Stock code: 3592), each of which is listed on the Taiwan
Cretai Securities Market (8755 1BZ2E B H0) . Mr. Chu is also
a director of Beken (stock code: 603068.SH), which is a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and was an independent
director of Chicony Electronics Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2385), which
is a company listed on the Taipei Exchange.
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Mr. Chu received his bachelor of science degree in electrical
engineering from the National Tsing-Hua University in Taiwan
in July 1993 and his master’s degree in management from the
National Cheng-Kung University in Taiwan in June 1995. Mr. Chu
served as an executive council member of the Taiwan Private
Equity & Venture Capital Association (BZAIEXEMEREAR
) from May 2008 to May 2010.

Mr. Ng Sui Yin (RIFE) (‘Mr. Ng”), aged 52, was appointed as
an INED, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
each of the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee of the Company on 13 November 2014. Mr. Ng
was previously the financial controller of Beijing Gas Blue Sky
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 6828) and the financial controller
and company secretary of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 0894), each of which is a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ng has extensive experience in the areas
of finance, audit, tax, bankruptcy, information technology and
business development. Mr. Ng has been admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since April 2001
and April 2009, respectively. Mr. Ng was registered as a certified
tax advisor of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong in July 2010. He
received his Honours Diploma in Accounting from the Hong Kong
Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and Master’'s degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from City University of Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

Mr. Cai Yun (“Mr. Cai”), aged 37, was appointed as chief financial
officer of the Company since December 2020 and is primary
responsible for the finance management of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group in April 2017, he served as a cost accountant
in Fulinmun Food Co., Ltd. of the COFCO Corporation from July
2005 to December 2006, where he was primarily responsible
From December 2006 to
March 2017, Mr. Cai held various positions in Suzhou Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd.,
where he was mainly responsible for financial control, analysis and

for cost accounting and cost control.
and last served as a financial manager,

the preparation of the annual budget. Mr. Cai received a bachelor
degree in management from Yanzhou University (35 K22,
majoring in accounting. Mr. Cai has been a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March 2021.

Mr. Cheng Zhihua (22 1E) (“Mr. Cheng”),
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 21
November 2017. Mr. Cheng graduated from the Jinan University
(R A2)with a bachelor of accounting degree in 1999 and
further obtained a master of business administration degree from

aged 45, was

the Jinan University in 2010. Mr. Cheng is also a member of the
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is currently
a financial director of a private company in Hong Kong and has
more than 20 years of experience in handling accounting and
compliance matters at various companies and accounting firms in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Cheng has been a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 2017.
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Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Ef#35&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 49,
director and chief executive officer of Kunshan QT China (an

is a

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), he is primarily
responsible for operation and business management of Kunshan
QT China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as a
supervisor of the quality assurance department of SAE Magnetics
(REMBEFR),
October 1995 to September 1996, where he was primarily

a computer hardware manufacturer, from

responsible for product quality assurance. From August 1998 to
January 2005, he served as the sales assistant manager of the
Shenzhen office of Samsung Electro-Mechanics (H.K.) Limited
(ZEEH® (F8) ARRE

components, where he was primarily responsible for the sales of

), a manufacturer of electronic

the electronic components. From February 2005 to April 2014 and
December 2005 to April 2014, respectively, Mr. Wang served as
the chief financial officer of Shenzhen CK and Heyuan CK where
he was primarily responsible for audit management and budgeting.
Mr. Wang was appointed as a Director of the Company since
5 May 2014 and was re-designated as an executive Director of
the Company since 13 November 2014 before his resignation
on 15 December 2020. Mr. Wang was also appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 8 July 2016 before
his resignation on 15 December 2020. Mr. Wang received his
bachelor’s degree in engineering, majoring in fluid machinery and
engineering, from the Sichuan University of Science and Technology
(P91 TZE2B%)in June 1995. Mr. Wang is the step-brother of
Mr. He.

Mr. Wang is also a director of Kunshan QT Hong Kong, Q
Singapore QT and
India QT, and a director and the general manager of QTech

Technology Korea Limited, QT International,

Optoelectronic and Chengdu Q Technology Limited ("Chengdu
QT") ,each of which is a subsidiary of the Company.

FREAE (XKL 495 BAER
BZzEEE2ENBATSELERKTE
ZEERBEE TE2EFELEHRF
BB EESEE - NMALERFA
FRER—AABREFETRE-—NANAR
FARAEBREBEHANEHREMAE
FRETEERIMLEIE T ECEE
mMEERFZ-R—AANFENREZZE
ThE-B RECBEFEFRES=
EBH (FB) BRQERIIMEREAE
BHEKE TEASHEBFEMF-
R _ETRFZ Hi_ﬁ Efﬁﬂﬁ
A_EERF+_RE_Z-—NFMN
A EREDRIEER illﬁ—ﬂi’zﬂ/}_ﬁ
MM GRE T EEaFAEENRTE
B-ERENZE-—NFRARLHES
ERETRBDEFTN T —MFE+—
A+=H#FEATESF BEE_ZT_F
F+B+EHBE -EXREEBENC
T-RELtANBEEEXRATITH
MYy EE_T_TFE+_A+HH#
FeoERER—NAEF/AERFMII
TEERNIRBESTRA TERERK
WKk IR ERERMITENES -

FEETZREARENEATE LI
Z7# ~Q Technology Korea Limited~ &
HEE -FMEERRNEEHRNE
Eo Uk BEsROCEME T3 E F R
KEBERAB (THHES T i) BE E RARLK
o

200555 Btk E) BRAE 47



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREILE ZEEF

Mr. Liu Tongquan (2145 4) (“Mr. Liu”), aged 43, is a director and
the vice general manager of Kunshan QT China. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the capacity planning, production planning and
scheduling, process engineering, development of automation and
production management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served
as a production manager of Kunshan Giantplus Optoelectronics
Ltd. (BUZEEAERMBRAE), an LCD
display manufacturer, from July 2002 to November 2007, where

Technology Co.,

he was primarily responsible for production management. Mr.
Liu is also a director of QTech Optoelectronic, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Liu received his bachelor’s degree
in engineering, majoring in measurement and control technology
and instrumentation, and his bachelor’'s degree in economics
from Wuhan University (/£ AE2)in June 2002 and July 2002,
respectively.

$3H75) (“Ms. Le”), aged 37, is the director of
human resources and administration and the chairlady of board of

Ms. Le Yanfang (%

supervisors of Kunshan QT China. Ms. Le is primarily responsible
for management of human resources and administration of
Kunshan QT China. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Le served
as the head of the human resources department in AVCON
Ltd. CEEEREMBRMHBRAE),
a company principally engaged in the provision of the multi-media

Information Technology Co.,

communication system solutions, and was primarily responsible for
formulating human resources policies and human resources affairs
from October 2007 to December 2010. Ms. Le is also a supervisor
of QTech Optoelectronic. Ms. Le received her graduation certificate
from Jiujiang Vocational and Technical College (JL LE%ZER;
fiTE2B%) in June 2004, majoring in electronic technology and
application. Ms. Le completed an online programme in human
resources management provided by Nankai University (&5 A Z2)
in January 2012.
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Mr. Liu Tilun (23@&
Kunshan QT China. He is mainly responsible for the management

# &) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 52, is the vice president of

of R&D, trail production and mass production processes of new
products, new materials and new technologies. Mr. Liu has more
than 17 years’ experience in optical and electronic field. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as an engineer in charge,
project manager, senior project manager and project director of
opto-mechanical department successively in Liteon Technology
Co., Ltd.,
consumption image department of Kinpo Electronics, Inc. from
May 1998 to May 2003. Mr. Liu was graduated from National
Taipei Industrial Technology College (NTIT) in 1993, majored in

and held position of opto-mechanical engineer of

mechanical engineering.

Mr. Deng Wangshe (“Mr. Deng”), aged 45,
manufacturing director of QT Biological Recognition, an indirect

is a director and

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Deng is primary
responsible for production and operation management of biological
recognition module business. From August 1997 to July 2003,
Mr. Deng successively served as a production line leader of
Dongguan Chang An Group Sense Electronics Factory (R E L
WS B F M) and a manufacturing supervisor of Rockridgesound
Ltd. RERAIBFRZBRAA),
was primarily responsible for production management of portable
audio, VCD, DVD, digital radio and PAD. From August 2003 to
September 2014, Mr. Deng held various position in Dongguan

Technology Co., where he

Primax Electronic & Telecommunication Products Ltd. (EEE

FEMNERARAT) >and at last served as a production
manager, where he was primarily responsible for the production
and operation management of mobile phone camera modules.
Mr. Deng joined the Group since September 2014, he served as
a senior production manager from September 2014 to March
2016, and was promoted to manufacturing director in April 2016,
where he was primarily responsible for production and operation
management of biological recognition module business. Mr. Deng
received a graduation certificate from Changde Junior College
(BEEEZEHERER) (now renamed as “Huna University of Arts
and Science GHIE X IEEPR)” ), majoring in applied electronic
technology. In October 2019, Mr. Deng admitted to Hunan
University of Technology and Business G#iE L@ AZ)and is
majoring in business administration.
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Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL OFFERING

Details of use of proceeds from Global Offering of the Company
are set out in the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM GLOBAL
OFFERING” in the Management Discussion and Analysis on page
36 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF
SHARES

Details of use of proceeds from placing of Shares are set out in
the “USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF SHARES” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 36 to 37 of this
annual report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sales of mid-to-high end camera
modules and fingerprint recognition modules.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five accounting years are set out on pages 6 to 8 of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 202 to 203.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 9 to 23 of this
report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 9 to 23. Also, the financial risk management objectives
and policies of the Group and particulars of important events
affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 24 to 39 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the Group Five-year Financial Summary
on pages 6 to 8 of this annual report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies, relationships with its
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations
which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in the
Chairman’s Statement, the Management Discussion and Analysis,
the Corporate Governance Report, the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report and this Directors’ Report on pages 9 to
23, pages 24 to 39, pages 105 to 134, pages 135 to 191, and
pages 50 to 104 respectively. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers.
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FINAL DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 of HK5.0 cents (equivalent
to approximately RMB4.2 cents) per share to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Thursday, 3 June 2021. Subject to the approval by the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or around Friday, 18 June 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividends for the Year.

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to attend the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from 18 May
2021 to 24 May 2021 (both days inclusive). All transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 17 May 2021.

For the purpose of determining the eligibility to receive the final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 1 June 2021 to 3 June 2021 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. All transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31
May 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the trading between the Group and its major
customers and suppliers were as follows:

The Group’s purchases from its largest supplier accounted for
approximately 15.1% (2019: approximately 21.6%) of the total
purchases of the Group whilst the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 52.0% (2019: approximately 50.4%)
of the total purchases of the Group.

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
30.1% (2019: approximately 36.4%) of the total turnover of the
Group whilst the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 95.9% (2019: approximately 92.2%) of the total
turnover of the Group.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or any shareholders of
the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial
interest in any of the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements of
the Company.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company did not issue any
shares or debentures during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company subject to the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate amount of the Company’s reserves (including
share premium and retained profits) available for distribution
to the equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB1,372,327,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,287,535,000).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) N
Mr. Wang Jiangiang
(resigned from his position as an executive Director
on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Hu Sanmu
Mr. Fan Fugiang ™
(appointed as an executive Director on 15 December 2020)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang M®
Mr. Ko Ping Keung NARM
Mr. Ng Sui Yin AfM

A~ member of audit committee of the Company

R member of remuneration committee of the Company

M member of risk management committee of the Company
N member of nomination committee of the Company

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Fan Fugiang (appointed as an executive Director
on 15 December 2020) will hold office until the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

In accordance with articles 84(1) and 84(2) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. He Ningning and Mr. Ng Sui Yin will retire by
rotation and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

During the Year, other than Mr. Wang Jiangiang’s resignation as an
executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer (please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2020 for
details), no Director resigned from his/her office or refused to stand
for re-election to his/her office due to reasons relating to the affairs
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 40 to 49 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with our Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commencing
from the month in which the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office for Mr. Hu
Sanmu is 36 months commencing from 8 July 2016; the term
of office for Mr. Fan Fugiang is 36 months commencing from 15
December 2020.0n 2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang
Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts
with the Company for a term of 36 months commencing from 2
December 2017. On 25 May 2020, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang
Jiangiang and Mr. Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts
with the Company for a term of 36 months commencing from 1
June 2020. On 15 December 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang resigned
his office as an executive Director due to internal arrangement of
the Group (for details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 December 2020). On 26 March 2021, Mr. Fan
entered into a supplemental contract with the Company to revise
the director's emolument. The service contract of each executive
Director may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other party.
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Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, pursuant to which the term of office for each of Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin is 3 years commencing from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the Shares were
initially listed on the Stock Exchange; and Mr. Ko Ping Keung'’s
term of office is three years commencing from 31 May 2017. On 2
December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin signed
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of 36 months
commencing from 2 December 2017. On 25 May 2020, Mr. Ko
Ping Keung, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng Sui Yin renewed
letters of appointment with the Company for a term of 36 months
commencing from 1 June 2020.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, its controlling shareholder or subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares (in
relation to the positions held pursuant to equity derivatives) and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be maintained by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO; or otherwise to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(a) Interest in the Shares of the Company

EFREFEITHRASRRKRS 1
R RIESFHHER 2 Em

KRB _ZBF+"RB=+—H F&RF
EENETBTHRAERERFRHEME
BZE (EEREBEOFEER
RAE R (15555 RETEFF1) SBXV
2B) By AR KRG (BREBERATE
TEMPBENFEERM) RESFTE
B2 REES R EFROIEXVEB R R
877 EBHYIR X R & A A B) K Bt 32 PR BY
SCERIC 58 S5 IR R B AR B S5 352E1 B K A&
ANBHEFNELMA ; WIRE L HRRY
i +FATE EHETAESETES
RHRESTR (MRETR])) BAE A
NE B PTHIRm AT

(@) REQBRMZER

Approximate

Number of percentage
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ issued of the issued
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares held Position held Shares
(Note 2)
FriFZ
B IETH 2#17 WEBET
AB#% B1ip/ #mltE RHBE HE RHpEDE
(Hrzt2)
He Ningning Interest of a controlled 752,491,000 Long position 64.19%
AEE corporation (Note 1)  #HA
REFEER (Hiz#1)
He Ningning Beneficial owner 980,000 Long position 0.08%
fEE EREEA ga
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 2,743,000 Long position 0.23%
=K BaEBA (Note 3) W&
(H15£3)
Ko Ping Keung Beneficial owner 200,000 Long position 0.02%
R Bm#EBA 0=}
Fan Fugiang Beneficial owner 2,333,000 Long position 0.20%
EER BaEBA (Note 4)  3R&
(Hizt4)
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Notes:

Mr. He Ningning, an executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, is the sole beneficial owner of QT Investment which
owned approximately 64.19% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2020. Under Chapter XV of the
SFO, Mr. He Ningning is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by QT Investment.

The percentage represents the number of Shares divided by
1,172,250,680 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2020.

On 1 April 2021, an aggregate of 201,600 Shares were issued
to Mr. Hu Sanmu pursuant to the exercise of 201,600 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 16 September 2020, at an exercise price of
HK$9.22 per share. Since 1 April 2021, Mr. Hu Sanmu has been
the beneficial owner of an aggregate of 2,944,600 Shares of the
Company.

On 1 April 2021, an aggregate of 252,000 Shares were issued
to Mr. Fan Fugiang pursuant to the exercise of 252,000 share
options granted to him by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme on 16 September 2020, at an exercise price of
HK$9.22 per share. Since 1 April 2021, Mr. Fan Fugiang has
been the beneficial owner of an aggregate of 2,585,000 Shares
of the Company.
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(b) Interest in Underlying Shares (b) PRMERARRD ZHE=
Approximately
percentage of
the underlying
Shares over
the Company’s
Number of issued
underlying Shares M2
Shares in (assuming
respect of that the share
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ the share options are
Chief Executive Nature of interest options granted Position held exercised in full)
MR
ERRABTEHT
Ba{p itz
B RERH BAEat
BE TETH B tEn (e 142
AE#H B/ EmHE HRkHHE &KE E2HiTE)
Hu Sanmu Beneficial owner 630,000 Long position 0.05%
=K BmEBA (Note 1and 3) W&
(Hta#1%3)
Fan Fugiang Beneficial owner 630,000 Long position 0.05%
BER EREAEA (Note 1 and 3) A
(Hizt1%3)
Notes: et

1. Details of the above share options have been disclosed in the
following sections headed “Share Option Scheme” and note 26

to the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

2. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares
divided by 1,172,250,680 issued Shares of the Company in
total as at 31 December 2020.

3. On 1 April 2021, Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang exercised
201,600 and 252,000 share options granted to each of them
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme on 16
September 2020 respectively, at an exercise price of HK$9.22
per share.
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(c) Interest in Associated Corporation

Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

(c) MHEBERZ

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of shares in

Name of Directors/ Name of associated Capacity/Nature issued shares associated

Chief Executive corporation of interest held corporation

WEEECE

BEx FETH FriFZ B 817 B#1TkR7

AE#H FE B B 4 7 B,/ EEHE R & E Bt

He Ningning QT Investment Beneficial owner 2 100%
AIZEE OHEE BEmEAA

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, and underlying shares (in respect
of positions pursuant to equity derivatives) or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange or as recorded in the register
referred to in the SFO or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the sections headed "Connected
Transactions" and “Continuing Connected Transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Shareholder had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors were aware
of, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to
equity derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO as follows:

Capacity/Nature

Name of Shareholder Long/short position of interest

REREE E/ e

51/t iR

FTERREDIKE

RIZEZZF+_RA=+—H HEn
BEEMAM FIAL BGEARBES
REZBITHRAEI) KRG HBRERD
(EBRERATETILAMFEENFA
B8 FEAXBNESFRAEHRE
EIMERARFTHEEFNELMAZ
EmIkaWT !

Approximate
percentage of
total issued
Shares in

the Company
(Note 1)
ESECF NG|
B#1TkR7
BEEDL
(Hrat1)

Number of
Shares held

FrsiRn B

QT Investment Long position

E#RRKRE

L5}

/ﬂﬂm}

Note:

1. The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares divided
by 1,172,250,680 issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31
December 2020.

2. Mr. He Ningning is directly interested in the entire interest of Q
Technology Investment, which owned approximately 64.19% of the
issued Shares of the Company in total as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2020.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the schemes disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” below, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that each Director, secretary
or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution
of the duties in their respective offices. The Company has taken
out and maintained appropriate insurance to cover potential legal
actions against its Directors.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Company has not come into
any permitted indemnity provision with the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group or
existed during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group had not made charitable or other
donations of HK$10,000 and/or above.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR

Saved as disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 24 to 39 and above, there were no other important
events affecting the Group that had occurred after 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five individuals
with the highest emoluments for the Year are set out in notes 6
and 7 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 14 December 2020, Mr. Ng Sui Yin, an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, resigned his position as the
company secretary and the chief financial officer of Man Yue
Technology Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 00894).

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other important changes
in the information of Directors required to be disclosed in this
report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 13 November 2014, the Company adopted the pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and
Share Option Scheme and granted a total of 59,935,000 share
options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the eligible
participants with an aim to reward their contribution to the Group
made or possibly made. The Company also granted an aggregate
of 71,682,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme to
the eligible participants: () on 26 October 2016, the Company
granted an aggregate of 39,425,000 Share Options 2016 to 165
eligible participants; (i) on 9 June 2017, the Company granted a
total of 8,083,000 Share Options 2017 to 48 eligible participants;
(ii) on 7 December 2018, the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 Share Options 2018 to 83 eligible participants; (iv) on
21 June 2019, the Company granted a total of 11,454,000 Share
Options 2019 to 68 eligible participants; and (v) on 16 September
2020, the Company granted a total of 17,879,600 Share Options
2020 to 119 eligible participants. Details of the schemes are set
out below:

A. Share Option Scheme
1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions that the Eligible
Participants (as defined in paragraph 2 below) had or
may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will provide the Eligible Participants with an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company with a view to
achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and
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(i

attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an

option to the following persons (collectively the “Eligible

Participants”) to subscribe for such number of new

Shares as the Board may determine:

(0

(i

(i)

any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers,
distributors and such other persons who in
the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme and percentage of the total
number of issued Shares as at the date of this report:

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 19 May 2017, an ordinary resolution was passed
by the Shareholders to approve the refreshment of the
maximum number of Shares that may be issued upon
the exercise of all options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to not exceeding 10% of the
total number of Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders of the refreshed
limit. On the date of approving such ordinary resolution
(i,e. on 19 May 2017), the total number of Shares in
issue of the Company was 1,095,597,000 shares,
therefore, the maximum number of Shares relating
to the options that may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company were refreshed to 109,559,700 Shares,
representing approximately 9.27% of total number of
1,181,263,360 Shares in issue on the date of this report
(i.e. on 13 April 2021).
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Maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Option Scheme:

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may
fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including exercised
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue of the Company as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess
of this 1% limit shall be subject to:

(i)  the issue of a circular containing the identity of the
Eligible Participant, the numbers of and terms of
the options to be granted (and options previously
granted to such Eligible Participant), the information
as required under Rules 17.02(2)(d) of and the
disclaimer required under 17.02(4) of, the Listing
Rules; and

(i) the approval of the Shareholders in general meeting
and/or other requirements prescribed under the
Listing Rules from time to time with such Eligible
Participant and his/her close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the
Eligible Participant is a connected person (as
defined in the Listing Rules)) abstaining from voting.
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The period within which the options must be exercised
under Share Option Scheme to subscribe for Shares:

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time in the
period after the date upon which the option is deemed
to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date subject to the provisions for early
termination set out in the Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

There is no minimum period for which an option granted
must be held before it can be exercised unless otherwise
imposed by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments or calls
must or may be made, or loans for such purposes must
be repaid:

Options granted must be taken up by eligible
participants within 21 days of the date of grant, upon
payment of HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities; (i) the average of the
official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.
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10.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme:

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years commenced from 13 November 2014.

The total number of the Share Options 2016:

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (representing approximately
3.78% of the 1,041,771,000 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 26 October 2016) and
approximately 3.34% of 1,181,263,360 shares of the
total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 13 April 2021)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 165 Eligible Participants. During the Year, the
Company accepted the applications from 131 grantees
(including two Executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
and Mr. Hu Sanmu) to issue a total of 9,495,480 ordinary
shares to such grantees. A total of 120,720 share
options were lapsed or cancelled as a result of the
personal performance of 8 grantees during the Year. As
at 31 December 2020, none of the Share Options 2016
were outstanding.
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11.

The period within which the Share Options 2016 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

(i)

(i

(i)

upon, among others, the revenue (“Revenue”) of
the Company for the year ending 31 December
2017 increases by not less than 25% as compared
with the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2019 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 25% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive).

Directors’ Report

ESTHS

1M, ZZ—R"EFERENEERN
ITIEHARR ¢

RUENBEREAIRESENS
BARANBEBRZUTAER

171E

() F(HEHPERE) E#E_Z
—t$+ A=+—H
EFERAT ZEERA

(if)

I

(MEEWA) BEEC
T—RFE+-A=+—H
IEFEZEXRAERL
BR25% FIEEZ&RS
40%HERRE (M THEER

BER
BOEB) KRBT —N
FOA—BEZZ-—N\F
+TR=+—HEE (8

BEEMA) AT F17E;

FS(HEPaR) 8222
—N\EFE+ZH=+—HL
FEZEEXEWRAREECZ
T—RNE+_B=+—H
LTFEEXWRAZEES
BERETNENR25% P
BHZEZ30%HERE (7
THAERERBAEH FA
“E-NAFMHB—HEZ
E—-—NE+_B=+—H
HE (BEEEmMABE) I F
7 &

FS(EhaE) 8222
—nfﬁ+_ﬁ:+ ==
FEZEXEWRAREEC
T —RNEFE+_A=+—H
LTFEEXWRAZEES
2 EEE RMER25% 0 BT
BHEZERZ30%HERE (7
THEERBOEH FE
TETEFWMB—HEC
E-_EFE+"_HB=+—H
HE (8EaEmA) o F
7fEe

20205 E#RHL (RE) ARAR

A



Directors’' Report
EFEHRS

12. The basis of determining the exercise price of the Share 12, _E— R NEBREZITHEEN

Options 2016:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2016 under the Share Option Scheme is
HK$4.13 per Share.

18. The total number of the Share Options 2017:

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of
8,083,000 share options (representing approximately
0.74% of the 1,095,597,000 shares of the total number
of issued Shares on the date of grant of the relevant
share options (i.e. on 9 June 2017) and approximately
0.68% of the total number of 1,181,263,360 issued
Shares as at the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April
2021)) under the Share Option Scheme to 48 Eligible
Participants. During the Year, the Company accepted
the applications from 21 grantees to issue a total of
945,600 ordinary shares to these grantees. As at 31
December 2020, none of the Share Options 2017 were
outstanding.
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14. The period within which the Share Options 2017 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

(1)  Share Options One:

()  upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2017 increases by not
less than 25% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive);

(i)  upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2018 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
(both days inclusive); and
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)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive).

(2) Share Options Two:

(M

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2018 increases by not
less than 20% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2017, up to
40% of the share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number) shall be
exercisable during the period from 1 April 2019
to 31 December 2019 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2019 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2017, up to 30% of the share
options granted (rounded down to the nearest
whole number) shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021
(both days inclusive).
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16.

17.

The total number of the Share Options 2018:

On 7 December 2018 the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options (representing approximately
1.12% of the 1,131,722,200 shares of the total
number of issued Shares on the date of grant of the
relevant share options (i.e. on 7 December 2018) and
approximately 1.08% of the 1,181,263,360 shares of
the total number of issued Shares as at the date of this
report (i.e. on 13 April 2021)) under the Share Option
Scheme to 83 Eligible Participants. During the Year,
the Company has accepted the applications from 70
grantees to issue a total of 4,333,600 ordinary shares to
these grantees. A total of 528,000 and 44,800 options
were lapsed or cancelled respectively as a result of the
resignations of 4 staff and the personal performance of 3
staff during the Period. As at 31 December 2020, a total
of 6,189,600 Share Options 2018 were outstanding.

The period within which the Share Options 2018 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

() upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ending 31 December 2019 increases by
not less than 20% as compared with the Revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2018, up to 40%
of the share options granted (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) shall be exercisable during
the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 December 2020
(both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2020 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 December
2021 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 20% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive).

18. The basis of determining the exercise price of the Share

Options 2018:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2018 is HK$4.65 per Share.
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19.

20.

The total number of the Share Options 2019:

On 21 June 2019, the Company granted a total of
11,454,000 share options (representing approximately
1.0% of the total number of 1,141,905,400 issued
Shares on the date of grant of the relevant share options
(i.e. on 21 June 2019) and approximately 0.97% of the
total number of 1,181,263,360 issued Shares as at
the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April 2021)) under the
Share Option Scheme to 68 Eligible Participants. During
the Year, the Share Options 2019 were not exercisable,
and a total of 2,266,000 share options were lapsed as
a result of the resignations of 12 grantees. A total of
4,508,000 Share Options 2019 were outstanding as at
31 December 2020.

The period within which the Share Options 2019 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

() upon, among others, the Revenue of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2020 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than 15%
from the Revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019, up to 40% of the share options granted
(rounded down to the nearest whole number) shall
be exercisable during the period from 1 April 2021
to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive);
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21.

(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2021 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 15% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December
2022 (both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the year
ending 31 December 2022 recording compound
annual growth rate of not less than 15% from the
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019, up
to 30% of the share options granted (rounded down
to the nearest whole number) shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December
2023 (both days inclusive).

Basis of determining the exercise price of the Share
Options 2019:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2019 is HK$6.02 per Share.

21.

Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

iy F(HEPpEHE)BE_Z
——H+”"FA=+—H1L
FEZEXRARBEEC
TE—HE+_RB=+—H
IEFEZEEWRAZEE
BREEEBEARNEIL15%
it 2 & 230%0 IR
(B TFTHEEEELE
g)EBBEB_E_-__F£WAH
—HE_E__F+_A~
—+—BHiE (BEEEM
BH) A1 &

(i) F (Hp8FE)BEZS
::E_f’_ﬁ =+—H81
FEZEXERAREEC
E—NE+_B=+—H
IEFEZEXWAZEE
BHEBEBEARAEMNIS%
FiiEt 2 &%30%ER#
(M THEEEEEE
B)RBZZEZ=FMNA
—HEZ_ZE_=ZF+"A8
—+—HiME (BEEREMm
B) A Fi7fbo

“E-NEEREZTEERN
EEAE !

“E-NEEREMIREE
REMMEVITEEREKR6.028

IT ©

20205 5% EHFHE H) BRAE 79



Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

22.

23.

The total number of the Share Options 2020:

On 16 September 2020, the Company granted a total of
17,879,600 share options (representing approximately
1.683% of the total number of 1,172,250,680 issued
Shares on the date of grant of the relevant share options
(i.e. on 16 September 2020) and approximately 1.51%
of the total number of 1,181,263,360 issued Shares as
at the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April 2021)) under
the Share Option Scheme to 119 Eligible Participants
(including two executive Directors, Mr. Wang Jiangiang
(Note) and Mr. Hu Sanmu). During the Year, the Share
Options 2020 were not exercisable, and a total of
653,200 share options were lapsed as a result of the
resignations of 4 grantees. A total of 17,226,400 share
options were outstanding as at 31 December 2020.

Note:

On 15 December 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang resigned from his
position as an executive director and the chief executive officer
of the Company; and Mr. Fan Fugiang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on the same day, he was
also granted 630,000 Share Options 2020 on 16 September
2020.

The period within which the Share Options 2020 must be
exercised to subscribe for Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manner:

(1) Share Options One:

() upon, among others, the Revenue of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 recording compound annual growth rate
of not less than 25% from the Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2019, up to 40% of
the share options granted shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2021 to 31
December 2021 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2021 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2019, up to 30% of the share
options granted shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2022 to 31 December 2022
(both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2022 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
25% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2019, up to 30% of the share
options granted shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December 2023
(both days inclusive).

(2) Share Options Two:

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue of the
Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 recording compound annual growth rate
of not less than 20% from the Revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2020, up to 40% of
the share options granted shall be exercisable
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 31
December 2022 (both days inclusive);
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(i

(i)

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2022 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020, up to 30% of the share
options granted shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December 2023
(both days inclusive); and

upon, among others, the Revenue for the
year ending 31 December 2023 recording
compound annual growth rate of not less than
20% from the Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020, up to 30% of the share
options granted shall be exercisable during the
period from 1 April 2024 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive).

24. Basis of determining the exercise price of the Share
Options 2020:

The exercise price per Share in respect of the Share
Options 2020 is HK$9.22 per Share.
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B. Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

1.

Purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was a share incentive
scheme established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants (as
defined in paragraph 2 below) had made to the Group.
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme provided the Pre-
IPO Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with a view to achieving
the following purposes:

()  motivate the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants to
optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain relationships
with the Pre-IPO Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the
longterm growth of the Group.

Participants of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Board might, at its discretion, offer to grant an
option to subscribe for such number of new Shares
as the Board might determine to the full-time, key
employees of the Group who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, had contributed to the Company and/or any of
the subsidiaries (the “Pre-IPO Eligible Participants”).
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Total number of Shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The number of Shares in respect of which options were
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
59,935,000 Shares (representing approximately 5.99%
of the total number of issued Shares immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined
in the Prospectus) and approximately 5.07% of the
total number of issued Shares of 1,181,263,360 Shares
as at the date of this report (i.e. on 13 April 2021)).
These options were granted on 13 November 2014 to
subscribe for 59,935,000 Shares. No further options will
be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, as the rights to do so have been terminated.

The period within which the options must be exercised
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to subscribe for
Shares:

The options granted are exercisable within the period as
notified by the Board to each grantee and in accordance
with the following manners:

() up to 50% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2015 and ending on 31
December 2017;

(i)  up to 75% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2016 and ending on 31
December 2017; and

84 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RIEE R AR &R B RES
BRI HEITARRMABEL

BR A HEERBERESEMm
BREZzERETRORHEE
759,935,000 &% BR AR
BRE2EE (EERABKE)
TEREBENEEITRMOBENY
5.99% ki A®HEZH BNZ
T_—FOB+=H) WE#E
TRE1D 48 %81,181,263,3608% A9
HN5.07T%  ZEBRENR_-E
—mWE+—B+=ZHHEETFIU
859,935,000 k10 - B E
ZROBREBEERAREER
ERESTERETHART A
MREZERF WAL

R E AR E A B RS
BB RENSBERMD T
fERAIR

RUENWEREBAINREFEANE
BEAFEANHBRAZUTAR
T

() B-E—HE—HF—H
EE T —t&FE+_AH
—+—HLEFE BERIT
FEREREIBERZ
50%F i B U B& 15 (B 49

BERBOEH ;

iy BZZ—R"F—H8—H
EE_ZE—+tEFE+ A
—t+—HBLEFE > BRI
FEXREREIBERS
75%FT S KR B B 10 R E B
17 15 3 R 30BN B8 B R PR
ERONRMEBE (M THNEE
BREEEY) ;&



(i) up to 100% of the Shares that are subject to the
option so granted to him/her less the number
of Shares in respect of which the option has
been exercised or lapsed (rounded down to the
nearest whole number) at any time during the year
commencing on 1 January 2017 and ending on 31
December 2017.

Each option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable during the years when such
option becomes vested.

As at the date of this report, none of share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price per Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is RMBO0.4 per Share.

Except for the above, the principal terms of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, which were confirmed
and approved by resolutions in writing of all of the
Shareholders passed on 13 November 2014, were
substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

During the Year, none of share options granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme had been exercised
or remained outstanding, and the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme had lapsed accordingly.
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Details of changes during the Year in share options granted under BB EIFFEHEBRENERN ZEE)
the Share Option Scheme are as follows: SEIEAT

Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

BRESRZEBRAYE
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited asat
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020
RIBZ8E RIZZEE
-A-B +ZR=+-H
HATTEN ER HAITEH
] EHAH {688 Bk FEARH RERGE RERGEH 5/ 8% i
Directors
g2
Wang Jiangiang 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 483,600 - (483,600) "o - - -
“The period within which the Share
Options 2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on pages 71
k% “Z-REtAZHAR FERENECT-AERRENDE 483,600 - (483,600) #4" - - -
RITERRIEE
Hu Sanmu 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 360,000 - (360,000) "= 1 - - -
“The period within which the Share
Options 2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on pages 71
#ZK ZZ-REFACERE FEHENEIZ S EBRENIE 360,000 - (360,000) 71 - - -
RiTRARIEE
Hu Sanmu 16 September 2020 please refer to the paragraph under - 630,000 - - - 630,000
“The period within which the Share Note 6
Options 2020 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (1) Share
Options One” on pages 80 to 81
#=K “ECEEARTAR FOMBEHECESEEREN - 630,000 - - - 630,000
FERMITESBR. (1) BRE—) i
L3
Fan Fugiang 16 September 2020 please refer to the paragraph under - 630,000 - - - 630,000
“The period within which the Share Note 667
Options 2020 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (1) Share
Options One” on pages 80 to 81
B8R “ECEEARTAR FOMBEHECESEEREN - 630,000 - - - 630,000
SEROTEER: (1) BRE-) Hiek7
L3
Directors (in total) 843,600 1,260,000 (843,600) - - 1,260,000
EZ(53) 843,600 1,260,000 (843,600) - - 1,260,000
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Number of underlying Shares comprising share options

WEESRZENRINE
Options Options
Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Cancelled Forfeited as at
1 January during during during during 31 December
Category Date of grant Exercise period 2020 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2020
KIBZEE RIEZEE
~A-8 +ZA=+-8
HATTEN RER HAITEH
] HHAH {688 Bk RERRY RERGE REAEH ESi Vel g
Employees 26 October 2016 please refer to the paragraph under 8,772,600 - (8,651,880) "¢ - (120,720) -
“The period within which the Share
Options 2016 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on pages 71
&8 “E-AETACTAR FERENMEIC R ERREND 8,772,600 - (8,651,880 % - (120,720) -
ROTEARIBE
Employees Share Options One 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under 945,600 - (945,600) &2 - - -
“The period within which the Share
Options 2017 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (1) Share
Options One” on pages 73 to 74
B8 (BRE-) “3-tEANA FRRENEME St EBREN 945,600 - (045,600 2 - - -
TERGTESER (1) BRE-)
18
Employees Share Options Two 9 June 2017 please refer to the paragraph under - - - - - -
“The period within which the Share
Options 2017 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (2) Share
Options Two" on pages 74 to 75
B8 (BRED) “Z-tE7ANR FEREEE CE-LEBREN - - - - - -
TERATEER | (2) BREZ
B
Employees 7 December 2018 please refer to the paragraph under 11,096,000 - (4,333,600) 1262 - (672,800) 6,189,600
“The period within which the Share Note 4
Options 2018 must be exercised to
subscrie for Shares” on pages 76 to
7
B8 ZZ-\E+ZAtH FEHEE6ETECE-\ERRED 11,096,000 - (4,333,600) 7= - (672,800) 6,189,600
DRBHTEER&E iz
Employees 21 June 2019 please refer to the paragraph under 6,774,000 - - - (2,266,000) 4,508,000
“The period within which the Share Note &
Options 2019 must be exercised to
subscribe for Shares” on pages 78 to
79
&8 “Z-n%7AZ+-A FEHFTOEVECE-NEBREN 6774000 - - - (2,266,000) 4,508,000
DRBHTEER&E Mg
Employees Share Options One 16 September 2020 please refer to the paragraph under - 11,359,600 - - (303,200) 11,086,400
“The period within which the Share Note 647
Options 2017 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (1) Share
Options One” on pages 80 to 81
B8 (ke “ETEENATAA FEEENEECEITERREN - 11,359,600 - - (303,200) 11,086,400
DERNAEER: (1) BRE-) f6R7
L3
Employees Share Options Two 16 September 2020 please refer to the paragraph under - 5,260,000 - - (350,000) 4,910,000
“The period within which the Share
Options 2017 must be exercised
to subscribe for Shares: (2) Share
Options Two™ on pages 81 to 82
B8 (BEED Z22EFARTRA FEHE0IEQE S RERREN - 5,260,000 - - (350,000 4910000
DERNTEER: (2) BREZ)
B
Employees in tota) 27588200 16,619,600 (13931,080) - (3612,720) 26,664,000
B8 (B%) 27,588,200 16,619,600 (13931,080) - (3612,720) 26,664,000
Total 28,431,800 17,879,600 (14,774,680) - (3,612,720) 21,924,000
&3 28,431,800 17,879,600 (14,774,680) - (3,612,720) 27,924,000
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Notes:

On 2 April 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang exercised 483,600 share
options, and Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 360,000 share options, and a
total of 7,957,230 share options were exercised by the employees
on the same date. The exercisable price per Share was HK$4.13.
The closing market price of the immediately preceding business
day before the date on which the share options were exercised
was HK$8.45 per Share. On 25 May 2020, a total of 694,650 share
options were exercised by the employees. The exercisable price per
Share was HK$4.13. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$9.50 per Share.

On 2 April 2020, a total of 426,000 share options were exercised
by the employees. The exercisable price per Share was HK$6.22.
The closing market price of the immediately preceding business
day before the date on which the share options were exercised
was HK$8.45 per Share. On 25 May 2020, a total of 519,600 share
options were exercised by the employees. The exercisable price per
Share was HK$6.22. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share options
were exercised was HK$9.50 per Share.

On 2 April 2020, a total of 3,648,800 share options were exercised
by the employees. The exercisable price per Share was HK$4.65.
The weighted average closing price immediately before the date on
which the share options were exercised was HK$8.45 per Share. On
25 May 2020, a total of 684,800 share options were exercised by
the employees. The exercisable price per Share was HK$4.65. The
weighted average closing price immediately before the date on which
the share options were exercised was HK$9.50 per Share.

On 1 April 2021, a total of 3,087,000 share options were exercised
by the employees. The exercisable price per share was HK$4.65.
The closing market price of the immediately preceding business
day before the date on which the share options were exercised was
HK$15.82 per Share.

On 1 April 2021,
exercised by the employees. The exercisable price per share

a total of 1,743,000 share options were

was HK$6.02. The closing market price of the immediately
preceding business day before the date on which the share
options were exercised was HK$15.82 per Share.

88 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RIZ_ZTFMAZH > TEBEETE
483,60017 FE B& 1 » 83 = A JL £ 97 /360,000
HERE > REBEE S H17(7,957,2301%
BRE SRITEERB41SET REER
BETEEHA—EEXANERKTER
845 M BT FHAZ+AHH EE
1716694,65010 B » ERITEENA
4138 REEREETHEERR —EE
X BEMERUTER9.50/87T

Cl/\

RZE_ZEMA_H BREAGHTRE
426,00017 fE 1 > B IRTTEBEE R6.2278
o REBEREETEEAN —AEEXAN
BRINTERB4SET - N _E-_FFHA
—+HEEEGHITES19,600( Bk E:
BRITEERRD6.228T BIEHEREET
FEHM—EZEEANEGRIHER9.508

IT °©

RZIEZZEWRME_H EEGHTHE
3,648,80010 fE e 1 » 1T BB 54.6578
T BREEREETEZEHA —EEXAN
SRBTEASAEBIT - N_ZE_TFHA
“+H B BE&H-ITES4,8001 B -
EBRITHEERBL658T RIFHEREET
FEHA—EEEANERITER9.50%

JT ©

RZIZE-_—FMB—HBH BEE&HTE
3,087,00017 HE e 1 - G R 1TE1E1& 54.6578
T REREREETEEHA—EEELN
SR HEA15.828 T

AN — B

B —FWMNA—H O EBE&EHITE
1,743,20017 G #E - B IR 1T B8 46.0278
o REEREETEEEA—EEERN
SR THER15.828 T



6. On 1 April 2021,
Mr. Fan Fugiang exercised 252,000 share options; and a total of

Mr. Hu Sanmu exercised 201,600 share options,

3,728,280 share options were exercised by the employees. The
exercisable price per share was HK$9.22. The closing market price of
the immediately preceding business day before the date on which the
share options were exercised was HK$15.82 per Share.

7. On 15 December 2020, Mr. Wang Jiangiang resigned from his
position as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company, and he was granted 750,000 Share Options 2020
on 16 September 2020; and Mr. Fan Fugiang was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on the same day, he was also
granted 630,000 Share Options 2020 on 16 September 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The annual results of the
Group for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
which comprises all the three INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, being
the chairman, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain related party transactions as set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements also constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules, and are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the related
party transactions constitutes a continuing connected transaction
or connected transaction as defined under the Listing Rules. The
Disclosure of those certain related party transactions has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

6. MITEZ—FHB—H MH=ARKETE
201,60017 f& i 4% > S8 &= 38 Se £ 171$252,000
MEERRE ; 1A HEE & H£17163,728,28017
BB - B RITHENRA.228 7T BB
RECTEEHR—EEXANERKTES
15.8278 7z ©

7. RIZTEZHFE+ZBTHEB THMILER
AERRBRTESRITHABHBE ERZ
T _TFEHA+/NHERET50,0000 ZF 2
SEERE REE CERtEESZTA
RABRTEE ETMR T ZTFNA
+7NHIE#630,0001 —E _ZFRERRE

RBE « & E O] EhsEss

RAEFER > AATHE MK ELF
BMERE HENBOEARAFTZ EHE
o

BENERY

KRB BB RE R L AR R &%+
By b % B8 57 B Z 57 BMR S B AL & 1%
LZEE AEEFXFEZE2FXEDK
HEBEZZEEER MBZEEEH=
LEIUFATEFEN BERIFEE L
£(ER) SRAFTEMIRIFRE

EQ@Q%EZF&"\EE@ 7\_)&%

RAFE NP BRKRMEI2RE
WETHEBMAOXZRE LHRAITE
RAEADFEZZRNFERERLS * &
ARBETRAUBTHATRARE SR
?EZE% BRSSPI EE & S o 1 4 A

RZBHETRATE RN ER

REGVEBIF ZEETEAERR
%ZT&’E&WE T EHREE+HOASE
MIRERTE -

20205 E#RHL (RE) ARAR

89



Directors’ Report
EFTHRS

Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has certain connected transactions
which were exempted from the circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject to the reporting,
annual review and announcement requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those transactions are set
out below:

Property lease agreements entered into by QT Biological
Recognition, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”)

QT Biological Recognition, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into property lease agreements (the “New
Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement”) with Van Telecom
PRC on 27 November 2020, pursuant to which, Van Telecom
PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and worker’s
dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu
Province, the PRC (FRET # & B LU & A #519993%) and part of
the additional factories situated on Building No. 3, 1999 Hanpu
Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FEST# & E L
MR EE 10005835 £) to QT Biological Recognition for a term
from 1 December 2020 to 31 December 2022. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 27 November 2020 for
details.

The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to QT Biological
Recognition is its own property, the rent under the New Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement paid by QT Biological
Recognition to Van Telecom PRC was determined with reference
to the market rent for similar premises in the vicinity and on normal
commercial terms, and such prices offered by Van Telecom PRC
shall be no less favourable to QT Biological Recognition than is
available from independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total amounts of rent
and management fees in aggregate under the transactions of New
Van Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement was approximately
RMB611,000 and the maximum amounts of rent and management
fees in aggregate for the Year was RMB665,500.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group has certain continuing connected
transactions which were exempted from the circular and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements, but subject
to the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details of those
transactions are set out below:

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of precise
connectors from Van Telecom PRC

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”)
with Van Telecom PRC, pursuant to which Van Telecom PRC
agreed to supply the precise connectors to the Group for
a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. On 16
December 2016, the Company and Van Telecom PRC renewed
the Purchase Agreement (the “Renewed Van Telecom PRC
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which, Van Telecom PRC
agreed to continue to supply to the Group precise connectors
for a term commencing from 1 January 2017 and expiring on
31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and Van
Telecom PRC entered into a supplemental purchase agreement
(the “Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement”) to
revise the annual caps of transactions under the Renewed Van
Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement for the three years ended 31
December 2020. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 13 July 2018.
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The price for the precise connectors supplied by Van Telecom PRC
under the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement
was determined by reference to the price at which comparable
types of precise connectors that are sold by independent suppliers
to the Group under normal commercial terms in the ordinary
course of its business and such price shall be no less favourable
to the Group than was available from independent suppliers. In
considering whether to purchase from Van Telecom PRC, the
Group sought quotations from at least two independent third
parties offering the same or comparable products. The Group
purchased the precise connectors from Van Telecom PRC if the
price and quality of the products offered were comparable to or
more favourable to the Group than those offered by independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly owned by CK Telecom Inc. (“CK
Telecom”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. He Ningning
(“Mr He”), an executive Director, the Chairman and controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. As
such, Van Telecom PRC is a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB Nil and the annual cap
amount for the Year was RMB Nil. As at 31 December 2020,
the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Purchase Agreement was
expired.
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Property lease agreements entered into by Kunshan QT China,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Van
Telecom PRC

Kunshan QT China, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into two factory building and dormitories
lease agreements (collectively the “Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreements”) with Van Telecom PRC on 23 June 2016
and 16 September 2016 respectively, pursuant to which,
Van Telecom PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings
and worker’s dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road,
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FRET# & B LT EH
£%19995%) to Kunshan QT China for a term up to 31 December
2018. On 16 December 2016, Kunshan QT China renewed the
lease agreements with Van Telecom PRC (the “Renewed Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Van Telecom PRC agreed to continue to lease certain factory
buildings and worker’s dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu
Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (F BT & & ELL &
S8 19995%) to Kunshan QT China for a term commencing from
1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On 13 July
2018, Kunshan QT China and Van Telecom PRC entered into a
supplemental property lease agreement (the “Supplemental Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Van Telecom PRC agreed to lease certain factory buildings and
worker’s dormitories situated on No. 1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC (FEIIER & B L™ E# B 19995%)
and part of the additional factories situated on Building No. 3,
1999 Hanpu Road, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC ([T
Brg B E 8199957357 £) to Kunshan QT China, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2018 and expiring on 31 December
2020, to revise and supersede the Renewed Van Telecom PRC
Property Lease Agreement. On 13 July 2020, Kunshan QT China
and Van Telecom PRC entered into a supplemental property lease
agreement (the “Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property Lease
Agreement 11”) to extend the term and revised the maximum lease
fee for the twelve months from 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021.
According to the International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, the
transaction under the Supplemental Van Telecom PRC Property
Lease Agreement Il should be regarded as an acquisition of
asset of the Company, which should be classified as connected
transaction instead of continuing connected transaction, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 13 July 2020
and 17 July 2020. On 27 November 2020, Kunshan QT China and
Van Telecom PRC entered into a termination agreement (the “Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Termination Agreement”), pursuant
to which both parties agreed to terminate the Supplemental Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement Il on 30 November 2020,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27
November 2020.
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The property leased by Van Telecom PRC to Kunshan QT China
is its own property, the rent under the Supplemental Van Telecom
PRC Property Lease Agreements paid by Kunshan QT China to
Van Telecom PRC was determined with reference to the market
rent for similar premises in the vicinity and on normal commercial
terms, and such prices offered by Van Telecom PRC shall be
no less favourable to Kunshan QT China than is available from
independent third parties.

Van Telecom PRC is wholly-owned by CK Telecom, which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such, Van Telecom PRC is a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total continuing
connected transaction amount under the Supplemental Van
Telecom PRC Property Lease Agreement was approximately
RMB1,596,000 and the annual cap amount of continuing
connected transaction for the Year was RMB5,767,800.
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Supply agreement in respect of the supply of camera modules
and fingerprint recognition modules to CK Telecom Limited
(“Heyuan CK”)

On 13 November 2014, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement”) with
Heyuan CK, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
the camera modules to Heyuan CK for the production of its
products for a term from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
On 29 December 2014, the Company and Heyuan CK entered
into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Heyuan CK Master
Supplemental Supply Agreement”) to revise the annual caps of
transactions agreed by Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement. On
16 December 2016, the Company and Heyuan CK renewed the
Heyuan CK Master Supply Agreement (the “Renewed Heyuan CK
Supply Agreement”), pursuant to which, Heyuan CK agreed to
continue to purchase camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules from the Group, for a further term commencing
from 1 January 2017 and expiring on 31 December 2019. On
2 June 2017, the Company and Heyuan CK entered into a
supplemental supply agreement (the “Supplemental Heyuan CK
Supply Agreement 1”) to revise the annual caps of transactions
under the Renewed Heyuan CK Supply Agreement for the three
years ended 31 December 2019 under the Renewed Heyuan
On 13 July 2018, the Company and
Heyuan CK entered into a supplemental supply agreement (the

CK Supply Agreement.

“Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement II”) to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan
CK Supply Agreement | for the three years ending 31 December
2020. On 31 October 2019, the Company and Heyuan CK
entered into a supplemental supply agreement (the “Supplemental
Heyuan CK Supply Agreement ) to revise the annual caps for
the transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement |l for the three years ending 31 December 2021. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 October 2019.
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The price for the camera modules and fingerprint recognition
modules supplied by the Group under the Supplemental Heyuan
CK Supply Agreement Il and Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply
Agreement Il was determined by reference to the raw material
costs and production costs to be incurred by the Group and the
profit margin, which is expected to be comparable with the level of
profits derived from the Group’s sales to independent customers,
subject to adjustments arising from the expected quantity, quality,
delivery schedule, specifications and market competition.

Heyuan CK is wholly owned by CK Telecom which is in turn wholly
owned by Mr. He. As such, Heyuan CK is a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement
Il and Supplemental Heyuan CK Supply Agreement Il was
approximately RMB4,171,000 and the annual cap amount for the
Year was RMB20,000,000.
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Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of voice coil
motors, linear motors, bi-directional VCM (“VCM, LM, bi-
directional VCM”) and other electronic components from
Heyuan Youha Micro Electronic Technology Company Limited
(“Heyuan Youhua”, formerly known as Huizhou Youhua Micro
Electronic Technology Company Limited)

On 6 December 2016, the Company entered into a purchase
agreement (the “Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) with
Heyuan Youhua, pursuant to which Heyuan Youhua agreed to
supply the VCM and LM to the Group for a term from 1 July
2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13 July 2018, the Company and
Heyuan Youhua entered into a supplemental purchase agreement
(the “Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement”) to
revise the annual caps for the transactions under the Heyuan
Youhua Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2020, pursuant to which, Heyuan Youhua agreed to
supply VCM, LM and bi-directional VCM to the Group. On 31
October 2019, the Company and Heyuan Youhua entered into a
supplemental purchase agreement (the “Supplemental Heyuan
Youhua Purchase Agreement II”) to revise the annual caps for
transactions under the Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement for the three years ending 31 December 2021. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
31 October 2019 and 11 November 2019.
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The price for the VCM, LM, bi-directional VCM and other electronic
components supplied by Heyuan Youhua under the Supplemental
Heyuan Youhua Purchase Agreement Il was determined with
reference to the price at which comparable types of VCM, LM,
bi-directional VCM and other electronic components are sold to
the Group by independent suppliers under normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business, and such price shall
be no less favourable to the Group than that were available
from independent suppliers. In considering whether to purchase
from Heyuan Youhua, the Group sought quotations from at least
two independent third parties offering the same or comparable
products. The Group purchased the VCM, LM, bi-directional VCM
and other electronic components from Heyuan Youhua if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.

Heyuan Youhua is owned as to approximately 0.25% and
approximately 0.99% by Mr. Hu Sanmu and Mr. Fan Fugiang
respectively, both are executive Directors of the Company, and
as to approximately 66.11% by Westalgo Great China, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of QT Investment, the controlling shareholder of
the Company, which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. He. As such,
Heyuan Youhua is a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Heyuan Youhua Purchase
Agreement Il was approximately RMB124,007,000 and the annual
cap amount for the Year was RMB170,000,000.
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Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of flexible
printed circuit board and rigid-flex printed circuit boards
(“FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs”) from C-Flex Electronic
(Huangshi) Ltd. (“Huangshi C-Flex Electronic”)

On 2 June 2017, the Company entered into a purchase agreement
(the “Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) with
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, pursuant to which Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic agreed to supply the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs to the
Group for a term from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2019. On 13
July 2018, the Company and Huangshi C-Flex Electronic entered
into a supplemental purchase Agreement (the “Supplemental
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic Purchase Agreement”) to revise the
annual caps for the transactions under the Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement for the three years ending
31 December 2020. On 31 October 2019, the Company and
Huangshi C-Flex Electronic entered into a supplemental purchase
agreement (the “Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement II”) to revise the annual caps for the
transactions under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2021. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 31 October 2019 and 11 November 2019.

The price for the FPCs and Rigid-Flex PCBs supplied by Huangshi
C-Flex Electronic under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex
Electronic Purchase Agreement Il was determined with reference
to the price at which comparable types of FPCs and Rigid-Flex
PCBs are sold to the Group by independent suppliers under
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business, and
such price shall be no less favourable to the Group than was
available from independent suppliers. In considering whether to
purchase from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering the
same or comparable products. The Group purchased the FPCs
and Rigid-Flex PCBs from Huangshi C-Flex Electronic if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.
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Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is wholly owned by Shenzhen Handi
Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Shenzhen CK which is in turn owned as to 90.0% by Mr. He and
as to 10.0% by Mr. Wang. As such, Huangshi C-Flex Electronic is
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total transaction
amount under the Supplemental Huangshi C-Flex Electronic
Purchase Agreement Il was approximately RMB138,177,000 and
the revised annual cap amount for the Year was RMB180,000,000.

Purchase agreement in respect of the purchase of connectors
and holders (“connectors and holders”) from Kunshan
KEIRAKU Precision Co.,Ltd (“Kunshan KEIRAKU”)

On 13 July 2018, the Company and Kunshan KEIRAKU entered
into a purchase agreement (the “Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which, Kunshan KEIRAKU agreed
to supply to the Group connectors and holders, for a term
commencing from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
13 July 2018.

The price for the connectors and holders supplied by Kunshan
KEIRAKU under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
determined with reference to the price at which comparable types
of connectors and holders are sold to the Group by independent
suppliers under normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business, and such price shall be no less favourable to the Group
than was available from independent suppliers. In considering
whether to purchase from Kunshan KEIRAKU, the Group sought
quotations from at least two independent third parties offering
the same or comparable products. The Group purchased the
connectors and holders from Kunshan KEIRAKU if the price
and quality of the products offered was comparable to or more
favourable to the Group than those offered by such independent
third parties for the same or comparable products.
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Kunshan KEIRAKU is owned as to 97% by Kunshan KEIRAKU
(Hong Kong) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by QT
Investment, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing rules). Accordingly, Kunshan KEIRAKU is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total transaction
amount under the Kunshan KEIRAKU Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMBO and the annual cap amount for the Year was
RMB9,000,000. As at 31 December 2020, the Kunshan KEIRAKU
Purchase Agreement was expired.

The INEDs have reviewed the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Company and confirmed that such transactions
have been:

()  entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i) entered into on normal and fair commercial or better terms;
(i) entered into in accordance with the agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable for the interests of

Shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) the total annual transaction amount of the Year has not
exceeded the annual cap.
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The independent auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this section in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the relevant
independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon
procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The auditor has reported their factual findings on these
procedures to the Board that:

(@ nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(b) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects,
Company;

in accordance with the pricing policies of the

(c) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(d) with respect to the aggregate transaction amount of each
of the continuing connected transactions set out as above,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual caps.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company, and so far as the Directors are aware of, the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float as required by the Listing
Rules during the Year and up to the latest practicable date prior to
the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING BUSINESS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
entered into by Mr. He Ningning, the Chairman and an executive
Director and QT Investment (a company wholly-owned by Mr. He
Ningning) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of
the Company on 13 November 2014, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders will not, and will procure its/his close
associates (other than members of the Group) not to directly or
indirectly be involved in or undertake any business (other than
the Group’s business) that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking, or hold shares
or interest in any companies or business that compete directly or
indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders hold less than 5%
of the total issued share capital of any company (whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange or any other stock exchange) which
is engaged in any business that is or may be in competition with
any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do
not control 10% or more of the composition of the Board.

The Company has received the annual written confirmation from
the Controlling Shareholders in respect of the compliance and
enforcement of the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Year.
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The INEDs have reviewed the Deed of Non-Competition entered
into by the Controlling Shareholders as to whether the Controlling
Shareholders had abided by the Deed of Non-Competition. The
INEDs confirmed that the Controlling Shareholders had not been in
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition during the Year.

Apart from the business of the Group, none of the Directors or
their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in
any business which competed or might compete with the business
of the Group during the Year.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to the Shares of the Company,
they are advised to consult a professional adviser.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board
has resolved that a resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint KPMG, Certified Public Accountants as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
He Ningning

Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 April 2021
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to
the Company’s Shareholders and protecting and enhancing
Shareholders’ value through good corporate governance.

The Directors of the Company recognise the importance of
incorporating elements of good corporate governance in the
management structures and internal control procedures of the
Group so as to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct governing the securities transactions by the Directors.
Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on the
Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the overall
performance of the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values
and standards and ensures that the requisite financial and
human resources support are in place for the Group to achieve
its objectives. The functions performed by the Board include but
are not limited to formulating the Group’s business plans and
strategies, deciding all significant financial (including major capital
expenditure) and operational issues, developing, monitoring
and reviewing the Group’s corporate governance and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference which are published on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Board may from
time to time delegate certain functions to management of the
Group if and when considered appropriate. The management
is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it
from time to time.

The Directors have full access to information of the Group and are
entitled to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent
non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgment.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following six Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. He Ningning (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Jiangiang (Former Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned from his position as an executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Hu Sanmu (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 15 December 2020)

Mr. Fan Fugiang
(appointed as an executive Director on 15 December 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. Ko Ping Keung
Mr. Ng Sui Yin
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Mr. He Ningning, the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and an executive Director, is the step-brother of Mr. Wang
Jiangiang, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and an
executive Director (resigned from his position on 15 December
2020). Mr. Fan Fugiang, an executive director of the Company,
was a director of Hangzhou Raying Technology Limited ("Raying
Technology"), a private company which was owned as to
approximately 19.11% by Shenzhen Handi Venture Capital Co. Ltd.
(FIITH2EBA 2B B ERASE), which was indirectly owned as
to 90% by Mr. He Ningning, but Mr. Fan did not participate in the
daily operation and management of Raying Technology. Save as
aforesaid, there was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.

The INEDs have brought a wide range of business and financial
expertise, experience and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and serving on
various Board committees, all INEDs will continue to make various
contributions to the Company.
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Throughout the Year, the Company had appointed three INEDs,
representing half of the Board members, and has met the
requirement of the Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at least one-third of the Board members, and met
the requirement that at least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received an annual confirmation in writing from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As
at the date of this report (i.e. 13 April 2021), QT Investment, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, indirectly held 3,138,768
shares in issue of SmartSens Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
(“Smartsens”), an unlisted company, representing approximately
0.87% of the total issued shares of Smartsens as at the date of
this report through Q Technology Investment (Hong Kong) Limited,
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. Smartsens is a company
engaging in development of semiconductor solutions, which was
founded on 13 April 2017 and registered in PRC. Mr. Ko Ping
Keung, an INED of the Company, owns approximately 5.595%
equity interests in the shares of Smartsens through a company
under his management; Wealth Guard Ventures Limited (a venture
capital company, where an INED, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang, currently
works as a director) held directly and indirectly approximately
1.627% of shares of Smartsens. Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang also serve as directors of Smartsens, but do
not participate in daily operations of Smartsens. As at the date
of this report, the Group has no significant business dealings or
major commercial transactions with Smartsens. The Company
considers that: (i) the controlling shareholder of the Company
holds a very low proportion of shares in Smartsens and does
not have any significant business dealings with Smartsens; (ii)
the aggregate of shareholdings in Smartsens held by Mr. Ko
Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang personally or through their
companies is only 7.149% and the aggregate of voting rights of
the board of directors of Smartsens is less than one-half, they
do not participate in and cannot determine the daily operation
management of Smartsens; and (i) Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia-Hsiang do not rely on the investment in Smartsens as
their major source of income. Therefore, the Company believes
that the investment of QT Investment (the controlling shareholder
of the Company) in Smartsens does not affect the independence
of Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang as INEDs of
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the Company. Based on the above circumstances and the
confirmations submitted by each of the INEDs, the Company
considers that all the INEDs are independent and have met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the Year and up to the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Ko Ping Keung held 200,000 Shares
of the Company, representing approximately 0.02% of the issued
Shares of the Company. During the Year, none of the INEDs held
more than 1% of the number of issued Shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there was
no Director who held directorships in each other’s companies nor
had significant relationships with other directors by participating in
other companies or groups.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for a term of three years,
which is subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with
the Listing Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and
the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

During the Year, the Chairman has held one meeting with INEDs
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Proper insurance coverage in respect of potential legal actions
against the Directors’ liability has been arranged by the Company.

Directors’ Time and Directorship Commitments

The Directors have confirmed that they have devoted sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the Year
and have disclosed to the Company at least twice a year the
number, identity and nature of their positions in listed public
companies or institutions are listed in Hong Kong or overseas, as
well as other significant commitments.

As at 31 December 2020, there was no director who had held
directorships in more than seven public companies, including the
Company.
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Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

During the Year, each of the Directors (namely Mr. He Ningning,
Mr. Wang Jiangiang, Mr. Hu Sanmu, Mr. Fan Fugiang, Mr. Ko Ping
Keung, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang) have complied
with the requirements of the Code Provision A6.5 of the CG Code,
have participated in relevant continuing professional development
and training, including special training on major share acquisition
and training on enterprise development management at the
Company’s expense, and all Directors have been requested to
provide the Company with their training records.

In addition, the Company has from time to time provided
briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities.

Meetings of the Board and Directors’ Attendance
Records

During the Year, the Board held 9 meetings in total (i.e. 9 March
2020, 1 April 2020, 22 May 2020, 25 May 2020, 13 July 2020,
17 August 2020, 16 September 2020, 27 November 2020 and 15
December 2020 respectively) with notice given to the Directors at
least 14 days in advance(excluding the interim meetings). Before
each Board meeting, an agenda and the accompanying Board
papers have been sent to all Directors at least three days before
the intended date of the Board meeting or such other period
as agreed in advance. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) is responsible for keeping all Board
meeting’s minutes. The draft and final versions of the minutes have
been circulated to the Directors for comments and record within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for
the Directors’ inspection.
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The attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and
general meeting during the Year is as follows:

EXELHRS

BEENFAFEEHFEFERRERXR
TEECHUT

Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HERY BFERLRE
General
Board Meeting
Name of Directors EElR B5Fg BREXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) AIEBEE (F/E) 9/9 1/1
Mr. Wang Jiangiang FREsRITE (FITTEARE) 9/9 1/1
(Former Chief Executive Officer) MRZEZEF+ZB+AH
(resigned his position as an executive BHERITE B RITBHE R TS
Director and the Chief Executive Officer
on 15 December 2020)
Mr. Hu Sanmu A= ARG (FTECAR#) 9/9 1/1
(appointed as the Chief Executive Officer (RZZ_Z&E+_F+HH
on 15 December 2020) ERTAITHEE)
Mr. Fan Fugiang SEERTE 1/9 0/1
(appointed as an executive Director RZE2EZEF+"HA+HH
on 15 December 2020) ERZTAPITESE)
INEDs BIERTES
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SEL: S 9/9 1/1
Mr. Ng Sui Yin SHBLE 9/9 11
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TIRIERE 9/9 1/1

During the Year, as part of the commitment to best practices, all
Directors have participated in the discussions in respect of certain
business development of the Group through electronic means of
communication, such as E-mail and instant messaging software.
Such arrangement ensured fast and timely provision of information
to Directors, to supplement the formal Board meetings.

In addition, to meet the requirement of keeping up with the
Group’s business performance by the Directors, a monthly
management report, which contained the financial performance
and key business issues of the Group, was provided to the
Directors by the management of the Company on a monthly basis
throughout the Year. Director can contact the management of the
Company individually and independently to get more information of
the Group.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a policy of the Board diversity (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) with all measurable objectives set for
implementing the same.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

A. Purpose
To ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business.

B. Nomination and appointment
The Nomination Committee will identify eligible candidates
on merit basis based on the Company’s daily business
needs while taking into account the benefit of diversity of the
members of the Board.

C. Measurable objectives
Selection of candidates to the Board will be based on a range
of diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, language,
cultural background, educational background, industry
experience and professional experience.

D. Monitoring and reporting
The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of
the Board in the Company’s Corporate Governance Report
each year and monitor the implementation of this policy.

E. Reviewing this policy
The Nomination Committee will review this policy in due
course to ensure that this policy is effective. The Nomination
Committee will review this policy and the measurable
objectives at least annually, or as appropriate, to ensure the
continued effectiveness of the Board.

1 1 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Board Member Diversity EEEMEZTEER

The Nomination Committee comprehensively considered the ERETECEEEB ITESETHEDN
gender, age, region, cultural background, industry experience MERI~N FEE &  XIEHF S TELER
and professional experience of the Board members. The detailed &MEHEXKRZFRZR > EZEMERZ=A
BB RAOT

analysis of the relevant factors for Directors is as follows:

Person-time/the number of

Factors Categories the Board members
FSES Wl AR/ EEEMEAY
Age group 30-45 years old 2/6
FHEMER 30-45/ %
46-60 years old 3/6
46-60/E 5%
61-75 years old 1/6
61-75@ 5%
Region Mainland China 2/6
iz eI 5
Hong Kong, China 3/6
FEEE
Taiwan, China 1/6
HEA
Identity Executive Director 3/6
51 HiTES
Independent Non-executive Director 3/6
BIIFRNITES
Profession(Note) Engineering/Technology 2/6
2 (5D T2l
Accounting 1/6
25t
Management 3/6
=il
Expertise(Note) Electrical and electronics related 3/6
industry experience
=2E (MED) BRAEFRBITTELR
Science technology 4/6
B
Other industry experience (banking/finance/ 3/6
energy)
HAaniT485 (R17 £/ 38R
Corporate administration 6/6
BT
Board members of other listed companies 2/6
HM FmABSIEEEME

Note: Directors can have various professional backgrounds and expertise ~ #/it - EF A UBEZEEEST S AER
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Director Nomination Policy BEERBHEE

AN B B HIE I IR AN EE F 1R A EGR (TR
PR  RIBREABENRELEE
ZRUIBEAEFZAENESREE
BEFE AR RABEFZH/EINH W

formal procedures. A summary of the Nomination Policy of the | :

The Company has developed and adopted a nomination policy
for directors (the “Nomination Policy”), under which appointment
of new Directors or re-election of Directors have been carefully
considered as required by the Nomination Policy and based on

Company is set out below:

=0
RBERETIRRRBEADES
REAZBFREE DLEBFRES

A. Purpose A.
The Nomination Policy is aimed to set out the procedures and
criteria for nominating director candidates of the Company

to ensure that all nominations for the Board members are fair

and transparent, thereby facilitating the efficient and balanced

development of the Board.

Nomination procedures

1.

The Secretary of the Nominating Committee collects
and analyses the necessary personal data submitted by
candidates.

CEHRENFTERRBATRER"
HMEEEFTT SR FHER-

B. ERERF

1.

R8T E BN ERER DR
AR B ENEAE
Ko

2. The Chairman of the Nomination Committee will convene 2. REZEGTIEREHERZ
a meeting of the Nomination Committee or circulate a EEERUPDIRREZTEENE
resolution in writing to the members of the Nomination BREEREZR UBRERH®E
Committee to consider matters in accordance with its HEEZEBMBAEE-
terms of reference.

3. For filling a casual vacancy to the Board or as an 3. EHEFTENBERTHAAE

addition to the Board, the Nomination Committee will
conduct the relevant selection process (coupled with
the relevant selection criteria) against the nominated
candidate and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration, and the Board will then make a decision

EYEBEER RLEEY
W H R BB IRIE AT
FEREREF CERBMBRER
) UTHEFERLEETR
DHZE MEFEERKR

as to whether the nominated candidate shall be eligible TERANEBEEAZSTEER
to be appointed as a director of the Company. EEEAKRRBESE-
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4. For re-appointing a director of the Company, the
Nomination Committee will conduct the relevant
selection process (coupled with the relevant selection
criteria) against the Director proposed to be re-
appointed and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration, and the Board will then make a
decision as to whether the Director shall be eligible to
be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. if the
Director proposed to be re-elected is an INED who has
served the Board for more than 9 years, the Nomination
Committee shall also assess whether the INED has
remained independent in the context of the Listing Rules
and should be re-elected at the next general meeting of
the Company and make recommendations to the Board
for consideration.

Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be considered by the
Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity

e professional knowledge and industry experience which
may be relevant to the Company

e commitment in respect of available time

e Board member diversity, including not limited to the
gender, age, ethnicity, language, cultural and educational
background, industry experience and professional
experience

° In case of a candidate for an INED of the Company, the
independence of such candidate will be assessed
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Board'’s decision

The entire Board is ultimately responsible for the selection
and appointment or recommendation (as the case may be) of
candidates for the Company’s directorship, and accordingly,
shall consider the recommendations from the Nomination
Committee and make a decision as to:

In relation to new appointment, whether the nominated
candidate shall be eligible to be appointed as a director
of the Company to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board, or (as the case may be) to be nominated
and recommended to the Company’s shareholders for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company; and

In relation to re-appointment, whether the director
shall be eligible to be reappointed as a director of
the Company, and (if such director is an INED of the
Company who has served the Board for more than 9
years and whose re-appointment shall be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by the Company’s
shareholders under the Listing Rules) whether such INED
has remained independent in the context of the Listing
Rules and should be re-elected at the next general
meeting of the Company.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meeting, and
among other things, reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of members of the Board, assessed the independence
of the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration
the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 22 May 2020 (the
“2020 AGM”); recommended to the Board for consideration the
appointment of an executive Director to fill a casual vacancy at the
Board meeting held on 12 December 2020.

1 1 6 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

D. EEBHIRE
EEFERREBEEARTNEFNE
BEREESREZE RBERME) @&
REBRAEZEGNEZRILH T
REFHRE !

1. MWEEMS > BRAMEEA
ELRAEREZERETRAE
FLURHES SRR ERE
HEFIHEEHES HGEER
ME) BRNAEAABRRAE £
ERLKREHEETEARATRE
DMERE &

2. MENEEMS EFETE
EREEFTZERETRAE
S RHEEAESAHEES
GRIOFHNBIUIFRNTES H
EMEZEEZHENRELTRA
AT IR RHLE BB LR &
B)FHBUFATESEMN L
TRAMEZE N BB KRE
BRAEAT TERRARNG LB
BE(E-

RNAFE RLUZEBEEAHEMAE
F (Hh Ol STEFENEE R
B MR EEERESHE Y FEHE
UERTEENBIEARR T
FRAAZ+ZHRETZARABREE
FAG(ZTEZZFEREBEFAE)) L
NEESHBEZEENMZTEREMT
BEFABE RN _E_TF+-A+H
HROZ2EESGLNESSHBSE
EE—RIEHEFERNHITES



Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
separate and performed by different individuals to ensure a
balance of power and authority so that power is not concentrated
in any one individual. Mr. He Ningning, Chairman, is responsible
for the management of the Board while Mr. Wang Jiangiang
(resigned his office as the Chief Executive Officer on 15 December
2020, and Mr. Hu Sanmu was appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer on the same day), Chief Executive Officer, is responsible
for managing the Group’s business and overall operations. There
is a clear division of responsibilities between Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for the Board committees are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. Ng Sui Yin, Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr.
Chu Chia—Hsiang. Mr. Ng Sui Yin is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee include,
but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,

re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and handling any questions regarding its

resignation or dismissal;
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Corporate Governance Report
EXERNRS

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards and discussing with
the external auditor on the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;

developing and implementing a policy on engaging an
external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting to
the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any
matters where action or improvement is needed;

reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the Company’s
financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments
contained therein;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems;

discussing the internal control system with the management
to ensure that the management has performed its duty and
have an effective internal control system in place;

considering major investigation findings on internal control
matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response to these findings;

ensuring coordination between the internal and external
auditors, ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and reviewing and monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;
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Corporate Governance Report

° reviewing the pricing rules of continuing connected
transactions and implementation of transaction caps, etc.;

e  ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter; and

e considering other topics as defined by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings in total
(i.e. on 9 March 2020 and 17 August 2020 respectively) (the “Audit
Committee Meetings”) and reviewed the audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the unaudited
consolidated results for the six months ended 30 June 2020 of
the Company, respectively, including the accounting principles
and practice adopted by the Group, the Company’s compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code and disclosure thereof
in the relevant annual and interim reports, the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and recommended to the Board for
consideration the same and the re-appointment of KPMG, Certified
Public Accountant, as the Company’s external auditor at the 2020
AGM.

EXELHRS

s BEREWMEXRSZEBRAIKR
ZIRBEATEZRBR

. EET?%%‘%?@?MWBV%Z%%@
R PRIR M IE KR F G T OFE ;
Ez

s HMIREBESFTREZHMRE

E$EF BEREZEGHBTMRE

DR 2 EF=ZRAABRZ
E_ZFN\B+tRH(IE&ZEEY
Z1) O UDHBERRFBEBE_ZT—A
F+R=+—HLEELEEZGH
FERBE_Z_ZHEAXA=THL
NERAREERGHES BREEER
FrxAEstREIRES  ARAREBTE
ETZTFAMRXRERBERATD
PRSP RERTEBRNSIZESR A
MM TAEEFETHEEERZLST LR
AIREBAIRR-ZE_ZERRBFEKR
TLrEEEMESMESER NS
BFrE R A B S ERIZ B

The attendance of each Director at the Audit Committee Meetings RBEEZENAFEFELH BEERETEC 5
during the Year is as follows: SRR
No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend
HERE W:2)
Name of Directors EENlSA FERLESERY
Mr. Ng Sui Yin (Chairman) SImBRE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ko Ping Keung ISEL: ks 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang MIRFERE 2/2
Note: The Audit Committee Meeting was attended by all the Directors in ~ #/3% . FT B EE MU HRBLFEZEZESE

person, not by an alternate.
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EXERNRS

The Audit Committee held one meeting on 26 March 2021 and
reviewed the Company’s draft audited consolidated results for the
Year, including the accounting principles and practice adopted by
the Group, the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in this report, as well as the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and recommended to
the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
KPMG, Certified Public Accountant, as the Company’s external
auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu
Chia-Hsiang, Mr. Ng Sui Yin and Mr. Ko Ping Keung. Mr. Chu Chia-
Hsiang is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the remuneration policy;

° reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

e making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors;
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Corporate Governance Report

e considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

e reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with the contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
reasonable and not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with the contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held two meeting
on 9 March 2020 and 15 December 2020 respectively, and
among other things, reviewed and recommended to the Board
for consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management, determined the policy for
the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed performance
of executive Directors and approved the terms of re-appointed
Directors’ remuneration; and approved the terms of the newly
appointed executive Director’s remuneration on 15 December
2020 and submitted to the Board for final approval.

For determining the remuneration packages of each Director,
market rates and factors such as each Director’s workload
and required commitment were taken into account. In addition,
factors comprising economic and market situations, individual
contributions to the Group’s results and development as well
as individual’s potential were considered when determining the
remuneration packages of Executive Directors.
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EXERNRS

The attendance of each Director at the Remuneration Committee

BEENAFEHEFMNES

=
Meetings during the Year is as follows: soERUl T
No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend
HERE Wat)
Name of Directors EENUSR FERLESERY
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang (Chairman) VRS E (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin et 2/2
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SRELE 2/2
Note: The Remuneration Committee Meeting was attended by all #/at . FiBEEEHHBHEFTNEZE S S
the Directors in person, not by an alternate. FEOIFHREBEAHZE
The Remuneration Committee also held one meeting on 26 ¥ ZE @ TN T - —F = H
March 2021, and reviewed and recommended to the Board for —_+/NHRE{T—AEGZH T EEKAE
consideration certain remuneration-related matters of the Directors EEHERRZETCE TEHEERSHK
and senior management. EEABFMNEREcEE-
Nomination Committee RAZEE

The Nomination Committee has been established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. It comprises
two INEDs, namely Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang
and an executive Director, namely Mr. He Ningning. Mr. He
Ningning is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include, but are not limited to:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and making recommendations to the Board on the

selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

e assessing the independence of the INEDs;

1 22 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

RELZEENAGEERELERT
GhETRH -RREEGEEMBEIL
FRTESF IeRBEERIDREL
EoR—R2ATESF AAEELE-
MEBLEERERVEZEGTER-

RLETEENTEAE KR
AR :

BB

. E"‘&Eﬁ“ﬂﬂ%%@%ﬁ RIBE K
B AR (BLAE RIS ~ R o P A5 Be K R A
ZHEM  IMENRZEHRE
FERHEERR  UHBREART
By TE E KBS

s YEBABSBEERAEEEFZA
ToURmRERZREBATHEE
FRNEFTRHEHEBEER

o TMEBIUIERITEEZEIME



Corporate Governance Report

developing and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewing the measurable objectives for implementing such
Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender,
age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience,
and the progress on achieving the objectives; and making
disclosure of its progress and its review results in the annual
report annually; and

making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and the succession planning
for the Directors, in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meeting on

9 March 2020 and 15 December 2020 respectively, and among

other things, reviewed the structure, size, composition and

diversity of members of the Board, assessed the independence of

the INEDs and recommended to the Board for consideration the

re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as Directors at the 2020

AGM; recommended the appointment of an executive Director to
fill a casual vacancy to the Board on 15 December 2020.

The

attendance of each Director at the Nomination Committee

Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE (H:E)
Name of Directors EHES EEREETERY
Mr. He Ningning (Chairman) AEBEE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ko Ping Keung SRETE 2/2
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang TIRERE 2/2

Note:

The Nomination Committee Meeting was attended by all the
Directors in person, not by an alternate.

M PRAEFEHHEHFERLEEEE

& IFRREALRE-

202064 R ESARIE (M) BRAE 23



Corporate Governance Report
EXERNRS

The Nomination Committee also held one meeting on 26 March
2021, and among other things, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessed the independence of the
INEDs and recommended to the Board for considering the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors and the Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy, namely Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Ng
Sui Yin and Mr. Fan Fugiang as Directors at the forthcoming AGM,
as well as reviewed the implementation of the Nomination Policy
and the Board’s Diversity Policy.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee has been established with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Risk Management Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Ko Ping Keung and Mr. Ng Sui Yin, both INEDs and Mr. Fan
Fuqgiang, an executive Director. Mr. Ko Ping Keung is the chairman
of the Risk Management Committee.

The principal roles and functions of the Risk Management
Committee include, but are not limited to:

e reviewing and assessing the Group’s investment in wealth
management products in terms of whether such investment
complies with its treasury and investment policies, the fund
safety of and the risks associated with such investment;

° reviewing the remedial actions in respect of policy breaches, if
any;

° reviewing the risks associated with, and approving,
the purchase of wealth management products with the
transaction amount exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million
exclusive) as requested from time to time (the provision of
reviewing the risks associated with the purchase of wealth
management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB10 million (RMB10 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time was amended to reviewing
the risks associated with, and approving, the purchase of
wealth management products with single transaction amount
exceeding RMB50 million (RMB50 million exclusive) as
requested from time to time, pursuant to the amendments
made to the funds management policy at the Risk
Management Committee meeting held on 24 March 2016);

1 24 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

R2ZEETR_2_-_—%=AH8
“HARBEGT-REH HPEHEE
BEEEFENEE RERER T EHE
UFRATESHNBIUME KRNI ET
NERRBFRARELOESTSHEZRE
EMEZEAREIEETAREFETRMEINE
MERERNESF AUESELE R
MEBREMEERAEERES  UKE
ERVDBRKREZFTE S TICBENHA
fTe

EREEZEE

EREEZEeAREMRELEKR
HEtETR -RREEEZEEEE=
URE IBIUFAITESTSRAL
F RmBAERATEFTEERE
Fo-eRBLEETRBEESZS ST
o

RBREEZEENTEACRBAES
EERRR

s BRKNLAEEEEMERNK
B -AEAHRSRERGNGH
MHERKRERR ZERENES
e REZBBVERE ;

s ENAMERBRNMHRER (N
B

e MRMEERFAFEHAXZEBBEA
K #5,0008 7t (7 & AR 5,000
Bt) 2B EMERN R A
EZEHRE (RERAKREEZES
R_E—RNEZB_+NHEgZE L
HESEEBHNENE] FREZE
REBBEEEXRFBBBARE
1,0008 7t (R & AR 11,0008 7t)
B ER B 2 SR VAR RA BB 18 2 A A B
EERERBEEEXZBEBBA
K #5,0008 7t (7 & AR 5,000
B NEERNEREER W1
EHEE)
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° reviewing and assessing the expected return of the wealth
management products with similar principal amount, and
the track record of relevant issuers and similar wealth
management products previously sold in the market; and

e  considering, reviewing and approving the amendments to the
Group’s policies and requirements in respect of the operation
and risk control of the Group’s wealth management products.

During the Year, the Risk Management Committee held two
meetings in total (i.e. on 9 March 2020 and 17 August 2020) (the
“Risk Management Committee Meetings”). At the above meetings,
the Risk Management Committee reviewed and assessed the
Group’s wealth management product investment in terms of
whether such investment have complied with the Group’s treasury
and investment policies, the fund safety of and risks associated
with such investment and reviewed the status such as debt asset
ratio, operating cash flow and gearing ratio of the Company.

The attendance of each member of the Risk Management
Committee Meetings during the Year is as follows:
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No. of Attendance (Note)/
Eligible to attend

HERE (H1:2)
Name of Members B4 BFEREESERY
Mr. Ko Ping Keung (Chairman) ERBAEE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Ng Sui Yin RHBLE 2/2
Mr. Fan Fugiang SEEsRTE 2/2

Note: The Risk Management Committee Meeting was attended by all the

Directors in person, not by an alternate.

The Risk Management Committee also held one meeting on 26
March 2021,
management product investment in terms of whether such

and reviewed and assessed the Group’s wealth

investment has complied with the Group’s treasury and investment
policies, the fund safety of and risks associated with such
investment, reviewed the status such as debt asset ratio, operating
cash flow and gearing ratio of the Company, and also assessed
whether the operating cash of the Group is sufficient and the
control policies of liquidity risks.
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EXERNRS

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors though having delegated
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include, but are not limited to:

e developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

e reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

e  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

the Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr.
He Ningning and Mr. Wang Jiangiang is 36 months commenced
from the month on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange (i.e. December 2014); the term of office
for Mr. Hu Sanmu is 36 months commenced from 8 July 2016.
On 2 December 2017, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and
Mr. Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company
for a term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017.
On 25 May 2020, Mr. He Ningning, Mr. Wang Jiangiang and Mr.
Hu Sanmu renewed their service contracts with the Company
for a term of 36 months commencing from 1 June 2020. On 15
December 2020, Mr. Fan Fugiang entered into a service contract
with the Company, among which, the term of office is 36 months
commenced from 15 December 2020. On 15 December 2020, Mr.
Wang Jiangiang resigned his office as an executive Director due to
internal arrangement of the Group (for details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 December 2020).

Each of the INEDs has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company, among which, the term of office for each of Mr. Ng
Sui Yin and Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang is three years with effect from
2 December 2014, being the date on which the shares of the
Company were initially listed on the Stock Exchange;the term of
office for Mr. Ko Ping Keung is 36 months commenced from 31
May 2017. On 2 December 2017, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the Company for a
term of 36 months commencing from 2 December 2017. On 25
May 2020, Mr. Ko Ping Keung, Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang and Mr. Ng
Sui Yin signed letters of appointment with the Company for a term
of 36 months commencing from 1 June 2020.

None of the Directors has a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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EXERNRS

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Fan Fugiang (appointed as an executive Director
on 15 December 2020) will hold office until the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

All the Directors, including the INEDs, are subject to retirement
by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance with the
Article 84 of Articles of Association. At each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or if their number is less than three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director will be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once
every three years. A retiring Director will be eligible for re-election
and will continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at
which he retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will include (so
far as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by
rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those
who have been the longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined
by lot. Any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) of Articles of Association shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Accordingly, Mr. He Ningning and Mr.
Ng Sui Yin will retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible to
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group (other than the Directors) whose particulars are contained
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

EXELHRS

EFREREEASHMN

AFEEEFZHMFBINHN G HY
BIRARMIZE6A

BEBELETRIEBASKFEZTRRE
rEBSHREEAE (BEFHRH) FHM
(HEHZENNENETEEFER
HIEEREREEBZEEFBIRN)
g -

Number of individuals

Remuneration band (in RMB) HENAER (AR AT &E
Nil to 1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007T 4
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,00175c21,500,0007% 2
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION & ILiZE(ETEN £
For the Year, KPMG was engaged as the Group’s independent ZAREE > EEF THEISHAER AN
auditor. EB B ZEEN

The remuneration paid/payable to KPMG, the auditor, for the
services provided during the Year is set out below:

MAFERUZBRFBENBOZEK
EM2REE G StENE AT 2 #F M 5 &
™

Fee paid/payable

et EEER
RMB’000
Services AR 7% AR¥TT
Interim review and annual audit service for —EESFERHAEEK
2020 FEBFTRS 2,100
Total 4Bz 2,100*

* The amount includes service fee of approximately RMB1,981,000 and
related VAT of approximately RMB119,000.

* ZeEOERBERANAR1,981,0000 %
RIS ERRAY AR %119,0007T ©
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There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the re-appointment of the independent auditor,
and they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
KPMG as the Company’s independent auditor for the ensuing year
at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, KPMG has stated in the independent auditor’s report
its reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all times.
The Company has adopted a series of internal control policies
and procedures designed to provide reasonable assurance for
achieving objectives including effective and efficient operations,
reliable financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations. Highlights of our internal control system include the
following:

e Code of conduct—The Company’s code of conduct explicitly
communicates to each employee its values, acceptable
criteria for decision-making and its ground rules for behaviour.

° Management of related party transactions—The Group will
continue to enhance its internal control and only enter into
transactions with related parties that are carried out in the
ordinary course of its business and on normal commercial
terms and are in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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° Internal audit—The Group’s internal audit function regularly
monitors key controls and procedures in order to assure its
management and the Board that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee is responsible
for supervising the internal audit function.

e Compliance with the Listing Rules and relevant laws
and regulations—The Group will continue to monitor
its compliance with relevant laws and regulations and
its senior management team will work closely with the
Group’s employees to implement actions required to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Company
will also continue to arrange for various trainings to be
provided by its Hong Kong legal advisers or other professional
parties to the Directors and senior management on the
Listing Rules, including but not limited to aspects related to
corporate governance and connected transactions, and by its
legal advisers in PRC on PRC laws and regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board have conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group. The
Directors (including the INEDs) consider that the internal control
measures of the Company are adequate and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Cheng Zhihua (“Mr. Cheng”) as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 21 November 2017

Mr. Cheng is an external service provider to the Company and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(in compliance with Note 1 to Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules). The
primary contact person between the Company and Mr. Cheng is
Mr. Fan Fugiang, an executive Director.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and/or the Chief
Executive Officer. All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The appointment
and removal of the joint company secretaries or the Company
Secretary are subject to the Board's approval.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or make a motion at the annual general meetings under the
memorandum of association of the Company and the Articles
of Association (the “M&A”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or make a motion may,
however, convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) in
accordance with the “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
EGM” set out below.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than ten percent of the paid-up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to require an EGM to be called by
the Board or the Company Secretary for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or making a motion at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the
purpose of making proposals or making a motion at the EGM
must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong (Room 828, 8/F, Topsail
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) for
the attention of the Company Secretary and/or the chief financial
officer of the Company.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the proposed
agenda.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. If the Requisition
is found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene an EGM and/or include the proposal(s) made
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or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the
EGM within 2 months after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of the outcome
and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM and/or include
the proposal(s) made or the resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such EGM, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board of the Company by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company, at Room 828, 8/F, Topsalil
Plaza, 11 On Sum Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong by
post or by email to Mr. Cheng Zhihua at tonycheng128@yahoo.
com.hk or Mr. Fan Fugiang at richard.fan@qgtechglobal.com, for the
attention of the Company Secretary and/or the executive Director.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the Company Secretary and/or the
chief financial officer will forward the communications relating to:

1.  matters within the Directors’ purview to the executive
Directors of the Company;

2. matters within a Board committee’s area of responsibility to
the chairman of the appropriate committee; and

3. ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, enquiries
and customer complaints to the appropriate management of
the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Group had been disclosed in the
Prospectus dated 20 November 2014 of the Company.
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The payment and the amount of any dividends, if paid, will depend
on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment
of dividends by the Company, future prospects and other factors
that the Board may consider relevant. Holders of the Shares
will be entitled to receive such dividends pro rata according to
the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on the Shares. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
discretion by the Board of the Company.

Dividends may be paid only out of the Company’s distributable
profits and/or reserves (including share premium account) as
permitted under the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
To the extent profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of
profits will not be available to be reinvested in operations of the
Company. There can be no assurance that the Company will be
able to declare or distribute any dividend in the amount set out in
any plan of the Board or at all. The dividend distribution record in
the past may not be used as a reference or basis to determine the
level of dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication
policy with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders can
have equal and timely access to information about the Company
in order to enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow them to engage actively with the
Company.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders mainly
through the Company’s financial reports, AGMs and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company during the Year. The M&A is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

1 34 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

ERRE (2K ) BYIRT e & 38 Y
RRAERBNEEFRE - HERE M
ik~ B R A QR R B BVEE K&
EERG -RRASNREFTGTAIERRS
HENEMAR - RNDFEARFEER
BRI BE N ARIIEHENE
BRI ERRE - RENEIR
K REERHEADEFEEFER
Fo

BEBEARTDEBERRARAEABER
MAILERRAEEERRZERE KR
ERBARRBNA DIKEN KR, HH#E
(BERMEBIR) KA MHiEF D
KREDIK AZEDar i BRE
RARBBIES - HIAREBERREAFHE
HERNDKEZTSEMAFAEE
ENEAREXNRESEERIDIKE
AR E - BEBRE DK B AR LA 1F
RHBERAEEUBEARAT BRAGE
BIRSRT IR B BIKF o

AT ERMRRBABR > BRI
RIRRAFELRFRIERRTZIE
B ERREMBERL MTEREES
URAFREEHESEBAEQT -

ENREIEEBEARAAMBRE KRR
BEREGRAMPEARZRREKRS
HEABRPRIZKEBENNERE -

BEXH
REAFE  ARBZEEXH L EN

o RATE D BB B S FT R AR B 48
ik ) 2 B A B AR Bl o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About this Report

This report is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance
Report publicly released by Q Technology (Group) Company
Limited, which aims to disclose the relevant performance and
impact of the Group on environmental, social and governance
issues (“ESG”). For corporate governance, please refer to page
105-134 of this annual report.

The Board understands its responsibility of ensuring the integrity
of this report. This report discloses the performance and impact
of all material topics related to the Group and fairly illustrates
the performance of the Group on each topic. The Board has
reviewed this report and confirmed the accuracy, truthfulness and
completeness of its contents.

Reporting Guideline and Principles

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Appendix
27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” to
the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and based
on the actual conditions of the Group. This report adheres to the
reporting principle of “Materiality”, “Quantitative”, “Balance” and
“Consistency” in presenting the changes in data in a way that
allows year-on-year comparison, which truly reflects the ESG
performance of the Group during the Reporting Period.

Reporting Boundary

The data collection of this report covers the production base and
the headquarters located in Kunshan which is the principal site
of the Group’s major business activities. After considering that
the Group’s offices located in other places such as Shenzhen,
Chengdu, Taiwan and India, etc., which are of supporting nature or
with revenue accounting for less than ten percent of the Group and
their economic activities have no material influence in social and
environmental aspect, they are therefore not included in the scope
of this report.
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Reporting Period

The reporting period (the "Reporting Period") is the financial year
from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

Feedbacks

We are committed to disclosing comprehensive and accurate ESG
information to our stakeholders and you are welcome to provide
opinions and advice on this report through the following contact
methods:

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited

Address: Room 828, 8/F, Topsail Plaza, 11 On Sum Street,
Sha Tin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: richard.fan@qtechglobal.com
louis.so@qtechglobal.com

Website:  http://www.qgtechglobal.com/index.html
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Chairman’s Message
Dear stakeholders,

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic raged around the world, and
the international economy experienced huge fluctuations. The
daily operations of the Group were inevitably affected to a certain
extent. With the support from various stakeholders, the Group
pressed ahead to overcome challenges and continued to promote
large-scale intelligent production, new technology research and
development, and vertical integration. At the same time, it focused
on the health and safety of employees and strived to surmount the
difficulties with all stakeholders, in order to promote the mutually
sustainable development of both the enterprise and the society.

“Regarding environmental protection as our due
responsibilities”

We integrated environmental protection into the daily operations
of the Group, and strictly managed the emissions of wastewater,
exhaust gas and waste (the “Three Wastes”) and noise. We
adopted a variety of energy-saving measures, including improving
the energy-saving technology of the ice water machines, applying
energy-saving LED lightings, etc., and invested more than
RMB50 million in the construction of staff dormitories during the
Year, which not only improved the convenience of employees’
commuting, but also reduced the fuel used for staff shuttle bus,
and thereby reduced greenhouse gas emissions.

“Upholding striver spirit”

We continued to invest more resources in employee training to
improve employees’ professionalism and help them grow. During
the Year, we continued to carry out the Six Sigma training project,
and all members of the task force participated in this training. The
health and safety of employees was a topic of great concern to us
during the Year. In the early stage of the pandemic, we immediately
established a prevention and control emergency team, and
multiple departments worked overtime to advance the prevention
and control work in an orderly manner. We combated the
pandemic through the four major directions, namely propaganda,
strict inspection, frequent disinfection, and case file archive, so as
to ensure the health and safety of employees.

IRIE - B RERHS

EEE
&R ER 7

2020F B ER A SR BER B2 IKE
ER2E EREEHFEERNKE &
EENHEEET A BB M TR —
ERENZE ETXMNEBAHINZF
ToARERDHEME FERABERX
MEEELCRE IRMAEREER
B ARERBIEINRERZE
HNAOEKFmEET HRRKR (EED
FUMHEHFBEBRIFEL R

TUfRERIER CHE

HPRERFRERASNEENDE
SEDT BREEBEK BRREEY
(T=F)) RREHHEH - HFIRIZ
EHEIBEIE I > RS HOK M ETRE R
fir - EFREIAEZILEDIBE A S BRNFER
BA5 00086 T AREANERET
BE ERAEIBHEREZGH A
DETHEREHENMERE &M
R E R AR HE o

TUEMERZE)

HATEMARELHINISENER
BAURSEINEEE - BWHET
R ER 0 FFIMEER R /< A% IE 8
BHEE EXEERABHTSMILE
dl-ETNRERZEEHMFENBH
AR EE  RNEIFEEH > R
BN Al S B 45 FE =/ AE > 2 BR P ON BE AN
HEFHEREIf BEEERE &
BB -FHS EERZONARSRANER
B REEILBERZE-

20205 5% EHFHE E) ARAE 137



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERHRS

“Centring on customer experience”

Facing the unstable economic situation, we responded calmly and
grasped the opportunities brought by the 5G era. We continued
to push forward the research and development of new materials,
new processes, and new products, and at the same time steadily
improved our quality management capabilities, as we strived to
realize the vision of “ to illuminate machines”.

High-quality suppliers were the key to ensuring the quality of
the products we provide. As always, we attached significant
importance to supplier management. In addition to the basic
qualifications and production capacity of suppliers, we also paid
attention to their performance at the ESG level, and strived to
maintain a stable and sustainable supply chain.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to all stakeholders
for their lasting affirmation and support. While developing our
business, we will strengthen our governance in the field of
sustainable development, and strive to create greater value for our
partners, customers, investors and other stakeholders!

He Ningning
Chairman of the Board and Executive Director
13 April 2021

1 38 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

TUERERAF L

EHARENKCERE  RMILEE
o WP RESGRAFRAEE - K
MHREEEFME M T2 - HERDN
ME FARREIRSEEEEED X
HERISHBERNFINETFRESR -

BENHEREFRAMFMERE®D
EENRAR IR - BMA—WBREHMESR
HEREE TIEHEBEELAEE
EEENZIN TREEERESGE EAY
®ECRNRFRE AIFEZEREIMH
FE e o

HARORSAZ M mAER S —BEUK
WEERXZF KR EZEREFHE
B> MR Pl HEEREINE R B
NREeEBH BAERPKREREESA
m A DRI EERNEE!

REE
EFOLEANGTEE
2021F4813H



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

ESG Strategy

The Group adopts the sustainable development goals advocated
by the United Nations and formulated a sustainable development
strategy based on its own operating conditions, in order to make
contribution to facilitate the achievement of global sustainable
development targets. We identified three sustainable development
goals with significant connection to the Group’s operation, namely
Goal 8 Decent Work and Economic Growth, Goal 12 Responsible
Consumption and Production and Goal 16 Peace, Justice
and Strong Institutions. We will incorporate these sustainable
development goals into the sustainable development strategy.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS

To establish a smooth communication
channel, provide a safe and decent
working environment and offer good
welfare package in order to achieve
mutual development with the staff
members
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To persist in the requirement of integrity
in the course of cooperation with
customers and suppliers, and ensure
the product and service quality and
stable supplier management to actualise
a win-win situation
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The connection between the sustainable development strategy of the Company and
the sustainable development goals of United Nations
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ESG Governance Structure

The Board is responsible for the supervision of the Group’'s ESG
work and assumes full responsibilities for the ESG reporting
work. The Group has established a cross-department ESG task
force which is responsible for reporting the Group’s relevant ESG
work performance to the Board on a regular basis and assisting
the Board in formulating the Group’s sustainable development
strategy, regularly reviewing ESG goals and monitoring significant

risks and opportunities.

The ESG task force members from various departments including
the process department, the finance department, the administrative
management department, the factory affairs department, the human
resources department, the procurement centre, the market centre
and quality centre, are responsible for monitoring the ESG indicators

in relation to their roles and setting relevant goals.

The highest authority for ESG affairs

that is responsible for the overall
supervision and allocation of resources for
implementation of work required
ESGEER=VEEKE BT2EEER
£ URREMTELFREER

The overall work coordinating organisation
for ESG work which shall report the ESG
work performance to the Board and assist
the Board in formulating sustainable
development strategy and reviewing goals
ESGIFEEEHAKE  mESGER
ESGIERR HBEEEHE I FHEL
BB R ARt B 1R

ESGE

o

Board

AEE

EXECEEREEAEEESGIRFEER
HESGER I FREEMEE EHE
&I A FIRNESG I 1E/VAE
SEEHERFERESCGHEBAIIFR
R EFEFEERNAFELERE
BB ERRRSIESGERUREIZEEKX
JEL B B 14 48 o

BEME

ESGI R/ ERERZE M5
WATHEES BB ANTERE
EERO MR L-THERO s mE
PLOFEZERBHEF EEEREH
BB B RESGIER  UN B I/ E

The departments of the ESG
task force members which are
responsible for implementing
the work requirements of the
Board on ESG affairs
ESGL{E/MAREEF &85
i{tﬁ%i@%ﬁs@%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂ’%

EK
The ESG work responsibility of Organizing the Responsible for
each department ESG information environmental
B AE S FIMESG T ER B collection and management
reporting work and
HEESGIE B reporting
E R FER BEREEET
TEREER
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Responsible for
talent recruitment,
training development,
community
participation and
jointly managing
occupational health
and safety with
the administration
department
BEAABEE
ERRHERAS
H o I BT EER LR
EEMERERAZS

Responsible for
supply chain
management,

product responsibility
affairs and the
establishment of
integrity business
model with
cooperation partners
BEREREERE
REAEE WHRE
TEREHELREREX

B

Responsible for
jointly establishing a
process system that

meets international
or national
standards with
other departments
and supervising the
implementation
BB ARt
AR SRR
RIRER A2 E >
WEBHENTER
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Under the coordination by the finance department, the ESG task
force collects and consolidates the information that requires to
be disclosed on a yearly basis and reports to the Board in form
of reports. The Board will, constantly, review the Group’s relevant
ESG work and performance, and the reports periodically submitted
by the ESG task force and supervise the effective implementation
of sustainable development strategies and ensure the alignment of
the ESG strategy with the Company’s operation strategy.

Establishment and Review of ESG Goals

Each department of the ESG task force shall set up supervision
indicators and goals addressing the issues they are in charge
of. The process department and the relevant departments will
regularly review the achievement of goals. The ESG task force of
the Group has been regularly reviewing the goals concerning the
environment, safety, supply chain and product, and periodically
reporting to the Board the progress and achievement of goals.

Environmental indicator Safety indicator

RIBIER Z2IE1R

Supply chain indicator

HAERIER

IRIE - B RERHS

MPEHaSHE ESGIIE/NESHE
WEREAEMEBEREGEE  WUREE
AAEEZFHER EXZZFESN
AEBESGHERE TEXRIBKESGT E/)
HTEHRXNBRE EBUFELESH
B A BUEE UM B RESGE S B A
B8 S B BE R o

ESGE R E M5

ESGI{E/EAR KB AEBF PT &1 5 H PRy
EENZERULERERNBR - RE
HMEREB ST EHEIEERNE
iR e AEBESGIIE/NMEBERIEE
HERRRE 22 HEENREREB
BT ERRNESFSEREFTERERE
R B ER ©

Product indicator

EmiEtR

oongbergg{%tr? per Nllérglfaeéeorn?deglt%al Reasonable allocation g ot p:gduction
of procurement yle
1¢%Oduﬂ%taa_ 1EBRRREHERH proportion Euuié EE
o HIEDECRE M ER
Number of fire
Water consumption Rc(Lg(?_’r%s(
— per product N Number of field . Patents

SHERAKE \ inspections =7

RIm B LR
Paper consumption

— _bper product
SBHERBHS

Wastewater
discharge
per month

&)ﬂ EEKHERZ

Passing rate of
the Three Wastes
inspection
=EAl SRR

\ Emission goal of
mgreenhouse g@as
B E R AR EE R

The ESG performance supervision indicators of Q Technology

AR ESGR IR & 1Z151F
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ESG Risk Management

The Group regards ESG as an important part of facilitating the
implementation of development strategy and it is committed to
creating value for all stakeholders. ESG task force organises
communication with stakeholders regularly, including employees,
customers, investors and suppliers, to sum up their opinions on
ESG issues which have significant impact on the Group, and
identifies relevant ESG risks based on the relevant ESG risk
evaluation results from all departments.

In accordance with the requirements of the relevant ESG issue
management system, all departments regularly carry out work
evaluation, including supply risk management, talent appraisal and
environment target assessment. In consolidation of internal assessment
results and external communication feedbacks, the Group endeavours
to lower the ESG risks and capture relevant opportunities.

Through a 4-step procedure, namely identification, prioritisation,
validation and review, the Group identified important issues which
were closely related to the daily operation of the Group and highly
concerned by the stakeholders, and thereby prioritising actions to
meet the needs of all parties.
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e Management of the Group verified and confirmed the material topics of the Group to be
mainly disclosed in the report
Bz CEEEEBEEN RRAEANEENSE IR REPERNE

Validation

Review e Review the processes of assessing the material topics and identify areas for improvement

i 8 BB E MBS BIE BRI RS

Materiality assessment process
HEH T FE

We sequenced the potential material topics according to the HTIREBEN ZHBE S AERETEREH
scores given by the stakeholders and the management of the EEEEMEBNTDERETEH
Group. The 7 topics at level 1 were the material topics of the (IR E —4RAIN7TEZELAAETBNE
Group which had substantial impact on both or either the Group B M ZFBE  ELFZEHAEEB KFmME
or the stakeholders. The materiality assessment results were BASEH HHEP—FEEEEMNF
reviewed and approved by the management of the Group. B AEBEEEZCEERILBBILERE
BMEBETHAER
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Level 3
BFZBRX

Level 4

EUER

Impact on stakeholders’ assessment and decision making

WA @B S T ETRRN T E

Significance of economic, environmental and social impacts
RESRBENHETENETEN

Level 2 E-E*X Level 3 E=B*X

e Customer/user health and e Green procurement
safety AR B IRE
ER/BEREREZR e Hazardous waste

e Employee communication management and
channels emission reduction
ETEBRE EiEEEY B IR Rk

e Staff retention and benefits e Packaging material
BTiEERaEF conservation

e Community investment BLEEWRFE B
HERE e Energy management and

e Staff training and promotion conservation
BTIENIREH BEREIE M EIA

e Employee diversity e Human rights
BI%it N

e Child labour forced labour e Anti-discrimination
prevention measures & IEE53
E T sahl% TIER i e Social investment

HEERE
e Response to climate change
e m IR B 1L

Materiality matrix

BEHMHERE
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Level 1 F—ER

e Ensure product and service
quality
BREMKRBES

e Anti-corruption
REE

e Customer satisfaction
ERREE

e Customer privacy protection
HERIEIRE

e Supply chain management
HEEEIE

e |ntellectual Property
Protection
RN oA EE R R &

e Occupational safety and
health
BERLHERR

Level 4 FEER

e Exhaust gas management and
emission reduction
EE R B IR KRB

e \Wastewater discharge and
reduction
5 K BER R R HE

e Ecology protection
L RERE

e Water resources management
and conservation
KEREEREDN

e General waste management
and emission reduction

—RERYEE KB
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[OlfE 8 E 14 %E

Response to the Material Topics

Material Topics

BEHMEE

Ensuring product
and service
quality

TR o R AR 75

P —N
==

The Group’s Actions in 2020
AEBE2020FEH1TH

e  Analysing the technical capability of satisfying contracts and
orders

731w e & [F) 3R BE B B AT BE

e  Carrying out product quality inspection on raw materials,
production process, product finishing process and shipment
process

HERMH RIEBE AnBR HEBRETEREERR

e  Performing static prevention at anti-static areas and
inspecting the workplace regularly
KB ELFRMFFENEZEES TIF THmEIFE

° Providing employees with static prevention training
HETETFEREEI

Corresponding
Sections

HESHEH

Quality Assurance

BBRE

Anti-corruption
REE

e  Prohibiting direct or indirect solicitation or maintenance of
business relationships by way of bribery or rebate

BEUER DHNEPAERABERENNRTEHRIR

e  Prohibiting employees from abusing their job positions to
obtain or illegally accepting properties
BREETHMBRB 2 ERNEIEERZTY

e  Eliminating the undesirable phenomenon of appointment by
favouritism

HBFEAMHRNTRER

° Encouraging the report of corruption
BN ERBEEITR

e  Regularly organising training and promotion of business ethics

for all employees

EHREEETHERFEERETRIEIIREG®ES

Building Integrity
BRRE®R

Customer
satisfaction

ERMRE

e  Promptly negotiating with clients and implementing measures

such as product exchange or repair, etc. if defect product is
found after delivery to the market
RAUMIHBRERTIEEm MFEZRHE  REUAE B

EX )i

e  Promptly making confirmation and carrying out counter
measures after receiving complaints from customers

BRERKRFERE RIS RIE ST

e  Addressing client complaints and formulating short-term and
long-term improvement measures to fundamentally improve
customer service
HEEPRRAFES GIERARRANESEN KR E LS
ER R

Quality Assurance

HERE
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Corresponding
Material Topics The Group’s Actions in 2020 Sections
BEEMEE A EM2020FE KT E HEZE
° Passing the ISO/IEC27001:2013 information security
management system certification
BiBE X2 EEARISO/IEC27001:201358 5
° Evaluating information risk and determining responsible
department, method and time for risk handling
Customer privacy SEEERR RE R EIEE P 75k &R Information
protection Security
ZEFAERE ° Providing employees with information security training EEEZ3
HETETERZE2EI
e Arranging security inspections, installing surveillance
equipment and access control permissions for the entrances
and exits of the production area
TEREHOZHREZ LEEZE ELMEFIRER
e  Carrying out information collection and on-site investigation on
new suppliers and requiring suppliers to perform self-assessment
HBERETERWE RIS EZ L2 REREHETBT
° Performing quarterly and annual review on qualified suppliers
HeRERBETTERFESZ
. e Adopting “Corporate Social Responsibility Agreement” and )
Supply chain “Supplier Management on Environmental Material Agreement” with | SUPplier
management suppliers Management
t i =S =i S = X == 7o Jalar: 1t =
IR REMEEE(CEMTEARE) R(HEEERaERy |WEREE
P
e Regularly assessing the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
performance of suppliers and irregularly carrying out on-site
investigation
ERFEEEmNEEREET (CSR) BN FEHETRERE
%
e Preventing infringement of third-party patent by looking up existing
technologies on searching platform
BERRTAFARNETHHEARM M LLRILMHMAZER]
Intellectual
property e  Engaging patent firms to assist in screening to ensure no R&D Innovation
protection infringement risk ot 3% Bl FR
N AEEIRE SR EFHEBIEG S BENT REE R R
e  Offering invention rewards to patent inventors
RENZAANREZARRBDS
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Corresponding

Material Topics The Group’s Actions in 2020 Sections
BEEMEE A EM2020FE KT E HEEEE

° Maintaining OSHAS18001 Safety Certificate, Production Safety
Standardisation Level 3 Enterprise Certificate and Compliance
Certificate of Production Safety
FFHBOSHAS18001 2 2 E - R 2L ERELC=REXHZE
tt%i)x—_h?i DEEE

e  Carrying out potential hazard inspection and performing
rectification on the potential hazard identified

TREHE  HHEH HHRRETEN

° Carrying out stringent management over procurement, storage
and stock-out process of chemicals

HEERHNRB AR HESBRETRRER

° Performing safety inspection on equipment on a monthly basis
SRHRBETEENE

Occupational Occupational
safety and health | ®  Displaying safety risk notice and sign at places where risk exists Safety and Health
e ek e 3= RAERBRRNM S RE L BRERSIRHE HeermAmE

e Organising safety trainings such as trainings about chemical use,
fire drill, etc.

FERCEREREIVHENEREZ 2 E

° Providing health check for new employees or existing employees
facing occupational hazard

MEISNEYRECENERE TRIBERRER

° Establishing an emergency response team for pandemic
prevention and control, and ensuring the safety and health of
employees by clarifying the pandemic prevention responsibilities
of each department, monitoring employee health data, and
disseminating epidemic prevention knowledge
R IR B B RIBR IR =/ VAR B IE PR S B PIIB R IS B
A TREHE- E%Bﬁ%%ﬂ%ﬁk%%ﬁ@ﬁﬁéélﬂ@tci)i’dui
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Environmental Management

The Group endeavours to minimise the impact on the environment
through measures including optimised emission management, risk
sources monitoring and resources conservation. The environmental
management system of the Group is certified with ISO14001 and
the Group has formulated a “Management Manual” which specified
the responsibilities of each department. The general manager
guides the organisation of environmental and safety management
system and allocates manpower, equipment, technology and
other resources from each department to implement the internal
environmental approach and goals. At the same time, the Group
has adopted a series of environmental risk source monitoring
measures, mainly including setting up monitoring systems in major
production sections and key risk sources, setting up flammable
gas alarms in chemical warehouses, establishing a plant-wide
inspection system for major risk sources, and placing signs
of emergency response measures in the workshops and key
positions of each section.

China pledged to the international society during the Year that
it would strive to peak out its carbon emissions by 2030 and
achieve carbon neutrality by 2060. The Group actively responded
to the national call to focus on energy conservation and emission
reduction in its daily operations, such as the production stage,
working environment, and employee commuting, and planned to
gradually extend carbon emission reduction to the stages of raw
material procurement and product design. In addition, we always
paid attention to the international and national “carbon neutral”
direction and, according to the actual situation of the Group,
formulated relevant “carbon neutral” policy and system documents
in coordination with the external environmental plan. We have
been tracking the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions for years,
and have gradually set annual reduction targets of greenhouse gas
emission, in a bid to reduce our carbon footprint.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations’ that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to exhaust and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous or
non-hazardous waste.

! Please refer to the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for laws
and regulations related to environmental management
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Resources Consumption

Energy

During the Year, the total energy consumption of the Group was
approximately 688,744 GJ and energy consumption density was
approximately 1.42 GJ per thousand of products sold. Electricity was
the major energy consumption of the Group’s business, which was
used for the operation of production plants and office equipment.
During the Year, we have consumed approximately 190,164,103 kWh
of electricity in total, representing an increase of approximately 20%
as compared to that of last year. We also consumed approximately
72,000 litres gasoline for vehicle transportation, approximately 36,700
kg of liquefied petroleum gas for operation of factory equipment and
approximately 477 litres of diesel fuel for the power supply during the
suspension of high voltage power distribution room for maintenance.

The manufacturing of precision components has a relatively
high requirement on the production site, such as powerful air-
conditioning and ventilation system in the clean rooms. As such,
the Group proactively adopts various energy-saving measures to
enhance energy efficiency and reduce the energy consumption
in its operation. In terms of power conservation, we improved
the energy-saving technology for ice water machines, which
would automatically switch on/off the machines in the clean room
according to the season, and changed the conventional lightings in
the entire plant to energy-saving LED lightings, in order to reduce
waste of electricity. Solar heating hot water pump system was
also installed in staff dormitories to provide staff with hot water for
showering. In terms of fuel saving, the Group invested more than
approximately RMB50 million to build staff dormitories during the
Year to reduce the amount of gasoline consumed by staff shuttle
buses.

The use of fuel for the Group’s vehicles, as well as the use of
liquefied petroleum gas and diesel in factories, produced Scope
1 (direct emissions) greenhouse gas emission, which during the
Year was approximately 303 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent.
The source of Scope 2 (indirect emissions) was purchased
electricity, which emitted approximately 150,629 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent. The total emissions during the Year were
approximately 150,932 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent, and
the emission density was approximately 0.31 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent per thousand product sales. We adhered to the
WA-D-186 Greenhouse Gas Management Regulations, collected
statistics on greenhouse gas emissions in every year, and set
emission reduction targets for the next year.

IRIE - B RERHS

IR
RETR

FROAEBHNBERHBEZEANA
688,744 FHKEFH  ERHEHEEEN S
142FHEEH,/ THERHBEEZ -8

EEREBNETERRERE BREE
BERMWAEREFEEFE FRN BMHE
HERE/49190,164,103F R B> b &
FIINAI20% o F AP IR IHFE72,0002 F+
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Water resources

The major usages of water resources of the Group were water for
production, domestic water, greening and replenishment of cooling
tower, water screens and water for spray tower. During the Year,
we consumed approximately 1,774,478 m® of municipal water,
representing an increase of approximately 10% as compared
to that of last year. The total water consumption density was
approximately 3.66 m® per thousand of products sold. There were
no issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose during the Year.

The factory affairs department recorded and analysed the
production and domestic water consumption and regularly
inspected the water pipe equipment to prevent water leakage. We
reused the wastewater generated from production in the flushing
system in toilets in replace of fresh water. The Group is committed
to reusing waste water to preserve water resources and at the
same time minimising the harm of waste water to the ecological
environment, in order to produce triple effects to the economy,
society and ecology.

Emission Monitoring and Control

The Group strictly monitors and controls the emission of the Three
Wastes and generation of noise and ensures that the emission
is in compliance with the requirement of statutory standards. We
have set up emission targets for wastewater, exhaust gas and
noise and commissioned professional third-party institutions for
environmental inspection, achieving 100% compliant emission
during the Year and 100% passing rate of the Three Wastes
inspection.
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Waste

The Group established the Administrative Method for Waste
Chemicals and Materials which stipulated the classification,
collection and treatment procedure of hazardous wastes of all
production departments. Hazardous waste was required to be
stored in specific containers and shall be processed by third-party
institutions recognised by the government, which shall be engaged
by the administration department. The relevant records shall be
regularly reported on the official website of the local environmental
authority of the place where the production base was located.
During the Year, the Group transferred approximately 563.1 tonnes
of hazardous waste to qualified third-party organizations, with a
density of approximately 1.16 kg per thousand product sales. The
following table shows the amount of hazardous waste transferred
by the Group during the Year:

IRIE - B RERHS

BEEY

rEBRB(EELCEmRY L EER
) BERBEREERPFIDENKRER
ﬁﬁ%}?w@m&r EERREYERRE
BRENTFEEE XM 1TEER R K
FRANE=ZAEBRIE - HRTRE
EHBEERMAEMIRRANES
MUEERI - FR > AEBHAGERDY
BB EBAS63 1A AMEAESTER
W HEEHN B 16T =,/ FTHERH
EE - TRALEBENRFANESTER
MBS !

Annual

2019 2020 changes
Hazardous waste (tonnes) BEEEY (ANE) —EF—NEF —ECEE FESEE
Liquid waste from the water screens 7k BEE & EE /& 102.8 207.7 102.0%?2
Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning NIB A TEE R EE OB
spray guns Z,Ea 82.3 66.2 (19.6%)
Waste paint slag BE SRR E 23.5 12.4 (47.2%)
Hydrocarbons and water mixtures — FB R BB ES SRS L AU LS
for ultrasonic cleaning TCREWY 19.5 229.6 1077.2%2
Industrial glue and plastic tubes TEBKBE 10.8 10.3 (4.4%)
Waste paint empty bucket % SHIR 2 48 10.5 8.3 (20.8%)
Waste alcohol wipes BE BB R 9.8 14.2 45.2%
Waste tooling EEAR 6.0 14.4 140.2%?2
Total #ast 265.2 563.1 112.3%
2 Part of the hazardous waste generated in 2019 was stored for 2 2019FELEMNLNEEEEYIZEE

processing in 2020, hence the significant increase in the volume
of liquid waste from the water screens, hydrocarbons and water
mixtures for ultrasonic cleaning and waste toolings as compared with
2019

2020F BRI MUKERE R BREBE
HEANESKEEYREAENER
EE2019FHEE KA

20205 E#RHL (RE) ARAR

151



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERHRS

During the Year, the Group generated approximately 573 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, with a density of approximately 1.18
kg per thousand product sales. approximately 75% of the non-
hazardous waste (approximately 430 tonnes) was domestic
waste, and the rest was industrial waste (construction waste and
packaging materials). Before executing contracts with contractors,
we required them to provide documents such as Treatment of
Waste Regulations ((BEEYRIEEZEHEE)) and Environmental
Guidelines ({(IR1#E75#t)), to ensure that they duly processed
construction waste. Non-hazardous waste including domestic
waste and packaging materials shall be classified and stored and
shall then be handled by professional institutions.

Wastewater

The Group formulated a wastewater management procedure
and handled industrial wastewater from factory area and
domestic wastewater in staff dormitory separately, in order to
ensure the wastewater discharge was in compliance with the
relevant standards. There are respective wastewater pipes and
rain water pipes in the factories. The domestic wastewater
shall be discharged to municipal wastewater pipe network
after processing in septic tanks. Factory workers inspected the
wastewater treatment system every day and recorded the data of
wastewater discharge and reported it to the local work safety and
environmental protection department for filing on a monthly basis.
During the Year, the Group discharged a total of approximately
13,680 cubic metres of wastewater and recycled approximately
67,680 cubic metres of wastewater.
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We established an industrial wastewater recycle system pursuant
to the Wastewater Recycling System Management Regulation
((EEKEI R RAEENE)), which filtered the wastewater
used for cleaning mobile phone camera products and it would
be recycled for the use in production line in order to reduce
consumption of water resources. During the Year, we also carried
out technological enhancement projects for water reclamation
and water conservation, and reached the annual goal of recycling
7,000 cubic metres of water. The Group’s wastewater recycling
rate during the Reporting Period was approximately 83%, and after
the remaining 17% of wastewater reached the Class | Standard of
Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard (G5 7k 45 & HERUIZZE))
(GB8978-1996), it was discharged to the wastewater treatment
plant for treatment together with domestic wastewater through the
municipal sewage pipe network.

Exhaust gas

During the Year, the industrial production and combustion of
gasoline for vehicles by the Group emitted a total of approximately
242.15 kg of nitrogen oxide (NOx), 22.66 kg of sulphur oxide
(SOx), and 1,177.39 kg of particulate matter (PM). We encouraged
employees to use public transports or ride on bikes and regularly
inspected company vehicles to ensure the exhaust gas emission
was in compliance with the standards. With regard to the exhaust
gas generated in the production process, we controlled the

IRIE - B RERHS

BPRE(EKDBRHASTER L) 2
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(GB8978-1996)— 4Rk 2 %1% > BA £ T EE
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BRI o

BER

FROAEBRIEEERSARRE
HEEWmL9242. 152 T REEY(NOX) ~
22.66°~ T & 1B (SOX)F1,177.392
FR2EmNEPM - RMEBE TRER
HXBTEAFUEBRY > IREHBER
NEEEH WRERIEBRFTESRE &t
HEETFRFEENER RMPEB—
ROMEEEEZEGHENR  REHIRIEN

emission through a series of corresponding measures in order to = %£Eo
reduce the impact on the environment.
20198 20204
Exhaust Exhaust Exhaust
gas of gas of gas of
Exhaust gas (kg) vehicles plants vehicles Total
BER (AF) BHipEg IHREBR HEHRESR g
Nitrogen oxide Eak=Nlek?)| 28.86 204.80 37.35 242.15
Sulphur oxide maEy 0.81 21.60 1.06 22.66
Particulate matter iR = b 2.12 1,174.64 2.75 1,177.39

Source of exhaust gas and corresponding production volume

s The exhaust gas data of the Group for 2019 only covered the
exhaust gas emissions of vehicles

4 The Group expanded the collection scope of exhaust
gas emission in 2020 and included production waste gas
emissions therein to reflect the total volume of exhaust gas
emissions more comprehensively

BRI RGEEL S

¢ AEB20I9FNERBBEBSEWE
R E
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R BRABBE RHF IR E
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IR - HERERHRS

Exhaust gas emission procedure

BERARIF

Tin-containing exhaust gas in wielding process

IRHBREEENSHEER

Organic exhaust gas generated in the course of
spray-painting, drying, washing spray guns

Treatment method

BRI &

Emission through 15m-tall emission pipes after filtering
with activated charcoal filter pad
LUEM FGBRIREIEE 15K S B E TR

IR M BAEREEREENAKER

Exhaust gas generated from the combustion of
liquefied petroleum gas in regenerative thermal oxidiser
RERARTCEREREERRELER

Emission through the chimney of the oxidiser

BB TCIERE EI B

Exhaust gas not collected in the course of wiping,
spray-painting and washing spray guns

RIRE S BERVBABREBRERERENER

Exhaust gas treatrment measures

JEE S i TR 1R b
Noise

Noise pollution would be generated when the equipment of
the Group is in operation. In order to minimise the impact on
the employees and nearby residents, the Noise Management
Regulation ({(I2ZEE# 5)) was formulated and a special
department was established to manage the relevant matters. We
introduced advanced noise prevention and control technologies
and used low-noise equipment whenever possible. Indoor noise
elimination treatment was conducted in factories with loud noise
generation and the greening in factory area was enhanced to
augment the sound absorbing effect. These measures could lower
the noise by 15-30 decibel.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Response to Environmental Emergency Incident

In order to ensure that the Group can maintain normal operation
in the event of material natural disaster, post-disaster emergency
team shall commence recovery work in accordance with the
Post-disaster Recovery Work Regulation under the guidance of
the CEO. The factory affairs department is responsible for the
procurement of power facilities and special equipment within
three months to allow the factory to resume production, while
the administration department shall arrange employees to work
at other subsidiaries temporarily and organise the handover of
constructions in order to minimise the impact of the disaster. Apart
from emergency incidents caused by natural disaster, we also
formulated emergency plans to tackle the leakage accidents in the
storage and use of dangerous chemicals for production.

Emergency plan

FHE =512

IRIE - B RERHS
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IR - HERERHS

Talent Management

Adhering to the recruitment principle of “open recruitment, fair
competition, just assessment, merit-based recruitment”, the
Group recruits talents from various channels such as on-campus
recruitment, labour market recruitment and factory recruitment. In
line with the rapid development of the Group, we applied different
recruitment methods in a flexible manner to attract talents in order
to tackle problems such as the increase in demand for production
line workers and top-notch talents.

Lower stability of production line workers

EEFEEABRELERE

ATEE

RFTAMER - QFHRF QREFE
BEERIUMNEBRA ZEEBAR
BB AT HSRE - IREBEESS
BREHBEEI -REGEBENRREE
& BI85 & A A BRI ES 75 0 R
AT UBEBHEEBRIEER R AS

EXRELFAZEE-

Offering referral bonus to encourage internal employees to
refer suitable candidates externally
REHEERS GRANSETERIINNESEAE

Higher demand for technicians in Transferring some technicians from an old factory to the new
newly-built factory one through internal talent transferring procedure
RIS ZMAT BRES BIBRERAT BRI 0 R EE TRRER DBl A A 84 25 TRR

Experienced and top-notch talents Offering high salary to employ talents with long working
required for specific positions experience and industry experience as an “expert”
BEBUREERSHAL SHEELIFFERAMTELCRERNABEIBEXR—H

Talent recruitment problem and solution

AT IR A9 [T R B R HE

1 56 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020



As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 7,127 employees
(excluding staff under labour service agreements and internship
agreements). The male and female employees proportion was
approximately 70%:30% and the management accounted for
approximately 10% of the total number of employees. With regard
to the age profile, employees aged below 30 accounted for
approximately 59% whereas employees aged 30-50 accounted for

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIR B RERHS

approximately 41%. Regarding academic qualification, employees

holding university degrees or above accounted for approximately

13%.

Gender profile

52 e

30%

70%

m Male
B2

B Female

gogis

Age profile
FHoHm

41%

0%

m <30
m 30-50
m >50

(7 persons)

N

59%

Professional profile

BB BE 90 A

10%

4

90%

= Management level
BIEMR

B Non-management level
FEEIBMR

B E2020F12A31H ~EBHAE
7T127T% BT (FESHBKEIMNEE
) ETIMBLLEALAET0%: 30%
EEBLHETHBHEN10% FHROMAH
30 UL TR B T154959% » 30ZE50
RIENA1% - BEDHMAE > KEFU
FERFNE T(E413% -

Education profile

BED M

13%

87%

University degree and above
KRB LEBFE

Below university degree
KRB TBE
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IR - HERERHS

The Group prohibits the involvement or support of any
discrimination based on race, social status, religion, gender, etc.
in the recruitment, remuneration and promotion affairs and strictly
complies with the relevant laws and regulations®. During the Year,
the Group was not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hour, rest period, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination

and other welfare and benefits.
Remuneration and Benefits

The Group safeguards the employees’ reasonable level of salary
and various benefits pursuant to the requirements. We provided
employees with a salary level which shall not be lower than the
minimum wage standards as required by the local labour authority
and shall cover the basic needs of an employee. We encourage
employees to enhance work-hour utilisation rate and impose strict
control over overtime work and provide overtime reimbursement in
form of compensation leave or overtime fees. In addition to basic
salary, we also provide performance bonus, year-end bonus, cash
rewards and other rewards and benefits for employees.

Five insurances
and one fund

EE—%

. 0o
Paid annual leave S
FEER ~
Night shift
allowance ==z
& HEERL

Festival bonus

BERtE

5 Please see the section headed “Laws and Regulations” for the

relevant laws and regulations of employment and labour standards
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Child and Forced Labour Management

The Group forbids the employment of child labour under the age of
16 and forced labour and corresponding management procedures
were formulated. By performing face recognition on candidates,
we verify consistency of their identity cards and themselves and
confirm whether they are of suitable employment age. In the event
of discovery of child labour, we would stop the work immediately,
and the department where the child labour occurred would be
directly responsible for ensuring the safety of the employee, and
ensuring that the child would not be threatened or retaliated until
the child is escorted home or picked up by the guardian. The
Group would provide the child with physical or mental health
support, including psychological counselling, health check-ups,
etc., based on the actual situation, and would bear all medical
and living expenses during the treatment period. When the child
reaches the legal age for employment, the Group would consider
prioritizing his/her employment, arrange jobs that are better
than the original positions, and carry out related retrospective
management. Through a series of measures, his/her safety, health
and educational development would be ensured.

In order to ensure that the employees can work in a peaceful and
willing environment, we prohibited forced labour and checked in
every internal inspection whether there was forced labouring. If
an employee experience forced labouring, he/she can report such
event verbally or in written form to the representative of labour
union or through the opinion box. Once it is verified, the labour
union representative and the forced labour can report to the public
security bureau.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to prevention of child and forced labour and
there was no case related to child and forced labour.

IRIE - B RERHS
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Employee Communication

The Group attaches high importance to the opinions of
employees and strived to establish a comprehensive employee
communication platform. Employees can give feedbacks and
consultation advices through various communication channels
such as opinion box, WeChat, “Sunshine Station”, complaint
hotline and mailbox, talks, etc. Among which, by virtue of the face-
to-face communication feature, “Sunshine Station” has become
the first-choice channel of the employees to give feedbacks and
suggestions. By visiting “Sunshine Station” directly, employees can
provide opinions of improvement in respect of canteen, catered

meals, accommodation, etc., or have mental health consultation.

We also provided employees with large staff activity centres and
held diversified cultural and sports events, such as company trip,
club activity, birthday party etc., in order to provide employees with
internal communication opportunities and help them achieve better
work-life balance, thereby allowing them to also obtain the return

of achieving industry-leading level of mental health.
Training and Development

Adhering to the core value of “upholding striver spirit”, the Group
is committed to providing employees with skill enhancement and

career development opportunities in order to augment the work
satisfaction of the employees and actualise their personal values.
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Talent Cultivation

The Group established a comprehensive pre-employment and

on-the-job training system to facilitate the learning and growth

of the employees and the establishment of talent team. For new

recruits, we provide induction training and work licence training

or mentorship training. The eligibility of induction is subject to the

assessment of training.

Induction training
ABEEN

Trainings are provided to the
employees in respect of the
corporate system, culture,
occupational safety, etc.

and there are corresponding
assessments

REEFNE-XE - BEZEE
FEH B THETEN LA HE
FEE 1%

Work licence training
ErEsE

The production line workers shall

have work licence training and

those who pass the assessment

can obtain a work licence
YEFETERET EEFZEI
BEEZNE TS LEE

Pre-employment training
] B 35 5

IRIE - B RERHS

ATER

7 5 [ ) TE 52 & BY g Bl K FE B IR Bl B
2 RESBINZERRRATHMAE
B -HRMABNETL  ZMEHEA
BB R REEUSHEMHR L EEE
31l 5 5 B &L AR BN B R R B 1 A E AR BN
BETIFTABEALEMER-

Mentorship training
5 il ) 15 E

Office worker on probation

shall have mentorship training
and can only become a regular
employee after passing various
’ assessments including regular
staff Q&A, assessment by
relevant department and mentor
assessment
ERHARNMAEE TES
BEIRIEI BTHBEBES
FMERBAUEZ ST %E
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In order to enhance the professional capability of the employees
and help them accumulate experience, we established company-
level and department-level training programmes, and the human
resources department is responsible for the supervision over the
implementation of trainings at department level. We understand
the employee training demand and the talent weakness faced by
the Group by conducting research, targeted trainings could be
provided by the departments. For training demand that cannot be
satisfied internally, we would engage external experts for training
assistance. To systemise the knowledge in trainings, we are liaising
with software companies and preparing to launch a knowledge
sharing platform. Employees can then acquire relevant knowledge

and solution from case study by themselves and improve their own
abilities.

HEAEBINAEBENIKREHERER
REBR  FFIsRIL A B MR s BB PI AR Y 1 5l
stE AW ERBEEEEBPIRE
B BB AT HEE THEIFE XK
REBEHN AT BR > HEEPIHE
T IR IR FI o S P9 BF 0K U BRI
ZEINTIR RS EFINBERIEMH
BB - R EREINBERNRLI
RPERRGRABETRLG SHEED
MEH=ra EREIAINRTE LA
TEEA BB S R 2B BRRTT 5 > A
REBESEN-

e To provide knowledge and skill trainings corresponding to the
characteristic of each position enhancing employee competence

S B A R IR AR BRI RI 8 ~ S AEIEF 1R+ B TRV ERAE

e To share working experience by senior employees related to work
challenges and typical cases at work, which would become internal
resources
BRETHEBHDZTEHI - TEAARMNMIIERG B TIERRDZ
HHMBET  FERAEEIR

e Various training methods such as mentorship system, experience
sharing meeting, corporate quality and culture promotion seminar, etc.
BENGEREEADEG CEREXCHHTFTESBEIITK

On-the-job training
TR
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During the Year, the Group organised various training programs
such as professional, production, research and development and
management. At the same time, the Group is further improving
the engineers’ ability to identify, analyse and solve problems.
During the Year, the Six Sigma training project has carried out
where all members of the task force participated in the trainings to
enhance their research and development and quality management
capabilities.

By establishing a closed-loop procedure of “Talent Appraisal —
Performance and Effectiveness Verification — Assessment and
Training”, the Group identified internal talents with high potentials
and provided them with development opportunities.

Talent Appraisal

A7 82

To verify the appraisal
results by consolidating
employee performance
and verify whether the
high-potential talents
from the results actually

Performance and
Effectiveness
Verification

possess high potentials BHEREERE BRI
EEETITHNENRER

BASBEER RER

WP EBHOANA R

CHEABRENRH

Assessment

and Training

IRIE - B RERHS
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Regular qualification appraisal: To appraise the basic
abilities of the employees on an interim or annual basis

EMERER  S¥FA—FEM —REINELRED

Potential ability appraisal: To unearth the potentials

of employees by testing the distribution of their abilities
through software

BERNER BEERMHAHETINENA M ZEETL
RETEEES]

To identify talents with high potentials and
arrange communication with supervisors,
verify whether both parties have the same
recognition on the ability and requirements
of the employee, and consider to include
specific training requirements into the
annual training programmes
HAHMR B AA BEPIEERN &
BEHFHETITMEIRERIANZE—
B Z R AEBNEIIERMAFEEEI

5t
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To satisfy business development needs, the Group established dual-
path career development, providing the employees with two major
career development paths, i.e. management type and professional
or technical type. We respect the employees’ decision of career
development and the employees can choose their own career
development direction and decide to pursue promotion vertically in
the same path or switch to another based on their own strengths,
professional interests and the development plan of the Group.

REGEGERTE cEEERER
fIREERBE RETRHEEER.
BEGRMEMARERELERBE I
MEEEIMBEEERRER  EILHAH
TEZEREZESD R—IREBERM
AEA FAREBEEAZER BEES
REBERFSETEHREE-

Senior
Expert
Manager PRl
BRISIE I
Manager Specialist
FEQL =X
Deputy Manager Chief Engineer
B &1 FETEEM
Supervisor Experienced Senior Engineer
e BRE Ak Ti26m
Management e Professional/
0 . =) (m]
ype path Senior Engineer & 4k T 72 £ technical type path
BREAE Engineer T2 ¥ BiEEE

Assistant Engineer B IE T 72 i

Dual-path career development

LY FIEEEEEE

Occupational Safety and Health

The Group cares about occupational safety and health of
employees and has strictly complied with relevant laws and
regulations®. The Group has established a comprehensive
occupational health and safety system to prevent accident and
strived for providing a safe and healthy working environment
for employees. Currently, we have received the OSHAS18001
certification, the certificate on lll-grade enterprise of work safety
standardisation and the compliance certificate in terms of work
safety. During the Year, the Group was not aware of any violation
of relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group on providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

6 For relevant laws and regulations on occupational safety and health,
please refer to the section of “Laws and Regulations”
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Create Safe Production Environment

During production, employees face two major safety risks of
flammable and explosive as well as mechanical injury. To create
a safe and healthy production environment, the Group has
established a series of policies on safe production, which focused
on identified significant sources of risks, determined control
procedures such as target setting, management plan, contingency
plan and response. Through comprehensive corporate safety risk
assessment on factories including production areas, employees
living areas and public areas, we have formed a “List of Company
Safety Risks” to analyse all kinds of risks. We used the information
from the assessment to further improve safe production standards
and system and optimise management and control measures.
In addition, adhering to the safety work policy of “Safety and
Prevention First”, we inspect daily production and system
operation regularly to eliminate existing or potential safety risks.
During the Year, the Group established and achieved the goal of
zero fire and zero chemical leakage.

IRIE - B RERHS
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During the Year, through potential risk investigation, we
discovered 56 potential safety risks on safe production. All
of them had been rectified and responded by corresponding
departments and all rectifications had been completed.
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Chemicals management
t2REIRE

Fully consider storage space during

procurement, understand conditions

of safe storage, production period
and storage period

KBRERDERAMTRE BRE
2EFNEG - EEBRKREFIR

Sealed storage, separate storage,
clear labelling

BHAR DRER RHBE

/ Safety risk signs

R 2 E kS IRHE

Fully consider storage space during

procurement, understand conditions

of safe storage, production period
and storage period

RENTOZREHZERE BRZ
ERENGRG - EERREFHAR

Sealed storage, separate storage,
clear labelling

BHAEM DREBRHFE

Keep outbound records and use
them correctly

BT tH EE s % ~ IERE 5 AR

Safety check for equipment
RELZEWE

The Factory Affairs Department
conducts monthly safety
inspection for workshop, identifies
issues and follows up rectification
results

B%E e AHBERETZERR
B FIRE B RS R

Carry out safety performance
inspections on specific equipment
according to their inspection
cycles
KiglBRESERBETZS
M AERR B

Contingency plan

3= ES

Establish comprehensive
contingency plans and specific
contingency plans for various
potential safety incidents

HE B EEENZEFWRH
EHGREREREREERZRR

Launch the response and carry
out remedy in occurrence of
incidents

EHRERREREFFRERY

Analyse process of incidents and
improve contingency plans

EROMEMBE  ERRIER

Management measures for safe production
XL EEEIER
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Create Safety Culture

Reinforcing employees safety education is an important
component of safe production, which helps consolidate
employees’ safety production awareness and emergency response
capabilities. The human resources department is responsible
for providing a health and safety training scheme. After training,
employees are required to pass an assessment before they take
up their roles. We carry out regular trainings about chemical to
ensure reasonable measures are adopted by relevant personnel
in case of emergency. We hold fire drill twice a year to provide
employees with safety and fire education and allow them to keep
abreast of knowledge such as general knowledge on fire safety,
use of fire equipment and evacuation and self-help measures.
During the Year, we carried out occupational health knowledge
trainings in three major directions: identification of occupational
hazards, PPE equipment and occupational health management.
During the Year, the Group’s total person-times that have received
training reached 16,754 and total training hours was approximately
20,804 hours.

Prevention of Occupational Diseases

The Group has developed the Management Measures on the
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ({H 2 /& TERH
B S IR E D) to prevent, control and eliminate occupational
diseases and protect employees’ physical and mental health.
We fulfill disclosure obligations on occupational disease risks in
compliance with the laws, clearly inform employees risk factors
and consequences exposing at work and provide them with
correspondence precautions. In addition, occupational health
checks are required before new employees start working, and
health checks for current employees exposing to occupational
risks have been arranged to monitor staff health. If occupational
risk factors in working environment are found inconsistent with
health standards, the competent department shall carry out
rectifications immediately. The administration department shall
follow up and reassess the rectifications continuously until in
conformity with national health standards.
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Response to Emergency Safety Incident

To control the impact of loss and casualties from risks on the
Group, we have established a “Contingency Plan” to effectively
respond to emergency safety incidents such as earthquake and
explosion. In case of significant risk anomalies, we shall initiate the
emergency response team at once and assign responsibilities in
regard of department functions and professional characteristics in
an endeavour to minimise impact of emergencies.

At the beginning of the Year, the vicious outbreak of COVID-19
suddenly struck, and the Group immediately started the battle
against the pandemic. We formed an pandemic response team
with the general manager of the Group as the commander-in-
chief and nearly 100 employees from administration and human
resources departments. They worked overtime to facilitate
the Group’s pandemic response work. By issuing the “Notice
to All Employees” (&E28 BT E)), the Group specified
management and control requirements and precautions during
the pandemic. Responsible areas were divided, and the human
resources department assisted each department in establishing
a “one person, one file” ledger, and daily monitoring and filing of
employee health data. The Group prepared for the “Q Technology
Staff Prevention Knowledge Manual” ({E AR & TBH & 50
FM)) to promote pandemic prevention knowledge and carry
out assessments; and issued the “Punishment in Breach of
Company’s Requirements During Pandemic Prevention” (B8
BIERREHEER 2B RENESIHREG D) to ensure effective
implementation of pandemic precautionary actions. In order
to effectively ensure the health and safety of every employee,
the Group continued to make good use of various channels to
disseminating knowledge about the prevention of COVID-19.
Through the four major directions of measures, namely
propaganda, strict inspection, frequent disinfection, and case file
archive, the spread of the pandemic in factory area was prevented.
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Research and Development (R&D) Innovation

The Group has continuously promoted R&D of new products
and new processes, with an emphasis on the R&D work of
miniaturisation technology and ultra-high-end pixel camera
modules to strive for satisfying customers’ further product needs
and to provide consumers with better products and experience.
As of the end of the Year, the Group had a total of 256 authorised
and valid inventions and utility model patents and a total of 278
inventions and utility model patents under application and review
process.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Group has formulated the Intellectual Property Management
Practices ({F1#H EREEEXEMIE)) to regulate patent
application and management work. Upon filing of a project,
the patent engineer will keep in touch with the R&D engineer in
charge of the project to learn comprehensively the technology
solution for project design and carry out patent layout specifically.
The Group also screens existing technology through third-party
searching tools to prevent infringement. We have also submitted
relevant information to the patent firm for secondary screening to
ensure no risk of infringement. Based on the patent rating results,
we will determine the type of patent application and award the
patent inventor with invention bonus according to patent rating.
During the Year, the Group has strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations” and did not involve in any litigation regarding
infringement of intellectual property.
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! For relevant laws and regulations on intellectual property protection,
please refer to the section of “Laws and Regulations”
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Supplier Management

Qualified and responsible suppliers are essential to the quality of
the products provided by us. Through enhancing development and
regular assessment and management on suppliers, we ensured
stable supply of qualified and reasonably-priced materials and
services by suppliers in long run. To timely identify procurement
risks, the Group has analysed suppliers’ resource pool, material
supply risks and procurement price regularly. If risks are found,
procurement strategies will be adjusted immediately. During the
Year, the Group had over 294 qualified suppliers, most of which
were located in China.
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Screening and evaluation of suppliers
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Social Responsibility of Suppliers

With global social responsibility as objective, we have implemented
socially responsible procurement. Through signing the Corporate
Social Responsibility Agreements (&SI )) (‘CSR
Agreements”), we set out social responsibility requirements to be
followed by suppliers when they provide products or services to
facilitate sustainable development of the industry value chain.

The Group’s qualified supplies are required to obtain the
OHSAS18001 certificate and the ISO14001 certificate and enhance
CSR system establishment and implementation in respect of
human rights, health and safety, environment protection, business
ethics, social responsibility and management according to the
signed CSR agreements. We also require qualified suppliers to list
CSR as requisite conditions or threshold criteria for the selection of
new suppliers so as to extend sustainable development to second-
tier suppliers.

We evaluate suppliers’ CSR performance regularly and carry out
on-site review from time to time. If suppliers are found to fail in
fulfilling requirements under the agreements, we will require timely
improvements by them; if supplies are found to have serious CSR
issues or fail to make timely improvements, we will reduce orders
gradually or even cancel cooperation.
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Environmental and Substance Control

To enhance environmental and toxic and hazardous substance
control from the source, we have signed the Supplier Management
on Environmental Material Agreement (({fFERIZRYE SR
%)) with suppliers to specify our expectations on the fulfiment of
green and environmental responsibilities by the suppliers.

RIEMEEE

HEBRBAMBIRRRESFESYEDN
B RRHEERI(HEBRRF
MEEEGZE) RPERMBHEDRE
THREBREREENHE-

If the material batches provided by suppliers are not environmentally friendly, the Group is entitled to
request for compensation and investigate legal liability of suppliers as the case may be

AHERRERHNYHRLETIRF 2EEARBREETRERBAMEHIERER

Toxic and hazardous substance control requirements for suppliers

BEEBEEWHREBELER

Supplier Communication

The Group is committed to maintaining sound and effective
communication with suppliers and ensure consistent information
and objective of both parties through interactions with suppliers in
respect of core value and procurement vision. In addition, we also
provide integrity training for suppliers and explained specific contents
and violation under the Anti-corruption Procurement Agreements
(P2t R BE7 3% ) signed to the suppliers in order to achieve the
goals of cooperating in good faith and realising win-win situations.
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Quality Assurance

The Group’s quality policy is “Standardised management,
technology innovation, continuous improvement, customer
satisfaction”. Through combining industry characteristics, we
have carried out quality management work orderly and pursued
continuous enhancement of products and service quality. We have
obtained certification of the ISO9001:2015 Quality Management
System and set out quality management roles of all departments
in the Quality Manual ((E £ 1)) . Among which, the technology
department is required to understand technology and parameter
requirements under contracts or orders correctly, analyse the
Group’s technology capability to meet contracts or orders and
ensure that the Group is capable to provide products that meet
customers’ requirements. The quality department is responsible
for product quality examination of raw materials, production
process, finishing process and delivery process. All departments
are responsible for their own functions and coordinated with
one another. The Group has strictly complied with relevant laws
and regulations® and was not aware of any violation of laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group regarding
health and safety, advertising, advertising and confidentiality of
products and services and remedies during the Year.

Protection from Electrostatics

Preventing and eliminating static electricity risks at storage and
production site play a key role in stabilising and enhancing product
yield and quality. We required class 10 clean room workshops,
fingerprint workshops and working areas involving electrostatic
discharge device within the factory to be strictly conformed with
the ESD Protection and Control Procedures ({ ESDBA 1% 4l
2 )) and perform electrostatic protection and control works
comprehensively. Receiving electrostatic knowledge training and
education was a basic requirement for employees working at
the anti-static work areas and also the fundamental method to
reduce static electricity risks. Employees must receive electrostatic
protection training and pass certification. In addition, we carried
out regular examination on anti-static work areas, checking all
equipment, major areas and whether employees training was
qualified so that we could identify issues and adopt rectification
measures in a timely manner.

o For relevant laws and regulations on quality management, please refer
to the section of “Laws and Regulations”
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Disposal of Unqualified Products rERGEE

BPESES REEEN EEMT
RITEFEEN A (BEA R
m) > RB(FESERERRER)  BHAR
EIREERNAEGHEREDNFRENE
B U IER SR IETBRE A

We have rigidly controlled and disposed of unqualified products
(including doubtful products) arising from procurement, production
and processing and after delivery. In compliance with the
Unqualified Products Control Procedures ({~& & & fi%x 6172
F)), we have adopted different disposal methods for unqualified

products discovered from different processes in order to prevent {3 ©
unqualified products from unexpected use or delivery.
Handling Customers’ Complaints EFRGRERIE

RPEREIEPHRE RS FI
ERENKERNZEREZER KRS I
BEMETFINEMBEXR HEZF MW

We have accepted customers’ feedback and complaints sincerely,
strived for handling customers’ complaints properly in shortest
time and satisfied other requests from customers as far as we
could to maintain customers’ satisfactory.
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interventions
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circumstances of the
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on-site and email within
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by customer is true,
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notify all internal units
within 1 hour
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e focus on the quality
issues reflected by
customers’ complaints,
carry out inspections
on the same batch of
products within 1 hour
and confirm disposal
method for doubt
products
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Customer Complaint Handling Procedure
B i

1 74 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

e carry out in-depth
analysis on events
reflected by customers’
complaints and
formulate short term and
long term remedies
HENREERMHNEHE
TRED SIERAR
RIS HEH



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Information Security

“Meeting customers’ requirements, ensuring information security,
complying with laws and regulations as well as improving
management continuously “ is the Group’s policy direction on the
information security management. We understand that information
security is of utmost importance to the corporate management.
The Group’s information security management system was

certified with the ISO/IEC27001:2013 standard.

By analysing the conditions of each information asset and other
factors, we identify the threats faced by all information assets
and assess the risk level and possible degree of loss. The “Risk
Management Plans” is formulated based on the assessment result
to clearly state the responsible department for risk management,
approach and time frame. Moreover, we attach great importance
to the information security training for our employees to improve
their awareness and capabilities of information security.

During the Year, we strengthened the implementation of measures
related to internal security and customer privacy. In addition
to daily propaganda, all employees were required to sign a
confidentiality agreement and were not allowed to bring mobile
phones when entering the production area. The Group also
established a dedicated customer area where entry of irrelevant
personnel and competitors was prohibited, and arranged for
employees in key positions to use computers without access to
the internet and USB ports.

In order to test the operating effectiveness of the information
security management system and its compatibility with the Group’s
operations, we organise an internal review for the information
security scope and direction as well as the effectiveness of control
measures at least once a year, so as to continuously improve the
information security management system.
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Building Integrity

The Group is committed to operating its business with fairness,
honesty, integrity and transparency, and opposes obtaining
commercial or personal benefits through, whether directly or
indirectly, bribery. In addition to complying with relevant laws and
regulations’®, we have formulated internal policies including the
“Management System of Anti-Unfair Competition and Prevention
of Insider Trading” and the “Anti-Fraud Management System” to
strengthen internal integrity management and ensure a healthy and
sustainable development for the Group.

We require all employees, including managers and directors, to
adhere to business ethics management, and always strive to
maintain a fair relationship with customers, suppliers, competitors
and the public. It is prohibited to obtain or maintain business
relationships by bribery, kickbacks or offering money to other
person in any direct or indirect way. Employees shall not take
or illegally receive properties by taking advantage of their
positions. Moreover, we have extended the integrity works to
the employment mechanism to prevent nepotism. For personnel
promotion, salary adjustment, rewards and appraisal, employees
with higher rank and having intimate relationship with the
appraisee should be avoided.

10 For anti-corruption laws and regulations, please refer to the section
headed “Law and Regulations”
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Whistle-blowing Policy

The procedure department is the Group’s anti-fraud reporting
centre, which is responsible for accepting reports and complaints
of fraudulent practice as well as recording, reporting, investigating
and following up on disciplinary violations. In order to effectively
prevent fraudulent practice, we encourage our employees
etc. The
procedure department regularly checks whether the reporting

to report disciplinary violations by phone, email,

channels are functional or not. After receiving a report, the
procedure department will conduct an investigation and report
the investigation result to the management with suggestions
for rectification and treatment, so as to assist the management
in carrying out remedial measures. During the Year, the Group
was not aware of any violation of laws and regulations related to
the prevention of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
which had a significant impact on the Group, nor did it involve any
corruption cases.
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Whistle-blower protection measures:

e Reporting information and record is confidential

e Whistle-blower can choose to report anonymously

e Those who violate the rules to disclose the information of
whistle-blower or take revenge on the whistleblower will be

punished accordingly or even transferred to law enforcement
authorities for handling
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Integrity Education

We pay great attention to integrity education. Trainings and
communication activities for professional code of ethics are
organised on a regular basis During the Year, the Group held an
online course on “Integrity and Integrity Management System” in
a self-study mode. All employees were required to participate to
understand the relevant management system and conduct credit-
linked assessments to ensure learning effectiveness. The anti-fraud
policies and whistle-blowing procedures are also promoted by the
Group through employee manuals, rules and systems and internal
networks to ensure our employees understand the full content of
anti-fraud policies and clarify their responsibilities in complying
with anti-fraud policies. We also conduct integrity trainings and
sign integrity agreements with relevant employees. If a material
fraudulent event is discovered to be universal, we will notify all
employees and make it as a warning.

Community Engagement

As a socially responsible group, we actively participate in the
construction and development of the local community and fulfil
our corporate citizenship responsibilities, focusing on caring for
the elderly, helping the disabled and the poor, caring for children,
etc. The Group’s investment in charity accumulated to over
RMB200,000 and its voluntary working hours accumulated to 200
hours during the Year.
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Laws and Regulations EERER

For different ESG aspects, the Group strictly complies with the #HHREESGEE > AEBE BZHRETH
applicable national laws and regulations listed in the following ZKiBRBERER > WA X :
table:

Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section

[EmE BRANERRZER HEEHE

Emissions e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention Emission Monitoring

BE and Control of Atmospheric Pollution and Control
(REARHEMBEARSRIEEZE) PE B E

o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China
(PEE AR HEME KT ZBREZED

o Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes
(PEARENBEEBEEY S RIREHAZE)

e  Soil Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(FhEE N\RHME BT REEE)

o Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(PEAREMBESZEEREZL)

o Directory of National Hazardous Wastes

(EREEREDLE)

e Integrated Emission Standards of Air Pollutants
(RRSRYEESBEBIRE)

e Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards

O KRG HIBIRE)

e  Standards on Storage and Pollution Control of Hazardous
Wastes

(EREY T 75 RERRE)

° Emission standard of air pollutants for coal-burning oil-
burning gas—fjred boiler \
(HRIE KRS R BERARZE)

e Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 1: Chemical hazardous agents
(CEBPMEERERERERES 1D  LE2ESEXR)

e Occupational exposure limits for hazardous agents in the
workplace Part 2: Physical agents
(CrSPMAEERZHEEFBIRES2E D - MIERR)
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Corresponding

Aspect Applicable Laws and Regulations Section
[EmE ERBERRER HESH
Resources Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of Resources
consumption China Consumption
BRER (PEARHEMBEEHNERED BIRFERA

Circular Economy Promotion Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(FPEAREMBEBIRSEREE)

Environmental and
natural resources

RIERRAER

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(FPEAREMBEIRIFREE)

Environment
Management
IRIEEIE
Response to
Environmental
Emergency Incident
FEH RBIRIBEH

Employment

&%

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARHANMBESEE)

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARXNEBEERE)

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance

B (EEEA)

Talent Management
ANA EE

Health and safety
REEZE

Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China
(PEAREMBEZE2EEE)

Regulations of Jiangsu Province on Work Safety
CIBREZ2EERA)

Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARZMEHBE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention

and Treatment of Occupational Diseases
(FhEE N R HME R =R EE)
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Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRAKEERER

Corresponding
Section

HEEE

Labour standards

BT AR

e  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour
(BIEERETRE)

e [aw of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Minors

(PEARAMEBERKEAREZE)

Talent Management-
Child and Forced
Labour Management
AFTEER-BEITRK
s TEIE

Product
responsibilities
EREE

e Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEAREMBEERESZE)

° Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
(REARHEMBEIHEE R IREE)

o Intellectual Property Law of
the People’s Republic of China
(PEAREMBA B EEE)

e  Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China
(PEARHNBREEEEE)

e Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
(REARHEMBEEF XD

o Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance

BB(EAER FAR) &)

R&D Innovation

iyl
Quality Assurance

HERE

Information Security
BERZ:

Anti-corruption

RERE

e  Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China

(PEARHKMEME)

e Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of

China
(PEARBEMNBEIR FNEEFRFED

e Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
BB (B LR AR GI)

Building Integrity
BRZER
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Performance Data Summary

Exhaust Gas Emissions’’
Non-methane hydrocarbons (kg)
Sulphur oxides (SOx) (kg)
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) (kg)
Particulate matter (PM) (kg)
Wastewater Discharge

Total wastewater discharge
volume (m?3)

Total wastewater recycling
volume (m?3)

COD discharge (kg)

Ammonia nitrogen emissions (kg)
Waste

Non-hazardous waste
Industrial waste (tonne)
Household waste (tonne)
Hazardous waste

Hydrocarbons and water mixtures
for ultrasonic cleaning (tonne)

Industrial glue and hose (tonne)

Waste alcohol soaked wiping
cloth (tonne)

Waste ethyl acetate for cleaning
lances (tonne)

Waste paint empty bucket (tonne)
Waste paint slag (tonne)
Waste tooling (tonne)

Liquid waste from the water
screens (tonne)

HIERREE

2020 2019
20204 20194
EE mBERRE"
FERITARIE (R FT) 96.68 163.73
E(E¥I(SOx) (AFT) 22.66 0.81
KA1EY(NOX) (AFT) 24215 28.86
EFBmRL(PM) (AFT) 1,177.39 2.12
BEkBEHL &
BEKEEARE (LK)
13,680 4,101
BEkEI AR E (L5 K)
67,680 36,909
CODHFE (AFT) 28,068 74,360
[AHmE (2F) 2,064 1,080
EEEY)
BEBEEY
T ik (RHE) 143 150
HTENIIR (RN 430 450
BEEEEY
AR BE R AERIE
AOREY (RHE) 229.6 19.5
THEBKBE (QNE) 10.3 10.8
BEEEEAA (ANE)
14.2 9.8
FAR B S TER Y
BE 2B 7 B (‘A0E) 66.2 82.3
BE SRR ZEAR (A NE) 8.3 10.5
MR (L) 12.4 23.5
BEA R (ANE) 14.4 6.0
KEREER (R
207.7 102.8

" The relevant data only covered vehicle exhaust emissions in 2019. In 11
2020, the data collection scope of waste emissions was expanded
and included production exhaust gas emissions, hence the greater
difference

2 The unit of wastewater discharge and recycling in 2019 was tonne. 12

Starting from 2020, the statistical unit was unified to be m?®

8 The volume of COD emissions and ammonia nitrogen emissions in 13
2019 were restated in kg

Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020
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Greenhouse Gas'

Total emissions (tonnes of COze)

Direct emissions (Scope 1)
(tonnes of CO2¢)

Indirect emissions (Scope 2)
(tonnes of CO2¢)

Emission intensity
(tonnes/’000 pcs sales volume)

Total resource consumption
Direct energy

Liquified petroleum gas (kg)'®
Gasoline (litre)

Diesel (litre)

Indirect energy

Electricity consumption (kWh)

Tap water (m?®)

Packaging material consumption

Carton (tonne)

Tray (tonne)

Description of carbon emission calculation method:

The emission factor has been adjusted from the emission factor
disclosed in the 2019 report. The greenhouse gas data in the
above table for 2019 has been recalculated and adjusted. The
calculation method of greenhouse gas emissions were referenced
from the “Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential
or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) “ published
by the Environmental Protection Department. The emission factors
were referenced from the “2019 Baseline Emission Factor of China
Regional Power Grid for Emission Reduction Projects” and “How
to Prepare an ESG Report— Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The global
warming potential was based on the “Fifth Assessment Report” of the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)

The total amount of greenhouse gas (Scope 2) emissions in 2019 has
been restated due to the adjustment of emission factors

The Group has started to use liquefied petroleum gas since the end
of November 2019 and the data of liquefied petroleum gas in 2020
was usage in one year, while the data in 2019 was only usage in one
month, hence the significantly greater number in the data of 2020 as
compared to 2019

During the Year, due to power suspension in the high-voltage power
distribution room for maintenance, the Group used generators to
supply power to the IT machine room, and diesel was used for
generator

17

2020 2019
20204 20194

BERE
W E

(AR _S|{EiRE 2 150,932 125,422
BHiEHW (8E—)

(AME_S|ERE 8) 303 159
MIEHE (B E )

(AE_EEHEE 150,629 125,2631
FREE (AW,

FHERBES) 0.31 0.25
HRHERE
EiZAER
BIEE#RR (RFF) 36,700 4,000
Ul (AF) 72,000 55,189
Sl (R ) 477" -
F#EAREIR
EEE (TR 190,164,103 | 158,140,861
B3Rk (3L 5 K) 1,774,478 1,609,423
BEMEUHES
MLAE (AR 164 188
B (Rm) 135 100

W BBt E A REA ¢

PRI A F 8201 9F WM E W B B EIBEREA F
BREE EROOIOFRERBEIEESEN
STRUBEE REREFBNARELERE
BIRIBERESHRO(EBERRY @EE
EHALAR) BURE RO BRI
BMIMEIES| (20105 k) ) - BEHEF 2%
B(20190F ERHFRE PEH&E N BER/EREL
PR F ) KB P (A E FIRIG B R
EARE—MWE_  RIEHARESERER
#5510 - 2IREBRESEER 2E BB BRE
BLBFIZE F(PCOM(FE A RTEIRE)

20195 KB EREE GE D) I BEBENR
RAFERAREHEL

NEBEB2019F 11 B EBBBRICGHER
2020 IR MRBIBEA—ENERE M
2019 HIEEAIERSNERE  ]2020
IR E20194 BEFEIZ &

ERNARNSREERFERE > AEBK
FREERATHREHRE  RASHEBHER
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Male

Bt

2020
20204

5,108

Female

g3

2,109

Managerial personnel

BEHAE

Non-managerial personnel

FEEHRAE

6,389

4,186

3,258

2,322

30-50

30-50

2,934

1,420

University degree or above

KB EE

Below university degree

Total number of trainees

j(%‘—l«(?—?—ﬁ

iﬂu}”"l\.a )\-/_’

6,200

16,754

3,085

14,124

Total training hours

15 B 4 R B

20,804

19,077

Number of work accidents TEEHHE

Number of workers injured EAT2E AN 3 6
Lost working days due to work- ATHEERXIERH

related injury 18 24
Work-related fatalities EAIETAH 0

M Calculated based on the regular employees of the Group with labor
contracts as of 31 December. As the macro economy suffered
severer impact of COVID-19 in 2020, the Company's recruitment
was relatively smooth, and certain interns were converted into
regular employees, resulting in a rapid increase in the total number of

employees.
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Total number of suppliers HEFLAZ (@)

Supplier profile - by type A 3 — $4E B

Material supplier MR R () 194 140

Consumables supplier EMfadErs (@) 69 41

Equipment suppliers SR MRER (18) 31 19

Supplier profile — by HEESH—RITE

geographical region

Mainland Py ({8) 271 178

Hong Kong EE (@) 7 11

Other regions Hih#h & (&) 16 11

Investment in public welfare N@EA (BITARTE) 20 20
(RMB’0,000)

Voluntary work (hours) EHBITIE (M) 200 1,000
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Content Index

2EFEAL]

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

BRBERARERBEHI AAKRI MBS AERESERY
WEEEZH :

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RS AR MIER BEERXZFR(RE - EREQRIESIDEKR =3

A IRIE

Aspect A1: General Disclosure Emission Monitoring
[EEA1: —HRE and Control,
Emissions Information on: Laws and Regulations
BER ¥ (a) the policies; and HERRBS I~ SRR ROE IR

(a) BUZR ; &

o) BEFHBTABEARENMEREZERRAANER

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Performance Data

RABEE N data. Summary
IEIEA1A BEY) TE LR S AB R BRI B © HEBERRAEE

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Performance Data

RASLAEN and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of |Summary
151EA1.2 production volume, per facility). SiEXRIFEE

B AR R (LUME S E) & (0
L/(AEE“M SEKR M E) o

) BE

KPI A1.3
RASBIAEN
151ZA1.3

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FTEXEBEEREEYRE UEE) R (WMER) &
EWMNSESEN SEZETE) -

Performance Data
Summary

HERRBE

KPI A1.4
RASRAE
IE1EA1 .4

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FTEABEEEYME (UETE) X (WER) =
EWMUSESEAMN SEKZETE) o

Performance Data
Summary

HEREBE

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions Emission Monitoring

R SR & 3K and results achieved. and Control
1518A1.5 R R E VB M R PTG R o PEm B 1

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Emission Monitoring

RARERK hazardous wastes are handled, reduction and Control
}I51ZA1.6 initiatives and results achieved. HEmr s 4%

HERIEEERESEREYG A
B4 1 R RS AR 2R o

MIREES
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KPlIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
af S g g EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX =8 fEE
Aspect A2: General Disclosure Resources
BmEA2: — RN EE Consumption
Use of Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water BHIRFER
Resources and other raw materials.
HiRER BRERER (BFEER KEEMEME) BB
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by Performance Data
RASRAEN type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in Summary
151EA2.1 ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production FIRRIEE
volume, per facility).
BB SMEREK HEZEER WME- RS
) RS UTETRESAR RBE WUASE
BE{ - SERME) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per |Performance Data
RABEE K unit of production volume, per facility). Summary
151EA2.2 MFEAEREE WUSESEN BRI HEREWE
H) o
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives Resources
RSB AE N and results achieved. Consumption
F51EA2.3 M AETRE A st Bl R PR1S AR © BIRFERA
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in Resources
RASRAE X sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption
F51EA2.4 efficiency initiatives and results achieved. BEIRER
i SR EE A AOR LRI BE IR LUK A
KR GRSt B R FT1S AR ©
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished Performance Data
RASBLAEN products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with Summary
IE1EA2.5 reference to per unit produced. EiEXRIFEE
K mPrABREMENES (UEHE) & (WE
R 84EBEE-
Aspect AS: General Disclosure Environmental
[BmEAS: —MRINE Management
The Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the IRIREIE
Environment |[environment and natural resources.
and Natural |[BEZTABIRIERANRERERERNZENEE-
Resources . L ) . ,
EER KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities |Environmental
XARBE RSN on the environment and natural resources and Management,

}E1EAS.A the actions taken to manage them.
it E R EMHIRERRAARBERNEATERE

ENEEBMEZENTY-

Response to
Environmental
Emergency Incident
BIHEE

FEH TR IR IR E M

20205 E#RHL (RE) ARAR
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significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

ERRERHZETHRERMREREEZBEMLLESH !

(a) BIZK 5 &

(b) BTHETABERZENHEBERERRIINER -

KPlIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RSB NMIER EBRSGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX =3
B. Social 1 &
Aspect B1: General Disclosure Talent Management,
EBmB1: —MRINE Laws and Regulations
Employment |Information on: AT EE
12 E (a) the policies; and ERRER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BRFNRERE - BEASBH LTEFH RA -FEET 2T

by RIEERUKREMEBREND :

(a) BIZR ; &

(o) EBFTHETABEAXZENEREZERRANER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age [Performance Data

RASRAEN group and geographical region. Summary

151EB1.1 gwu EBEEE -FRANKRMEE ONEER |BMBXRRBERE

Aspect B2: General Disclosure Occupational
BEB2: — R E Safety and Health,
Health and Information on: Laws and Regulations
Safety (a) the policies; and B0 EE-
BEHZZ (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a ERFOER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Performance Data
RABEE N A TERAREMETHAB KR Summary
}51EB2.1 HEREWE
KPI B2.2 Lost working days due to work injury. Performance Data
RASRAERN AIEERITIEH#- Summary
151EB2.2 HEREWE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Occupational Safety
RABEE K measures adopted, how they are implemented and Health
}51EB2.3 and monitored. Moo bifERE

B P R B B R R R B 2 24 i LURAB R
TRERT A
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KPlIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
RRE IR EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX =8 fEE
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Training and

B EBS3: — R E Development

Development
and Training

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

IR

B R R E BERRAREBEITILEBENMH R AENEER - i FIEE -
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Talent Management,
B mB4: —MRINE Laws and Regulations
Labour Information on: AABEE
Standards (a) the policies; and ERRER
% TR (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRABG L& T 358655 T !

(a) BLZR ; &

o) ETHETABEAXEZNEREZERRANER -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment Talent Management

RABEAE K practices to avoid child and forced labour. ANFEE

151EB4.1 AR 5 1R BE A ) B FE 1 LU S B T R 98 1 55
To
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such Talent Management
B R AE practices when discovered. AA BB
{51EB4.2 it 7E 22 IE SR IE R N BR B BB RPTERE &
B

Aspect B5: General Disclosure Supplier Management
€ EB5: — iR E g EIE
Supply Chain |Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
Management |chain.
e B 12 EIRHEEEMNIRE R ERMBEEK-

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Performance Data
RSB AN EMe s W EHEREE - Summary

$51ZB5.1 HBEREHE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supplier Management
RSB & suppliers, number of suppliers where the HEMEE

}512B5.2 practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

M A RIS A EEENIEL  mERTEREIEM
NEEEEE - URBREBANMITRERGE-
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KPlIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
A # A IR IR EBRSGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESIVEX 58 fEE
Aspect B6: General Disclosure R&D Innovation,
[ mBe6: — RN E Quality Assurance,
Product Information on: Information Security,
Responsibility | (a) the policies; and Laws and Regulations
EmEE (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a EEalM EE2RE
significant impact on the issuer BEELE ERRER
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods
of redress.
BRPMREERMRBNEREEZE ES REEMESEUR
B HEERN
(a) BUZR ; &
(b) BFHBETABEAXENHE EZRRROANELK o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Quality Assurance
RABEE K complaints received and how they are dealt with. |&E &1R:%
1518B6.2 BEMNERKRBINEFEMEUKREE S X
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and |R&D Innovation
RASBAEN protecting intellectual property rights. B &2 Al
$51%B6.3 B R R RERHEREBRANIED -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and Quality Assurance
R E recall procedures. BERE
{51%B6.4 HhEERTERERERLOWRER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Information Security
RASRAE X privacy policies, how they are implemented and BEEL:
}512B6.5 monitored.
?ﬁéﬁ;ﬁ%iiﬁﬂﬁﬁ%&%%ﬁ% > AR A2 BT
BiZ ke
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KPlIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
af S gy Eip EBRGA(RIR-HEREBHRIESINEX 58 fEE
Aspect B7: General Disclosure Building Integrity,
[EEB7: —RIRE Laws and Regulations
‘g’%‘!gm” (@) the policies; and
/
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BEABG EBREE ~ 1R~ MR At B 88 AT ¢
(a) BLZR 5 & i
(o) BFHETABEAXENEREZERRAINER o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding No legal proceedings
RARAE N corrupt practices brought against the issuer or regarding corruption
}51EB7.1 its employees during the reporting period and the |occurred during the
outcomes of the cases. Year
REBPAHBTARLESRENDELNE |FRIEETHNE
SHFEAR AV BB KRR E R o %
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Building Integrity
RABEE N blowing procedures, how they are implemented FERER
}512B7.2 and monitored.
IR R RREF > URHERRTRER
Tk e
Aspect B8: General Disclosure Community
8 EBS: — R E Engagement
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs fHtE2H
Investment of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
HERE activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRUMBRSRRTREEMEHERBZNRARAXE IHTE
At & F 2 BV B ©
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Community
RARER EFERERE Engagement
151EB8.1 &2
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. Community
RAR AR EHIHBEMBAER Engagement
}51EB8.2 HE2H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ENYR S Gl

KpME!

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Q
Technology (Group) Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 202 to 344, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial

Our responsibilities

statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

B HENER S

ERNER

KMERBEESAEGHMAE (A
Ag)) BHEN(EEBETER) (TIE
BEETEER])) BB MM EEFE
BB TFTRENSEEERRS X
MBS EHMBERRBARENSE —
B o IRIEB B G A ZEMW
(BXgstamEEra) (Ts78))) &
HEHEPEMAXMBEFEHMTT
REREENBEEER BMBLNESE
B> IEEEZEBEEERETRFAN
HtHEEBST - HMERE > HMF
ESNEBERIEERACNBE A
MNERRHEER

FRETFE

HREEBFFRERERBERMANEEH
i RAHEAREHYFTRENES R
HEENFE - ZFFHESERMES
EEOHMBBRERAEARRRKET
BREN - AMAEHZEFRREHER
WER-
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Timing of revenue recognition

Wi 2o B 5% B B

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(u) on page 237.
BRI MR FEREMZ2R F237 A G 5HEEM 1)

The Key Audit Matter
MBS EH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEESZE

The Group’s revenue arises from the sales of camera and
fingerprint recognition modules.

SEENRmESE BBEEBERIEMHERRERHE -

The Group enters into a framework sales agreement with
each major customer and manufactures products based
on purchase orders. Products are delivered to a location
designated by the respective customer where they undergo
a quality examination. After satisfactory completion of
the quality examination the control over the products is
considered to have been transferred to the respective
customer and revenue is recognised.
EEEREZETEZERITUERBE B LIREBRETES
YEER ERXNVEEBERNIEEMA I ETER
HFERTHARER AREREFERGEACEREEM
FR o fEmbEs s o

1 94 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

Our audit procedures to assess the timing of
revenue recognition included the following:

FAIH LR RN ES EFEENTHE

° inspecting contracts with customers, on a
sample basis, to understand the terms of
the sale transactions, including the terms of
delivery and goods acceptance and any sales
return arrangements, to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e HMEMBHEETRNGLN TRIEEXZHIK
;o BEEYER KEWRNIRRIUA R EMHEE
ROz UIEEEENB D RBRERS
MFERITEERRNER;



Independent Auditor’s Report
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The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

REEtEE EESPNEESE

We identified the timing of revenue recognition as a e  assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific

key audit matter because revenue is one of the key revenue transactions around the financial year
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is end had been recognised in the appropriate
an inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition financial period on the basis of the terms
of revenue by management to meet specific targets or of sale as set out in the sales contracts by
expectations. comparing the details in the relevant sales
HMBF N mER SR EARRES TR EHRKEEE invoices to customers’ acceptance documents
EEEEEMNHERER — EEEEEBATEIRE or customers’ inventory records which are
B A it U s SR R RN & B =B o available from shared platforms the customers

have with the Group;

o HIBIFERMITAVEE WG ZETHER
T FEMHEERFBEEET R BRERE
FEEEERXPRHEZETE FNEFELHRZE
THE A B SR EIHE SR FNEERRETIR
SRR AR RE S

e scrutinising the sales ledger after the year
end to identify sales returns and inspecting
relevant underlying documentation to assess if
the related adjustments to revenue had been
accounted for in the appropriate financial
period; and

s BMEFHAHENHEE R HHHERSE I
% 25 A A 2 1 M SO DAETAE 4B RA B9 W A B B
EETEENMBEIREES ; &

e scrutinising all the sales journals raised
throughout the reporting period and comparing
details of a sample of these journals, which
met certain risk-based criteria, with relevant
underlying documentation.

e WMEREHAMBNHEE D REETEE
IRAEBEE D B AR A B AR R ST T M S iR e o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
ENYR S Gl

Loss allowance for trade receivables

B 7 RBRIBERN AR H

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the

accounting policies note 1(k)(i) on page 221.
BRI HRIFERENZ 16K F221 HHIE 51 BE N5 1(K)() °

The Key Audit Matter
MBS EH

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEESZE

At 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross trade receivables
totalled RMB3,402,051,000, against which allowances of
RMB1,590,000 were recorded.

N TETEF+ZR=+—H E£EBEZEWNIEREE
7 NR153,402,051,0007s > #H B ZREE ARBHARE
1,5690,0007T °

The Group’s allowances are based on management’s
estimate of the expected credit losses to be incurred, which
is estimated by taking into account the ageing of overdue
balances, the repayment history of the Group’s individual
customers, current market conditions and customer-
specific conditions, all of which involve a significant degree
of management judgement.
EEEENBEEBHARREENERBANMEEHER
HohstNERREER T ARRENRE EEESERR
HIEMEH RITHNTBREURERNFE R BLE
ZRATRARERE Y REIREHE-
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Our audit procedures to assess the loss allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
BAsTLEZRURENBEREEN S EFaE
MFrmE:

e  obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of expected credit
losses;

s THEEEHEGEEERES RIACWKTEHRES
BT ERANREAR TS LT EELERN
BB R T RETHENY ;

e assessing whether items were correctly
categorised in the trade receivables ageing
report by comparing a sample of individual
items with underlying sales invoices;

e HMEMETEZRUNARIBHENRIBESR LT
HEZBWARIBREREN D HEEERE ;
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The Key Audit Matter
RS &t EIE

B HENER S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEFPNEERSZE

We identified the loss allowance for trade receivables as a
key audit matter because the Group’s customers are mainly
smartphone manufacturers which are facing challenges in
terms of their profitability due to the competitive market
environment, which increases the inherent uncertainty in
assessing the loss allowance for trade receivables, and
because determining the level of allowances requires the
exercise of significant management judgement.
BMSEZRBREEEREEFERBESHEE 2EA
EEEMNERTIZATEFTREDS BRERBUNTISZH
FMEBEANENSEONKE MM T EEETEE
SEBARIEGEBEENER T REN  INE 7= E &K
TRITFEEANEIEREHE-

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

obtaining an understanding of the basis
of management’s judgements about the
recoverability of individually material and
all overdue trade receivable balances and
evaluating the allowances recognised by
management for these balances with reference
to the debtors’ financial condition, the industry
in which the debtors are operating, the ageing
of overdue balances and historical and post
year end payment records.
THREEEHEHEEEAKRMBBIESEIL
FIEERRER P R Bl R EHE > WiBE 2 E &
ANBIBH AR~ (E 5 N EFEPRERITE ~ B H
EREENERE BT BB ERT R U EE
BB LB R ER M R o

BHMBRRREZHBEMERS
LIIMER

EFXRAHHMEEAE -HMER 2R
TEHRERANEEEE  BEFAEES
HYHRRRHPIBZBENRS -

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

HAYHGHYBREFLHOERLAR
HMEHMER - HAFTHEMERER
ERTE AR EESR

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

2020555 EsRHE E) ARAE 197



Independent Auditor’s Report
ENYR S Gl

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

B HENER S

BB S HM B RERA
AIENEE

HPWER EHBEAHUBRERE
A FEARRFFNERMENNE
AHERMRMENEEERE  THAGE
HPEROZHEMERE - R EDRE
REHRS  BRIEZINETBRERNTAIER
AR HMPTERETRENANBTEE
HHEHMALTESHAESE

GEFRBESKFRHFRE BN ERE
R(EBEFERDETHSHERE—E
REEERER M AT ERFABAE 3 IR o SRR 4
B AR EREFECEEER S HE » MR S I TR HA
EfER R ERERAELES HY
BHRRERERBGHYBHRRAE
B AL R TE » RIF RE BY SR 52 BR 4t B] 4K
RIFEKR

ERB(EASBSHEDETESNER
FoRPMERTEXEHE  RETEX
IRERREE » T PITF -

o HAIMFT BN MEFNERMER
BHMBRRFEERERRAN
R et R AITESEFURS
BERR UKERBREMEEN
B RE FARMARRENER-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Chu Fai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
aftEE R HA2EIER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #IZ - " ZF+_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) A B #%1]7R)

Note
k=3

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net loss

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Research and development
expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs

Share of (loss)/profit of
an associate

Profit before taxation

Income tax

Profit for the year

W a
H & A

7

H A 3%
H{FA51E
S5 R
THUREAM

oideEba

EEEF

RAE Al 2

EEBER

FRIE AT A

FRiSH

FRiEF
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53
KER

8 (518 & F

4(a)

5(a)

2020 2019
—E_EH —E—-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥F T
17,400,369 13,169,678
(15,629,784) (11,989,806)
1,770,585 1,179,872
129,839 43,013
(85,513) (63,839)
(26,066) (14,946)
(152,626) (128,140)
(589,737) (396,244)
1,046,482 619,716
(53,524) (52,811)
(22,890) 39,996
970,068 606,901
(129,960) (64,529)
840,108 542,372




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AHERREMEEIER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE "L F+_"_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R#%17R)

Note
Viokz3

Attributable to: B
Equity shareholders of RABREFEA
the Company

Profit for the year FREF
Earnings per share sREA
Basic 2R
Diluted e

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of
these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year
are set out in note 28(b).

2020 2019
“EITHF —T-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEBTT

840,108 542,372

840,108 542,372

RMB Cents RMB Cents

ARES AR

9 71.9 47.6
9 71.4 47.2

FE210E344EIBEM M sE B2 F /M

BRI —

LR -BNEREDRERE

ANEEERNEF ZRE ZF1BH KK

5£28(b)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
aftEE R HA2EIER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #IZ - " ZF+_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) A B #%1]7R)

2020 2019

—ECEHE —E—hF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HitaE ARBT T ARBTFT

Profit for the year FREF 840,108 542,372

Other comprehensive income/ FREMEBEUE ~ (5518)

(loss) for the year MR REFHDEE
(after tax and reclassification &%) :
adjustments): 8
ltem that may be reclassified HedesmoBEEEan
subsequently to profit or loss: BB
- Exchange differences on — B R it DU E TS
translation of the financial SRR S
statements of operations BYBE 7 Z=RE
outside the Mainland China 95,973 (3,842)

Other comprehensive income/ FAREMEEUE ~ (B518)
(loss) for the year 95,973 (3,842)

Total comprehensive income  FAZEURFHLEZE

for the year 936,081 538,530
Attributable to: B
Equity shareholders of EABREFEA

the Company 936,081 538,530

Total comprehensive income  FRAREUE4EEE
for the year 936,081 538,530

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of these  Z5210ZE 344 B BV K5 M Bt 57 48 B 52 5 87
financial statements. B FTRB—EF 17 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BTN RER

as at 31 December 2020 R - _FF+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—EIEHF —Z2-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREBTT AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBEKRRE 10 2,959,555 2,703,926
Interest in an associate R—EE BN R 12 416,058 433,190
Intangible assets mLEE 13 4,280 4,895
Deferred tax assets LR IEE E 27(c) 81,451 43,504
Prepayment for acquisition of WEEIEREN B EMN TR A
non-current assets 52,469 64,476
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 7,050 21,917
3,520,863 3,271,908
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =5 14 1,943,025 1,913,368
Trade and other receivables 85 R EMERRRIE 15 3,589,028 4,919,289
Other financial assets HitemEE 16 100,000 -
Derivative financial assets TETREE 17 - 26,472
Pledged bank deposits BEIRFIRITER 18 266,562 92,647
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 19 1,983,516 411,517
7,882,131 7,363,293
Current liabilities Bt IR=N
Short-term bank borrowings ZHRER1T AR 20 1,104,021 1,269,548
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 21 6,013,472 5,934,662
Contract liabilities aH8E 22 7,990 257,072
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmas 17 48,277 9,142
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 25,823 23,355
Current tax payable FESBNHEATR 1B 27(a) 76,740 49,387
7,276,323 7,543,166
Net current assets/(liabilities) REEE - (BfE) FE 605,808 (179,873)
Total assets less BEERTRSHEE
current liabilities 4,126,671 3,092,035

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of these

financial statements.

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R#%17R)

B KRBI— BB ©

020E5% B4R @ BR2E 205
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BHBFERE

as at 31 December 2020 R -_E_FF+_H=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi) U A B #71]7R)

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E2-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AREF T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term bank borrowings RHEBIRITER 20 159,211 59,237
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 19,041 30,786
Deferred income R IE U A 24 137,593 129,655
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEE (R 27(c) 25,000 5,402
340,845 225,080
NET ASSETS BEEFE 3,785,826 2,866,955
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE
Share Capital [N 28 9,383 9,248
Reserves B 28 3,776,443 2,857,707
TOTAL EQUITY T 4R ER 3,785,826 2,866,955

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on REEZZN _ T - —F =8 -+ H

26 March 2021. HEE S IR RET 3 o
He Ningning ) s
D t
Hu Sanmu rectors tH=RK Ex

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of these 55210 344 B AY M5 Mt Mt 57 48 Al 5% & B
financial statements. BRI —Z15 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A EmEER

for the year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE — T _Z4&F+

+—HILFE

—_RA=

HEIT)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA R
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

SHRERE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_ =&

F+ZR=1t—HLHFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) A B #%1]7R)

2020 2019
ZEIERHF Z—NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARETT AREF T

Operating activities RS REY
Cash generated from operations £ & Fri8IR % 19(b) 3,724,913 2,432,967
Income tax paid [SENIFIE ST (120,962) (33,416)
Net cash generated from RS EESIRE FEE

operating activities 3,603,951 2,399,551
Investing activities KEEE
Proceeds from disposal of HEME BEKRKE

property, plant and equipment FriSFIE 17,851 23,372
Payment for purchase of BEERHEENNTR

non-current assets (540,837) (1,156,255)
Increase in deposits FRIE 0 (3,746) (1,876)
Payment for capital injection A—EBE AR EENNR

in an associate 12 - (155,799)
Net investment in other HhEmEEN

financial assets LB HRE (100,000) -
Net (investment in)/proceeds from $TE SR T AN (BE)

derivative financial instruments ~ FR{8 0 IE S48 (84,264) 8,820
Payment for purchase of BERTLEENNTR

intangible assets - (4,026)
Interest received BUF B 15,131 14,277
Net cash used in investing KREEHFMARERE

activities (695,865) (1,271,487)

F210E344 B VBEMIM s B T M B IRE

R4 o

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of these
financial statements. B—
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
AHRERE

for the year ended 31 December 2020 #EZE "L F+_"_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R#%17R)

2020 2019
gl 4= —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARETT AREFT
Financing activities B EEY
Capital element of lease ENEEHENELRTER
rentals paid 19(c) (27,223) (13,110)
Interest element of BENEERENFETE
lease rentals paid 19(c) (1,926) (1,230)
Proceeds from share issued REERERE T 8 B 1TRG
under shares option scheme FriS=R18 28(c)(ii) 59,777 39,784
Proceeds from share issued MECE E TR FIIERIE
for the Placement 28(c)(ii) - 182,155
Proceeds from bank borrowings ~ $E{Tf& RS RUIE 19(c) 2,583,405 1,921,727
Repayment of bank borrowings  {EiEEITE 19(c) (3,598,435) (3,008,131)
(Increase)/decrease in BIRFIRITER
pledged bank deposits g R (170,169) 115,009
Other interest paid HEMENAHE (53,146) (52,943)
Dividends paid BRE 28(b)(ii) (107,152) -
Net cash used in MEEBFMARE R
financing activities (1,314,869) (816,739)
Net increase in cash and HERREEEY
cash equivalents EhnF%E 1,593,217 311,325

Cash and cash equivalents R—HA—BMRER

at 1 January REEEY 411,517 99,920
Effect of foreign exchange EXEHNTE
rate changes (21,218) 272

Cash and cash equivalents B+ZB=+—HH
at 31 December HERRAEEEY 19(a) 1,983,516 411,517

The accompanying notes on pages 210 to 344 form part of these F210E 344 5 BIBE MY B 5 18 B 5% 5 74
financial statements. IR —Z015 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed
below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
group for the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEE &)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(b) "RKREFEE

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company, its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group’s interest in an associate.

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise indicated as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the functional
currency for the Company’s subsidiaries established
in the Mainland China. The functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Singapore
and BVI is US dollars. The functional currency of the
Company’s subsidiary in Taiwan is New Taiwan dollars
(“TWD”). The functional currency of the Company’s
subsidiary in India is Indian Rupee (“INR”). The functional
currency of the Company’s subsidiary in Korea is Korea
Won (“KRW?).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

- Derivative financial instruments (note 1(f));

- Other financial assets (note 1(h)).

BHE_ZT-ZEF+ZRHR=1+—
BHEFENEGHTBEREXS
BARB-HENBAE (KB4
IREE)) UNETEBR—HE
BMEABNER -

AR AEENETEEZHRNTE
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£ 725 A B KA A B 7 AR 3L B9 B
BABIMINEEE XA K
HREB HNBEAEBRR
HENKWBABININEEKA
EToARAREBEBHHRBA
AMINEEKATAY (A
W) c RATRENENKHBE A
BIMINEEE M AEEEL (TH
EELL) o QB R 58 E M M
BABMINEE K AT (58
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation and presentation

(c)

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 33.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued several amendments to IFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEE &)

(d) Subsidiaries (d) MEBAE

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-Group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-Group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-Group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

MWEABSIEAEREFNE
RReMAEEEANEEXE
REFF2HEEBRENAZ0IW®.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HEIEEIN > UARIES

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (note 1(K)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Associate (continued)

(f)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associate is stated at cost less
impairment losses (note 1(k)(ii)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to
fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting or hedges of the net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case recognition of any resultant gain
or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (note
1(K)(ii), include the following items

interest in buildings where the group is the
registered owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment; and

— interests in leasehold land where the group is the
registered owner of the property interest; and

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the group is not the
registered owner of the property interest and leases
of underlying plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(note 1(w)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g9) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land 50~80 years
- Buildings 3~20 years
- Machinery 3~10 years
—  Motor vehicles 5 years
—  Office and other equipment 3~5 years

—  Right-of-use assets unexpired term of lease

The residual value rates of each class of fixed assets are
as follows:

Residual value rates (%)

Leasehold Land 0%
Buildings 0~10%
Machinery 0~10%
Motor vehicles 0~10%
Office and other equipment 10%

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

FEGSHBR &

(h HttEmEE

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other financial assets

(i

Other financial assets are recognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase the investment.
The investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognized
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the
Group determines fair value of financial instruments, see
note 29(e).

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure
on development activities is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses (note 1(k)(ii)). Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (note

(ki)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. Computer software is
amortised from the date they are available for the use for
5 to 10 years.

Both the useful life and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

21 8 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

1

(i)

HMtMEMEERAEBKER
ERBEZHABID -ZERE
VMR AFENBEELRS
AT ER A FEST AR
mEtEZRERIN HXZ K
AEERBEPER AL
EEETERTIAEZATFEZ
R > sE 2RI EE29(e) ©

mILEE

MEEHEENIHEREESE
AEEDAAAZ HEEE®
HEFERMKREE LT
BXAEEERZENEREEBER
SERREE T BIMEEEE
YHEHEFTUEBEERIE-BR
tZHEEME A BZES
THAURBEELEANEEE
BREREE (HER) ~BX
16 59 3 AR A 3% B 25 8 R 5t i 8
KR BRI (BT EE1(k)(i)) AR ©
HMHEESZHAEEELRH
HWRARZ -

NEBMRMBEBNEFLEETIU
AR 7R R st 8 (A0 (5 5t BT
FHEPER) REEESE (s
1(K)(ii)) FER ©

BERIUERAFHNETLEE
BN EENGS I ERSE
HAUBEREZEREP MR-
StEESRE R HERE B

St OBEN0FHH o
AERERREESAEEE
TEIRET ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether

the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to

control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed

where the customer has both the right to direct the use

of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of

the economic benefits from that use.

)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily buildings.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HEIEEIN > UARIES

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(g)
and 1(Kk)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

U

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets excluding
lease prepayments in “property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease liabilities separately
in the statement of financial position.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and pledged bank deposits).

Financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the
ECL assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEEHEE &)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

k) FEEGEREREERE @)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() ZHIREFHIEEER (B

(continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continueq)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to
which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including cash
and cash equivalents, and pledged bank deposits),
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEGHEE &

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

k) EEGEEREERE @)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() ZTHBIRELHISELR (B

(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(u)(ii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEGHEE &

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

k) EEGEEREERE @)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

() ZTHBIRELHISELR (B

(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets;

- intangible assets; and

- investments in subsidiaries and associates in
the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
Group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or Group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favorable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U

(continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (see note 1(K)(i)).

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be
consumed in the production process or in the rendering
of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

U

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right
to receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding

receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(n)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(k)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

FEGSHBR &

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(P)

(@)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
note 1(w)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost, except
where the payables are interest-free loans made from
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses
(ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Employee benefits

U

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labor rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the black-scholes model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
share options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the share options will vest.
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
share options are exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the share options
expire (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

FEGEHEE @

(s) FRiit (&

BIHATR IRIE SLF B ERIR WA
HRARKRSHRERHNEE
ERMIR KR ERNFAIEN
ME KRB EFEERMNRIE
EHBIERFHE -

IR R ERRE Y £
(BPEEMBERMBRER
RUBRE BB IR A 2 BB E %)
AELREREEERGR-
REABRBEBERRSHREA
MR EERIERBEE-

| T LEAIINE R FHE
RFTBERERIBEEEM&PIB IR
IEFRIEE B (UL o] 4 A R K 0
BENRKEZRNR AFBIR)

AR AN E R E BT
EXEERBEEENRKER
MRiaF BEEELIREERR
ERNEBELENEE, BZE
EBBHER-MBKEKRRE—
FERMREBRARM WEAEA

I TR E AT EBINE—
B EIERIBEEMESER
IHEEE R mEBANE A PSS

NEAE L - BETIR B EZER
EREHEET BEULFRR

BRARERBEIREBERREEL
RIEERIBE E R 7K E
— A NEEZEEBEED

B —MEEEE RE—ERR
ERER REEERRH
F 73 18 5 48 o 1R 1B 3 o0 HA 1S %
@o

20205 5% B4R E) ARAE 235



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HEIEEIN > UARIES

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has
the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfiilment of a contract
covering other goods, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied
to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(iij) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
year in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are recognised by setting up the grant as deferred
income that is recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Unconditional discretionary government grants from
the government authorities are recognised in the
profit or loss as other revenue when the amount is
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FEGHEE &

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

(v) SMEBE

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement
of financial position items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HEIEEIN > UARIES

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

(x) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a Group of which the other
entity is a member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(o)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(continueq)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(ii) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a Group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those

family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

1 EEGFHER @&
(x) RABE7S (42

(b) (&

ZEREDDATERWN
AEBEBRBERNE
818 ) M & BY B B 12
fBAEtEl -

(vi) =B
Je

.
T

A2 X (a)ERPTIE A
1l 3 H Fl 4l o

(@) (iR PTIE A T ¥ 3
EREEATE LY
BAZER (IZER
BAE) FEEEA
go

(vii)

ZERVEFMBEER
WAERIB B A F [
ERERNAERZLF
RHTBEEAER
7 o

(viii

=

BRATHERKENE
EERSHERERET
REFRMAAIHEZALTE
AEEARETZENRK
A& e

2020555 Btk 8 5R23 241



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial statements provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share

a majority of these criteria.

2 Revenue and segmental reporting

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and
sales of camera modules and fingerprint recognition modules
for mobile phones and other intelligent mobile terminals.
Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold, excludes

VAT and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

The Group manages its businesses by business lines. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified reportable

segments as follows:

- Design, manufacture and sales of camera modules

—  Design, manufacture and sales of fingerprint recognition

modules
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

Revenue and segmental reporting 2 WEKRDEHRE 2
(continued)

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the MNERANEENOTRS D LR
reportable segments of the Group. S B N SR & 5T o

Fingerprint ~ Subtotal of
Camera recognition  reportable

modules modules segments Others Total
B R E A ARE
124 184 SER NG Hith st

RVB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR

2020 ZZ-%

Revenue W 15,202,259 2,101,351 17,303,610 96,759 17,400,369
Cost of sales HERE (13,687,302)  (1,875,983) (15,563,285) (66,499) (15,629,784)
Gross profit e 1,514,957 225368 1,740,325 30,260 1,770,585
2019 —E-NE

Revenue Wigs 10,360,228 2,758,860 13,119,088 50,590 13,169,678
Cost of sales HERA (9,531,731)  (2,423,154) (11,954,885) (34,921)  (11,989,806)
Gross profit e 828,497 335,706 1,164,203 15,669 1,179,872
Others mainly represent revenue from sales of waste HiMFEIEERHERN KT
materials.

Segment profit represents the gross profit earned by each DEHEMISE D EEBEINNER > 8
segment without allocation of expenses and other income BARDEERNBE Y EEMU A - IE
for the year. This is the measure reported to the most senior DA EERRSHKATEEBGS
executive management of the Group for the purposes of EARERDILRIFI G 2HRNAE
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance. o= o

The Group does not allocate specific assets or liabilities NEFBTRODMEITEEENERGBR
to the operating segments as the most senior executive BERHI RRARSHRAITERE
management does not use the information to measure the ThREBEBEERSFENDILER
performance of the segments. IHo
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

2 Revenue and segmental reporting
(continued)

The Group’s revenue by geographical location is determined
by the locations of operations of the contracting parties.

2 WmkDEWRSE &)

REBEZMIBUER DRI TR
BRIJND G E M EE

Revenue e =
PRC (including Hong Kong) HE (BEEH)
Overseas NP4

The Group had three (2019: three) customers with
whom transactions had exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
amount of sales to these customers amounted to
approximately RMB15,240,829,000 (2019: approximately
RMB10,808,346,000) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 29(a).

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, certain
amounts of revenue are related to sales made to related
parties (see note 31).
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2020 2019

RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETFTT
16,801,346 12,725,114
599,023 444,564
17,400,369 13,169,678

BHE_Z T+ _-_A=+—H
FFE AEBR=% (ZE—1
F 2R BERFNXRZBBAEER
WHZMN10% BHE _SE _TFE+—
B=+—HULEFE mzZEEHAH
HEREN A AR 15,240,829,000
T (ZE—AF HNARKE
10,808,346,0007T)  ZEFFESE
NEEREEFEFFEEHI M E
29(a)°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Other revenue and other net loss 3

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

Other revenue
Government grants (note)
Interest income

Others

Note: Government grants were received from several local

H fth i a5

BN #EBh (K7 32)
B WA

HAth

government authorities as a recognition of the Group’s

contribution towards the local economic development, of

which the entitlement was under the discretion of the relevant

authorities.

H e e R 548

2020 2019
- Sk 2.3 —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
112,779 28,986
16,916 13,911
144 116
129,839 43,013

fsE

Other net loss

Net foreign exchange gain/(loss)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on impairment of machinery

Net realised and unrealised
loss on foreign exchange
option contracts

Net realised and unrealised
gain/(loss) on foreign currency
forward contracts

Ht#E#E

ShEUW S (B518) 3R

HEDE - BE K
REBRIEE

HWaRmRENERE

SNERBENNEERK
RNEIREIRFE

SNEERMENNEERK
RERW= (B8R FHE

IS 468 B TS B UM 3 75 B B P
WER > 1R 75 A S B B AR ORS 35
RFTIFLERBYEER > HRF=
EmAAEMIFIEEEE -

2020 2019
—E°E —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
48,916 (25,373)
(11,406) (17,514)
(28,155) (10,587)
(100,728) (9,864)
5,860 (501)
(85,513) (63,839)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

4 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

4 FRBIRTEF]

(@) Finance costs
Interest on bank borrowings
Interest on lease liabilities

BRAGANE AR TR BEE

(b) Staff costs (b)

Contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
(note 25)

Salaries, wages and
other benefits

Equity settled share-based
payment expenses (note 26)
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2
2020 2019
—E_EH —Z2-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARET T
(a) MERZE
IRITEZRFE 51,598 51,581
HEaEFE 1,926 1,230
53,524 52,811
2020 2019
—EEHE —ZT-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARET T
BT
REMTER KT B
(Htz%25)
24,390 18,961
He - IEREMER
868,553 703,379
DURE R 45 B IR (D
TR (H12226) 30,165 3,051
923,108 725,391




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

4 FFRBENEF) (2

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

2020 2019
—E-EHE —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AB#FT
(c) Other items (c) EthimH
Amortisation cost of intangible EmTLEEHHEKA
assets (note 13) (M1at13) 615 558
Depreciation charge (note 10) EXZH Hat10)
— owned property, plant and —BEEVE -BEX
equipment 1 356,251 275,958
- right-of-use assets —(FRAEEE 27,635 14,799
383,886 290,757
Impairment losses BB IE
— trade receivables —B 5 EWIE 293 766
- other receivables —HAth e W FRIE 150 -
— machinery — 3R E 28,155 10,587
— inventories —=5 17,977 53,067
46,575 64,420
Auditors’ remuneration 12 84 BT 577 B
— Audit and review services —KREEB K
for the Group ERIR 1,981 1,981
— Audit services for — B AR B IR
subsidiaries 253 170
Research and development RES R AR (B1EE3))
costs (note (i) 589,737 396,244
Cost of inventories (note (i) EFEE A (K& (i) 15,943,968 12,232,550
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

4 FFEBELEF) (&

4 Profit before taxation (continued)

Notes:

(i)

Research and development costs include staff costs of
employees in the design, research and development department
of approximately RMB142,089,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB103,013,000), which
are included in the staff costs as disclosed in note 4(b).

The criteria for the recognition of such costs as an asset are
generally not met until late in the development state of the
project when the remaining development costs are immaterial.
Hence both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they

are incurred.

Cost of inventories include carrying amount of inventories
sold, carrying amount of inventories recognized as research
and development expense, and write down of inventories.
Cost of inventories includes approximately RMB966,643,000
(2019: approximately RMB778,634,000) for the year ended
31 December 2020 relating to staff costs, depreciation, lease
expenses and amortisation expenses, which amounts are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in note 4(b) for each of these types of expenses.
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M5t

(i)

BE_Z”"_ZTF+°A=+—H
IEFE o A 6 1E R A B
ENMMEEMNEIMRANARE
142,089,0007c (ZE—hHE : HA
E103,018,0007%) > 5t AKT5E4(b)
WENE TR

RZENREDR B —REENRE
—REEEERERERBHET
FIEE R AT A EKRE S EimE e
e B A R B 2 A A — R E
EEREERE A

FERABECHEFRENED
BE-BIAAMEERANEENRE
BERGFEMR BE_SZ=F
+ZB=+—HLEEE - FERA
BIEL AR 966,643,0005T (=
Z—NF I HARBET78,634,000
o) CHEBTHAITE - HERZ
REHEES AR ZESEITA
ZEXBHMATE L XEBRER
R 40 BN S IBAREEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

Income tax in the consolidated statement 5
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income

(@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represents:

SHEmkHMEERRTR
FREYFRIFIR

(a) EHEZmREMEEmKEERSP
BIFR1SIRLS

2020 2019
- Joml 3= 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTF T

Current tax BN HA#7 I8
PRC Corporate Income Tax RE R ERER
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax B i& E T8I0

Deferred tax IEIEFRIE

Origination and reversal of TR EBENES KL
temporary differences (M1z£27(b))
(note 27(b))

145,073 80,968

4,500 -
149,573 80,968
(19,613) (16,439)
129,960 64,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement 5
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

SifEmREMEERER
PEIFREH (&)

(b) HERARERAETHNRIBR A
FEHEFNHR

2020 2019
ZEIERHF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T

Profit before taxation BR0 AR A 970,068 606,901
Notional tax on profit before PRI AN RN B % R IE

taxation, calculated at the %E BN AR

rates applicable to the tax EERENREH

jurisdictions concerned 250,828 142,988
Tax effect of PRC preferential FEEIRBEHEN

tax treatments (note (iv)) M E (HaE(v) (112,336) (58,653)
Tax effect of additional Bff 22 Al X B BRSO TR BY

deduction on research and M

development costs (38,628) (26,344)
Tax effect of non-deductible AHNRASZNREEE

expenses 4,939 752
Tax effect of non-taxable income H 78 5% 3 WL A FI R 75 52 & (316) (129)
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIEFIRENHIRIBEIER

not recognised MR E 1,375 941
Withholding tax on profit retained 9 B Y /& 2 &) f& B8 & £ 89

by PRC subsidiaries (note (v) T8I0 (H15£(v)) 24,098 4,974
Actual tax expense EREMBREX 129,960 64,529
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
BVI.

Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited (‘Kunshan
QT Hong Kong”) and Kunshan Q Technology International
Limited (“QT international”) are subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax at 16.5%.

Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (India) Private Limited
(“India Q Tech”), Q Technology Korea Limited (“Korea
Q Tech”) and Q Technology (Singapore) Private Limited
(“Singapore Q Tech”) are subject to the local income tax at
25%, 10% and 17% respectively.

5 afffEmkHEMEERTR

FRIFREI (&

(b) BERAMRERAEHNRIBRZ A
FEHEMNHER: (E

st

() RERSEENEBEUES
(TRBREZES)) NEAK
AR AEEBARBEES
KRB R E ERNERFTE

A o

(i) Kunshan Q Technology (Hong
Kong) Limited (T2 E#KFE
B RELUERBEEEER
A (TEREE]) A1216.5%
IR HMEBRIER

(i) Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics
(India) Private Limited (TENE
E#k)) ~Q Technology Korea
Limited (T3 B K#k)) &Q
Technology (Singapore) Private
Limited (T5rA03% E841) 2578
F225% ~ 10%5217 %8975 Z 4
EPIISIR o

20205 53 B8R (E) ARAE 251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

5 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)  The PRC statutory income tax rate is 25%. Kunshan Q
Technology Limited (“Kunshan QT China”) successfully
renewed the High and New Technology Enterprise
(*HNTE”) qualification on 24 October 2018 and continued
to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% for three
years commenced from 1 January 2018. Shenzhen Q
Technology Limited (“Shenzhen QT Subsidiary”) was
qualified as a HNTE on 9 December 2019 to enjoy
a preferential income tax rate of 15% for three years
commenced from 1 January 2019.

(v)  According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, the Group is subject to a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties
or arrangements, for dividends distributed by a PRC
enterprise to its immediate holding company outside
the PRC for earnings generated beginning on 1 January
2008. According to the China-HK Tax Arrangement and
its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax resident
which is the “beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of
a PRC enterprise is entitled to a reduced withholding rate
of 5%.
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5 afffEmkHEMEERTR
PEIFREH (&)

(b) HERARERAETHNRIBR A
FEHEMNHER: (E

MisE : (&

(iv)

FEMNEEMESRBRES
25% N _E—N\FE+ A
“+mE B ESMEFR
FAERAR (BWESKFE])
RINEES MM (TEH
K ZE) B> BZZE—N
E—FB—HEst=EB=H
15% B EFRFRE RIYIT
ERMEFRERRAR (MEF
NEHKMBAGEL) RZE2E—N
E+ZBhBESSHEME
®¥EK B2 —hE—HA—
HES =ZE=E15%WEBEFR

BB EEERSREKRER
BRE FEREARTRHERE
B-EZN\F-—B—BEME
ENEMBEDPEIRINERE
RABDIKBIKREH10% (K
1R 15 1R U 1 € S % R 58 UL PR
SN B R B TEI IR © 1R H%
B MR L P R HARR AR
T ERBaBERAAIIRA
PRI 225% L L RENE
EREBMTBERAELS%
BYAS SRR TR R AN AR ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi@lﬁﬁi

December 2020 —_E _FF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A &R UAREFIR)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other scheme
benefits  contributions

#a 2HR
iz EftRH EBGHEER
RMB'O00  RMB'0OD  RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR

Executive directors ~ H{7EE

6

EFFHM

*E%é%’&ﬂ%%%%a ME R~
B (RBEESFHmER) R E28
%EEFH& EZEERHMNOT

EE

Share-based
Discretionary payments
bonuses Sub-total (Note 1)

Uktha

RETEA it 2 o5t
RMB'OOO  RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARRTR

Mr. He Ningning EEEE 320 - - - 320 - 320
M. Weng Jiangiang ~ TfREEEE (2

Note 2) - 767 5 1,033 1,805 833 2,638
M. Hu Sanmu PA%E - 469 5 641 1,115 657 1,772
Mr. Fan Fugiang Note 5) BER5%E (Hi2) - 99 - 827 926 657 1,583
Independentnon-  BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang ~ FIRHLE 89 - - - 89 - 89
Mr. Ko Ping Keung BRERE 89 - - - 89 - 89
Mr. Ng Sui Yin SRERE 89 - - - 89 - 89
Total 3 587 1,335 10 2,501 4433 2,147 6,580
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

6 ERHM =

6 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits

fiz 2R

Retirement
scheme
contributions

BE_FT-hE+"A=+—HLEEE

Discretionary
bonuses

Share-based
payments
Note 1)
Nkt A
BRI

Sub-total

iz AtER  BHGEER N It i st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR ARRTR AREfr ARETR ARBTR  ARRTR
Executive directors #1783

Mr. He Ningning AEEEE 317 - - - 317 - 317
Mr Wang Jangiang ~ ERERE - 739 16 767 1522 87 1559
Mr. Hu Sanmu P=AxE - 452 17 486 955 2 982

Independentnon-  BUFHTES

executive directors
Mr. Chu Chia-Hsiang &% 4E 88 - - - 88 - 88
Mr.KoPingKewng — SEERE 88 - - - 88 - 88
M. Ng Sui Yin SRERE 88 - - - 88 - 88
Total st 5681 1,191 33 1,253 3,008 64 3122
Note 1: These represent the estimated value of share options granted Mtz ZESREIERIBEAEFRNEIGRE

to the directors under the Group’s share option scheme.

The value of these share options is measured according to

the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment

transactions as set out in note (r)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal

terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in note

26.

Note 2:

Mr. Wang Jiangiang has resigned from his position as an

executive Director since 15 December 2020 and Mr. Fan

Fuqgiang has been appointed as an executive Director at the

same time. Mr. Fan Fugiang’s emoluments disclosed above

include emoluments from 1 January 2020 to 14 December

2020, when he acted as chief financial officer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

Directors’ emoluments (continued) 6 Z=EHIHM @&
During the year, there were no amounts paid or payable REAEE  ZEBBEREERL T
by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid Y7 EEA RS H A T2
individuals set out in note 7 below as an inducement to join S E TR IBIEAIBIE N A A E
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of o P08 Y SR Eh ol {E A& BE B A
office. There was no arrangement under which a director HE - RAEE > BIHEEEMED
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the year. B EWNEE A FHIN L HE o
Individual with highest emoluments 7 BEALT
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three HE_E"EF+"_H=+—HIE
(2019: two) of them are directors for the year ended 31 FE > AR FATHE=L (Z
December 2020, whose emoluments are disclosed in note BE—NFE I WMEB) AEF HFEMN
6 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the M EE6IE EE o Br N A T BY H BN
remaining individuals are as follows: EEEYNT -
2020 2019
ZEIEHE “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Salaries and other emoluments o e EoAth 5 1,365 1,772
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 1,269 1,321
Contributions to retirement IRIKEF] 5T EH R
benefit scheme 32 64
Share-based payments DU AERBT R 1,260 187
3,926 3,344
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _E_FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

7 Individual with highest emoluments

(continued)

The emoluments of the remaining two (2019: three) individuals

with the highest emoluments for the year ended 31 December

2020 are within the following bands:

mEmAL &

BE_Z_ZTF+__R="1— EIJt
FE-FEma (TTE-—NE:
%) “E‘%ﬁ)\iﬂ’ﬁﬁ@‘ﬂﬂ%ﬁu?%&
& :

2020 2019

—EIEHF —E2-NF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 521,500,000 75 - 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 %E2,500,0007 7% 2 -
2 3

8 Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Tax effects relating to each component of other

comprehensive income/(loss)

Exchange difference on BENTEENERER.
translation of;
~ financial statements of ~HEABENIMNIE
subsidiaries outside the NEIMBERE
Mainland China

Other comprehensive income/{loss) 2 &M E/ (H1#
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Before-tax
amount
T
RMB'000
AEETT

97,237

Tax effect

ﬁﬁ?\/a
RMB'000
AEBFR

(1,264)

Hittzmikz, (8518

ERAEMmEEEE  (B518) SEMR
BONRBEE

2019
3Nk
Net-of-tax Before-tax Net-of-tax
amount amount Tax effect amount

RhkEE EEEE hEZE  BikeR
RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000
IGERell  \EETT ARETR ARETR

95,973 (3,948) 106 (3,842)

97,237

(1,264)

95,973 (3.948) 106 (3842




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

9 Earnings per share 9 HiEEF
(a) Basic earnings per share (@) SREXEF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on SREREBEHNTLULRANATZE
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of BEiEIE B AL SN AR
the Company of approximately RMB840,108,000 (2019: 840,108,0007¢ (Z&E—HF :
approximately RMB542,372,000) and the weighted HANRUEES542,372,0007T) &
average of 1,168,251,000 (2019: 1,139,599,000) FRBEETEZ BB MEREY
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated as £01,168,251,0008% (Z&—A
follows: fF 1 1,139,599,0000%) & EH %
STEWT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ZE R TEIg2
2019
—E2—hF
‘000
T
Issued ordinary share at R—E—HBHBEETEER
1 January 1,157,476 1,131,722
Effect of share options BITEERENTE
exercised (note 28(c)(ii) (Kt z228(c)(ii) 10,775 7,836
Effect of shares issued for the FLECE BE1TRIPMNEE
Placement (note 28(c){iii)) (H1z£28(c)(iii)) - 41
Weighted average number of R+ZBE=+—HB8
ordinary shares at BRI T8
31 December 1,168,251 1,139,599
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

9 Earnings per share (continued) 9 BiKREN #@)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) SRE#EEET
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on PG SEZ R T U AR AT Z S
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of BEEEEAE AEEZHGAR
the Company of approximately RMB840,108,000 (2019: #840,108,00070 (Z&—H
approximately RMB542,372,000) and the weighted FIHANRMS542,372,000
average of ordinary shares of 1,176,282,000 shares o) K ZE N O
(2019: 1,150,230,000) calculated as follows: 1,176,282,000f& (Z&E—H
% 11,150,230,0008%) % & %
STEWT
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BRI 1 B (1 578)
(diluted)
2019
“E-REF
000
T
Weighted average number of R+ _HB=+—HH
ordinary shares at BRI T IE
31 December 1,168,251 1,139,599
Effect of deemed issue RIERIBA LB EBRESE
of shares under the BITRMOTE
Company’s share
option schemes 8,031 10,631
Weighted average number R+-_B=+—HB8
of ordinary shares (diluted) ZmRINAEF IR (#58)
at 31 December 1,176,282 1,150,230
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

10 Property, plant and equipment

10 3%« R B Besefs

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Office and
Leasehold Motor other Construction
land Buildings ~ Machinery vehicles  equipment Sub-total in progress Total
AR
fETH BF  RERE AE Rt Nt BRIR Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTR AR%ETR ARETR ARETn ARETR AR%ETR ARETR ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 RIZ-n%5-A-8 57,029 352,354 1,701,397 1,035 239,860 2,351,675 112,406 2,464,081
Additions HE - 46,483 858,377 185 61,096 966,141 133,309 1,099,450
Transfer from construction BEATRIR
in progress - 50,917 923 - - 51,840 (51,840) -
Disposals HE - - (73,100) - (32,143 (105,249) - (105,243)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NE+ZA=+-Bk
1 January 2020 “2°5%5-F-f 57,029 449,754 2,487,597 1,220 268,813 3,264,413 193,875 3,458,288
Additions HE - 36,943 308,583 - 22,855 363,381 333,914 697,295
Transfer from construction BEATRIR
in progress 48,995 260,841 115,495 - 6,791 432,122 (432,122) -
Disposals HE - (890) (50,511) - (19,186) (70,587) - (70,587)
At 31 December 2020 RIE-ZF+-B=+-H 106,024 746,648 2,856,164 1,220 279,273 3,989,329 95,667 4,084,996
Accumulated depreciation: ZHE
A1 January 2019 RZE-niE-B-8 (5239 (80898 (28194 638 (148656  (517375) - 6737
Charge for the year ERik (140 (45679 (187959 08 (589 (290757) - 90TSY)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 37,470 - 26,887 64,357 - 64,357
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-NE+ZA=+-Bk
1 January 2020 “3-F£-B-R 6379 (126577 (432427) 73 (177658  (143,775) - (4a7)
Cherge for the year ERik (1205 (58928  (84,324) 08 (39249  (383886) - (383886)
Written back on disposals HERED - 604 19,183 - 15,406 35,193 - 35,198
At 31 December 2020 RWoB-EE+A=+- 7674 (184896 (697,568) B30) (015000  (1,092,458) - (1092469
Provision for impairment ARG
At 1 January 2019 RIZ-n%5-F-H - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year ERHIR - - (10,587) - - (10,587) - (10,587)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=+-H
1 January 2020 RZZZ%5-F-H - - (10,587) - - (10,587) - (10,587)
Charge for the year ERk - - (28,155) - - (28,155) - (28,155)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 5,769 - - 5,769 - 5,769
At 31 Decernber 2020 RZB-BEHZA=-B - - R - - @ - @
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2019 RIZ-NE+ZA=+-H 50,650 323177 2,044,583 486 91,155 2,510,051 193,875 2,703,926
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZF+ZR=+-H 98,350 561,752 2,125,623 390 77,778 2,863,888 95,667 2,959,555
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

10 Y% - BB Kessfs (&)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a)

(b)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group was in the
process of obtaining the ownership certificate in
respect of buildings in the PRC with net book value of
approximately RMB196,925,000 (2019: approximately
RMB86,629,000).

In June 2020 and December 2020, a number of
machines were unable to meet the production needs.
The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of those
machines and as a result the carrying amount of the
machines was written down to their recoverable amount.
An impairment loss of approximately RMB28,155,000
was recognised in “Other net loss” (2019: approximately
RMB10,587,000).

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset is as follows:

Notes

HfaE

(@)

(b)

+=B=+—H
RMB’000
ARBTT

Leasehold land, carried %185 B A%/ Bk
at amortised cost BRI E L

Properties leased for BITERATERD
own use, carried at BREEYE
depreciated cost

Machinery, carried at T EE B AR BR B4 25
depreciated cost B
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()

(i)

(i)

IREEHKR (&
N_EEF+ZH=+—
HAEBEEMRMUN P
BZERBEBFEANARE
196,925,00070 (ZE— N5 :
#“ ANR186,629,0007T) Z1&
FREMABEE

RIEZEFRARIEZE
F+TR B THESRBEBRE
HMEEEEE -AEETMHZ
LHBEEZTTIREISEE K
MESRE I REENRERA
WElEEE REBEBOARE
28,155,0007C (ZZE—NF : &9
AE#10,587,0007t) BERN TE
fthFESIB N FERD ©

ERERE

AR BEERMNS D2 ERE
BEZREFEDROT :

31 December
2019
—E—hE
+ZA=+—H
RMB’000
ARETF T

31 December

2020
—E-TF

—_—"

98,350 50,650

19,986 13,777

23,455 39,348

141,791 103,775
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BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

10 Y% - BB Kessfs (&)

(b) EREEE (&

REDNERSAEREEZRX
BEDHWT -

Amortisation and REFAEEENS 92
depreciation charge of FREEESHER
right-of-use assets IERX%
by class of underlying
assets:

Leasehold Land FAE i

Properties leased for own use B REEY%

Machinery AR

Interest on lease HEaENE
liabilities (note 4(a)) (Bt t4(a)

ARG THEHBAR ZZ—NF
+TZA=+—H=ZA
HBRZEREER
HithiBE 2 %

Expense relating to short-term
leases and other leases with
remaining lease term ending
on or before 31 December
2019

During the Year, additions to right-of-use assets were
approximately RMB65,937,000. This amount primarily
related to the leasehold land the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

2020 2019
- a2 3 —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
1,295 1,140
9,581 5,494
16,759 8,165
27,635 14,799
1,926 1,230
9,626 3,891

FR-EAEERABREENS
AR #65,937,00070 ° Z & 88
TEEFTHEWZRRE TEELS
Mz BREERZEMEENR
Bffe
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

10 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the Year, disposals to right-of-use assets were
approximately RMB286,000. This amount primarily
related to termination of tenancy agreements in advance.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 19(d) and
23, respectively.

(i) Leasehold land

Leasehold land represent the ownership interests
in leasehold land located in China and India. The
Group is granted land use rights for a period of
50~80 years.

(i)  Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its factory, warehouse, staff dormitory
and office through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years.
Lease payments are usually increased every 1 years
to reflect market rentals.

(iij) Machinery, carried at depreciated cost

The Group leases machinery under a lease expiring
3 years. The lease includes an option to purchase
the leased equipment at the end of the lease term
at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option.
The lease does not include variable lease payment.
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10 ME -BEKSE &)
(b) FREEE (&

FRO-HECREEENAA
R 1286,0007cc s =R T 284
RARIEEEHZRAR -

EHEaEHEREEY
WZIRERHABEEEIE D AE
FHE5E19(d) K23 °

() HELH

ME LIS P E &
EzHRET M EEEE
moAEEERERAS0
ESOFEZ M EAME-

(i) BREHEYE

AEBCEBHEERZRN
SEMYE (BIIORKE
EE-BIBEBERPLE
ZERAE-HE—RND
R ESF - HEMNRE
ESFEMUKRBRTISHE
4o

(iii) FZHT EE HE A5 AR A % 25 2%t

REERBNRIFREBZ
HEAEKSE KA &
EQEREREREZR
FREBEEN ZERE
EEExRBmBZEAN -ZHE
EfGErEBEEMR
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Investments in subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries

of the Company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

1 RIBARRKRE

TREWNERBTFAENB AT ZE
ko bR 3 BB » PRFF IR D 4R 5

Bz o

Proportion of equity interest

Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid-up capital/ attributable to
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BHRES/
RETR HMAL/ RUBSRASH S HhEs FAREMERELS  TEER
Direct Indirect
El 35
Q Technology (Great China) Inc. British Virgin Islands (‘BVI')/ BVI US$10,000/ 100% - Investment holding
(“QT Great China’) 3 July 2007 HERUEE US$10,000 RERR
Q Technology (Great China Inc. (TQT Great China)) XBRLEE ((KERLES) / 10,0008/
2t tAH 10,000% 7
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics Co., Ltd.* People’s Republic of China (*PRC’)/ PRC RMB2,837,588,000/ - 100% Manufacture and trading of
(BWEHHEFRRRHERAT) 15 October 2007 e RMB2,887,588,000 Camera Modules and
(Note ) PEARENE (hE) / AR 2,887,588,0007,/ Fingerprint Recogntion
BUESHETRERAERAR (i) ZZ2tE+E 1A \E%2,887,588,0007 Modules
REREERGEEAR
ERE L
Kunshan Q Technology (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/15 January 2013 Hong Kong HK$10,001/ - 100% Trading of Camera
E8/5-ZF-Rt1H &4 HK$10,001 Modules and Fingerprint
10,001%7,/ Recognition Modules
10,001%7 EERGERAR
ERE Ik
Chengdu Q Technology Limited* PRC/6 June 2014 PRC RMB,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
(“Chengdu QT Subsidiary’) HE/Z5-MENARA # RMB1,000,000 of Camera Modules and
(A ESHMETHEBRAR) Mot ) AR 1,000,007,/ Fingerprint Recognition
AR HEFREBRAR AE#1,000,0007 Modules
(RBESMELE)) (i) HERGBRAR
ERE L
Shenzhen Q Technology Limited* PRC/19 June 2015 PRC RMBS,000,000/ - 100% Trading, research and
(“Shenzhen QT Subsidiary’) e/ ZE-1E/ATHA # RMB5,000,000 development of Camera
(R RSB TREERAR) Notef) R 5,000,007,/ Modules and Fingerprint
FIBEHRHETRERRAD A #5,000,0007 Recognition Modules
(TR Sk A 5L) Az BE HEmGERER
e nll
Taiwan Q Technology Limited* Taiwan/1 July 2015 Taiwan TWD452,998,422/ 100% - Trading of Camera
(“Taiwan QT Subsidiary’) B%/_Z-nEtE-H ak TWD452,998,422 Modules and Fingerprint
(BEESHEARAT) HAK452,998 4227/ Recognition Modules
BELHBRERAE (GELHNEAT)) 551452,98,4007 EERGERAR
SAGABIEA
Zhuhai Q Technology Limited” PRC/20 December 2018 PRC RMB5,000,000/ - 100%  Research and development
(‘Zhuhai QT Subsidiary’) TE/-F-\5+-A=1H # RMB5,000,000 of Camera Modules and
(BiEm RS MBTREBERAR) Notef) R #5,000,0007,/ Fingerprint Recognition
KEDIHHEFHRERAT AE#5,000,0007 Modules
(k8 Est B A TL) Azt REREBERER
ERE L
Kunshan Q Tech Microelectronics (Indiia) India/10 January 2019 India US$5,152,513/ - 100% Manufacture and trading of
Private Limited 0E/5-N4-B+8 0E 1S$5,152,513 Camera Modules and
515251357/ Fingerprint Recognition
5,152,513% 70 Modules
HERBERGERER
ERE Gk
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31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

11 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

11 RBARNKRE (&

Proportion of equity interest

Place and date of incorporation/ Place of Paid-up capital/ attributable to
Name of Company establishment operation registered capital the Company Principal activities
BMRES/
RAEH HMAML/ RIMHREH BEHE HREE FAARGRELH  FEEE
Direct Indirect
Bl k3
Kunshan QTech Optoglectronic Technology PRC/3 January 2020 PRC RMBS,000,000/ - 100% Research and development
Limited* (“QT Optoelectronic Subsidiary’) HE/Z22%55-F=H * RMB100,000,000 of Camera Modules and
(R RSt EREERAE) Notefi) AR 5,000,007/ Fingerprint Recognition
EAHAERRBRAF 100,000,007 Modules
(TSt BB AR ) M) HEREBRAREAHAE
&
Q Technology Korea Limited Korea/29 January 2020 Korea KRW200,000,000/ - 100% Trading of Camera
#E/"F°FF-AZtNH 8 KRW200,000,000 Modules and Fingerprint
200,000,000& 7t/ Recognition Modules
200,000,0008 70 BERGERARISOGHAR
i
Kunshan Q Technology International Limited Hong Kong/4 November 2020 Hong Kong 1S$10,000,000/ - 100%  Trading of Camera Modules
BUEHREERERAT &5/"F°2F+-FRA &% US§10,000,000 BERGEEA
10,000,000% 7t/
10,000,000% T
Kunshan QTech Ever Capital Limited” PRC/6 November 2020 PRC US$10,000,000/ - 100%  Investment holding
(“Kunshan EC Subsidiary’) HE/ 5255 +—A/H * 1U5$10,000,000 REZER
EBLEAREREERAE) (ote ) 10,000,000% 7t/
EAHREREBRAR 10,000,000% 7T
(ELsEREAR) ()
Kunshan Q Technology Biological Recognition PRC/9 November 2020 PRC US$72,426,000/ - 100%  Manufacture and trading of
Limited* (*Kunshan BR Subsidiary’) HE/ 25255 +-ANH I 1S$100,000,000 Fingerprint Recognition
(B EKENEFREERAT) Mote ) 72,426,000% 7/ Modules
BUEHENENRBERAS 100,000,000%7C HEREBEENANGA
(ELEMHARERS) W)
Q Technology (Singapore) Private Limited Singapore/24 November 2020 Singapore US$500,000/ - 100%  Investment holding and Trading
wmg/—E-E5+-F+MA il US§500,000 of Camera Modules
500,000%7%/ REZRREERGELA
500,000%7C
* The English translation of the companies’ names are for * ZEANBLBZEAXHEEHS
reference only. The official names of the companies are in EoZENTMERNLBARX o
Chinese.
Notes: st -
(i)  The entity is a wholly foreign owned enterprise incorporated in (i) ZERANPEFMERILINEE
the PRC. [=§=E

(i) The entity is a limited liabilities company established in the PRC.

(i) The entity is a foreign-invested company incorporated in the

PRC.
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BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

12 Interest in an associate

12 R—REBE AT NER

Place of Proportion of equity
operation and interest attributable to
Name of Associate Date of incorporation business Paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
HERERE Bt A=) BEREBME BYRER FATEMGRELS  TEES
Direct Indirect
Ef i
Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. 10 August 1999 Taiwan TWD1,849,138,480 30.8% 4.5%  Design, research,
(rERRRHERAE) —AAAENATE aE 511,849,138, 4807T development,

HENRRABRAR

On 18 March 2017, the Group entered into a share
subscription agreement with Newmax Technology Co.,
Ltd. Upon the settlement of the total consideration of
RMB275,236,000 approximately on 31 August 2017, an
aggregate of 57,008,888 placing shares have been allotted
and issued to the Company, representing approximately
36% of the entire issued ordinary shares of Newmax
Technology Co., Ltd. as enlarged upon completion of the
private placement. Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. became an
associate of the Group.

On 20 August 2019, Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.
completed a capital injection by issuing 25,000,000
new ordinary shares to subscribers including its current
shareholders, employees and the public. The Group
subscribed 8,321,701 shares with a consideration of
approximately RMB155,799,000. Upon completion of the
capital injection, the Group held approximately 35.3% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Newmax Technology Co., Ltd.
as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, 26,160,850 (2019:16,160,850)
shares of Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. held by the Group
were pledged as security for long-term bank borrowings (see
note 20).

manufacture and
sales of optical lens

et B3 RIBE{TH
HEEE

N ZE—ttHF=A+NH &XE
BEHMERNEERNBERQBE]
IR AREREE N —+
FNB=1+—"H&BEREHD
AR #275,236,000 0% > &
57,008,888 L & f% 10 B Fo 8 K &
TTAERE BER N TEMRAMER
ERREAMERNERSERRAT
Z2E2HBEITEER ZH36%
BEREROGERABNASERERZ
BERT -

RZE—AENBZ+H #ib#
FERMBRABDUEREA (B1F
HERERE - BEERARAL) &
725,000,000 M EZ @RI 5 =X
TRAEE - AERBURBOARK
155,799,0007058 88,321,701 f& B%
PoMRIETEMB  AEBEFEH
BEREROGERABRNRIZEZESF
+ZBE=+—Hz&2%B%TEE
B2 4935.3% ©

WZEZEFE+ZA=+—8"
AEEFHEM26,160,8508% (ZF
— N 1 16,160,8508%) #IERHL I
MBERRABD KRN EIRBIEARIIR
TREMBER (RHEE20) o

02055% B4R E) BR2E 265
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

12 R—REBEATNER (&

TXHBEBMERATD ZHMBER M
2 ZEFENEMESBRZIER
ERFHAR THEHMBRE
ZIREEHEK:

12 Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled
to the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial are
disclosed below:

2020 2019
ZEIERHF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Gross amounts of the associate B /AT Z 458
Current assets MENEE 891,659 1,008,186
Non-current assets FERBEE 845,146 590,990
Current liabilities mEEE (436,495) (393,427)
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE (286,493) (142,664)
Equity fie e (1,013,817) (1,063,085)
Revenue WA 631,682 776,067
(Loss)/profit from operations R (BB HA (64,959) 113,223
Other comprehensive income Htte2m s 17,754 (14,555)
Total comprehensive income SENTEEE (47,205) 98,668
Included in the above (loss)/profit: st AL _E (E538) /7@ FIMNIER !
Depreciation and amortisation reEREH (139,752) (91,797)
Interest income B WA 2,229 1,430
Interest expense MERZ (7,420) (5,553)
Income tax expense FTi8MEx (2,647) (19,249)
Reconciled to the Group’s FEBRBEQTERZHIR
interest in the associate
Gross amounts of net assets of ~ Bi& A B & EFELLEE
the associate 1,013,817 1,063,085
Group's effective interest KEBERER 35.3% 35.3%
Group’s share of net assets of AEBEEBENDEEFE
the associate 358,184 375,316
Goodwill e 57,874 57,874
Carrying amount in the EHPHERENIREE
consolidated financial
statements 416,058 433,190
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13 Intangible assets

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

3 BIEE

Computer
software
sHEE SR
RMB’000
AREFTT
Cost: ﬁEzI: :
At 1 January 2019 A ZE—-hhF—HB—H 2,056
Addition NE 4,026
At 31 December 2019, A _E-NEFE+ZA=+—8-
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 “E2CEF-A—BK
—E2TEF+"HA=+—H 6,082
Accumulated amortisation: Rty -
At 1 January 2019 RZTZ2—-NFE—HA—H (629)
Amortisation for the year FREH (558)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 A ZE-NFTZA=+—HBK
—_E-FF—HFA—H (1,187)
Amortisation for the year R 5 (615)
At 31 December 2020 N ZETEF+Z/B=+—H (1,802)
Net book value: IRERE -
At 31 December 2019 N _E2—-hEFE+B=+—H 4,895
At 31 December 2020 N _E_EE+_A=+—H 4,280
The amortisation charges of the intangible assets for the year FRNEFEENEHERSSTAS
are included in “administrative and other operating expenses” HEZRXRPW TR EEMKE RS
in the consolidated income statement of profit or loss. + o
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _BE_ZEF+_H=+—

H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

14 Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position

comprise:

14 78

BHEUBRARERTNEERE

Raw materials and consumables
Work in progress
Finished goods

R} 52 H FE
ERm
B i

The analysis of amount of inventories as an expenses and

included in profit or loss is as follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold

Carrying amount of inventories
recognised as administrative
and other operating expenses
and research and development
expenses

Write-down of inventories

BEHEFENREE

S AITTHRAEMEE

ER KT EER
FZENREE

g
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2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

861,245 614,557

569,092 627,697

512,688 671,114

1,943,025 1,913,368
FRAX ABEPNEFEREN

2R iR (I

2020 2019

—_ 7 —= ﬂE _j-LﬁE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBT T

15,601,067 11,936,485

324,924 242,998

17,977 53,067

15,943,968 12,232,550
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15 Trade and other receivables

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

15 B 5 KR E R RIE

Trade receivables

— third parties

— related parties (note 31(c))
Bills receivable

— third parties

Trade and bills receivables

Less: loss allowance

Other deposits, prepayments
and receivables

B 7 EUGRIE
—%£=5
—RM s (WaE31(c))
FE Ut R

s —

—%£=5

8 5 B IE & B R &

RS

Hitg s~ BIMER
& R T8

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Bills receivable represented outstanding bank acceptance bills

and commercial acceptance bills. Bills receivable are due in 3

to 6 months from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2020, no trade receivables were pledged

as security for short-term bank borrowings (31 December
2019: approximately RMB278,827,000) (see note 20).

2020 2019
—_ 7 —_= E = _j-l_,ﬂz
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREFT
3,400,788 4,771,573
1,263 7,479
76,190 57,969
3,478,241 4,837,021
(1,590) (1,297)
3,476,651 4,835,724
112,377 83,565
3,589,028 4,919,289

FiE B 5 Kk EMEWGRIETREIR 1 — &
AR EI BB

FERRBERIBARROBITERRRE
REEATEE BREERBETHH
FEFT3E6ME A EIH -

AT TFE+ZRB=+—H #E
%}T‘aéuﬁzmﬂﬁeif_&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂ%ﬂﬂ’ﬂ
ERCE-—AE+ZA=+—H:GA
E##278,827,0007t) (RH{zE20) ©
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 B REMEYWRIE (&)

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the year, the ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables (which are included in trade and
other receivables), based on the invoice date and net of
allowance for doubtful debts, is as follows:

Within 1 month PUER XA

More than 1 month but wmiE1ME s ENR3EA UR
within 3 months

More than 3 months but #8iE31E A B efE A U A
within 6 months

More than 6 months but i@ B ER1FURN

within 1 year

Trade debtors are generally due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of which invoice issued.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit

risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable are set
out in note 29(a).

2 7 O Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

(@) ERERDMA

REER REZHHE D KO
REIRBHEENEZ BUGRIERER
i (Bt AE S RAEMBWRIR
BUEREC D ITENT

2020 2019
—EEHE —F-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREEFT
2,553,862 3,076,543
806,368 1,733,705
116,353 25,178
68 208
3,476,651 4,835,724

ERENREREAREEEH
FEST30E90H A EIHA

TEBNEERERBE 5 BRI
EREWEEEENEERMIE
— S ERIBE M EE29(a) ©
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A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

15 Trade and other receivables (continued) 15 B REMEYWRIE &)

(b) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (b) BEZEWRIERERERRE
Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills B ERRIE R EWZ SR ER
receivables are recorded using an allowance account B A REIRIE  BIEAERE
unless the Group is satisfied that the recovery of the M E B SENIESEMFEH
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is MoFIER TN REFREEREHE
written off against trade and bills receivables directly. B S EWNIE R ERZ M o
The movement in the allowance during the year is as FEREBEHENEBSHWNT
follows:

2020 2019
—E_% “Z-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
As at 1 January w—A—H 1,297 531
Impairment losses recognised B S HYREE 18 293 766
As at 31 December W+-—B=+—H 1,590 1,297
16 Other financial assets 16 HihE &S E

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RIE_EHF RIZZE—hHF
TZA=+—H |yl

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®ETTT
Other financial assets HMEmMEE 100,000 -
Other financial assets represent investments in short-term HthemEEARBPRR A gE
wealth management products issued by commercial banks BT EMER (&K
in mainland China whose principal and returns are not O3 I EERE) K& o
guaranteed.
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities 17 TEEHEERERE

At 31 December 2020

Notional

amount Liabilities
BEEHE i =4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT ARETT

Foreign currency derivative SNEETTET A
instruments
— Forward contracts —Z=HEH 267,030 - (975)
— Option contracts — SN 535,042 - (47,302)
Total “BET 802,072 - (48,277)
At 31 December 2019
A ZF-NFE+ZR=1—H
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
BLELHE BE a8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
Foreign currency derivative SMETTHET R
instruments
— Forward contracts —ZEAEH 1,112,704 - (9,142)
- Option contracts —HAEE L 587,396 26,472 -
Total st 1,700,100 26,472 (9,142)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities 17 TEEMEEREE &
(continued)

The Group entered into foreign currency option and foreign KREBEBEEBITTILINERRE L INER
currency forward contracts with banks. As at 31 December e RN E_SFE+_/F=+—
2020, the notional amount of outstanding contracts H X BPBAN2LESTENA
amounted to approximately USD122,925,000 (31 December 122,925,000t (ZE—hE+_H
2019: approximately USD243,700,000). All these option and =+—H :49243,700,000%& 7T) ° FAE %
forward contracts are matured within one year. EHRRE I B SN N —E RN EIER o
The fair value of the foreign currency option contracts is SNEEERRE SN AEEVIRBAR DS —
measured using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. Main ST —REHELA2-BEARREN
parameters used in the model include the spot price of the FTERYEEGEHENAEER S {THE
foreign exchange rates as of the valuation date, strike rates, T IZHRINEE X\ INEERNE SN
forward foreign exchange rates, implied volatilities of foreign BRI KEREF K

exchange rates and the risk-free rates.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts takes into SNEERBBESANZ AFEELEER TSR
account the market interest rate and the estimated future KLzl S N7 ([Get KRR E| S EE o

pay-off of the forward contracts.

18 Pledged bank deposits 18 BIKHIRITEIN
2020 2019
=gl >3- 3 —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Pledged for AU T RIFIRHA
— short-term bank borrowings — 52 HRIRIT AR
(note 20) (Btat20) 260,860 90,691
— letter of guarantee —ERX 5,702 1,956
Pledged bank deposits BIRFIRITER 266,562 92,647
The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the BIRHIETEI SR SEHREIRTT
settlement of relevant bank borrowings, bills payable, and the S~ FEN EiE KR K B B 15 R
maturity of letter of guarantee. & o
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19 IRE KRS XEBE YR EMIA

flow information EHREaH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) REKREHEYEIE
2020 2019
—ETE —_E—HE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®F T
Cash in hand FHRERE 78 97
Cash at bank RITFER 1,983,438 411,420
Cash at bank and in hand IRITFEAKRFERE 1,983,516 411,517
As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents AT ECEF+_FB =4+ —
placed with banks in the Mainland China amounted to H> XEEFBFZADPRRARNHMIEIT
approximately RMB1,522,105,000 (2019: approximately NIRERIBEELEBYHN A A
RMB363,608,000). Remittance of funds out of the R 11,522,105,00070 (Z &
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules and —hE 9 AR 363,608,000
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by ) cBESEY TR A BE
the PRC government. SFHE BT EMBAERRINES
HIFR B K &R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19 IRE KRS XBE YR EMIR

flow information (continued) EHREEH &)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) MRRAIEFELCESRBIREN
generated from operations: EHEE :
2020 2019
kSt 3 2 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Profit before taxation PR AR A& A 970,068 606,901
Adjustments for: MU TEIERE .
Depreciation e 383,886 290,757
Impairment of machinery IR ERE 28,155 10,587
Amortisation of intangible B EESHE
assets 615 558
Interest expenses Bz 53,524 52,811
Interest income ISV N (16,916) (13,911)
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE HE K
plant and equipment RENEIE 11,406 17,514
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 17,977 53,067
Impairment loss EEIBEG R
recognised for trade and HhE R IE R B R B
other receivables 443 766
Equity-settled share-based UEREENRGS
payment expenses R 30,165 3,051
Net (gain)/loss on foreign ShEEREAE A (E)
currency forward contracts B518 73R8 (5,860) 501
Net loss on foreign currency ~ SMNERARE S AV 518 F 58
option contracts 100,728 9,864
Share of loss/(profit) of LB EATIEE,
an associate G Fl) 22,890 (39,996)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss ~ JNEE (Uz) 518 (48,916) 25,373
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

19 RERREFEYREMIET
TREEN @

(b) BRIRAIEF L EMRTREN

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations: (continueqd) HEE : (&)
2020 2019
ZEIEHE “E-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Changes in working capital: EBEETEY .
Increase in inventories FE1Enm (47,634) (1,262,617)
Decrease/(increase) in trade B 5 REME WS
and other receivables L (3 ) 1,344,870 (2,433,869)
Increase in trade and other B 5 K 2 E S AR IBE 0
payables 1,120,656 4,818,221
Decrease in pledged deposits  F M IBITH EIRIFFER
with banks L - 82,522
(Decrease)/increase in aH8E (AL /1Em
contract liabilities (249,082) 228,681
Increase in deferred income 45 SIE LT A 180 7,938 64,007
Cash generated from KEPMBRE
3,724,913 2,432,967

operations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

19 RERREEFEYREMIET
TREEN @

(c) MEEHEEZEEYHIR

202058 E#BE &) AR 277

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERAKAKEEREB TFHESZ
from financing activities, including both cash and non- BEEHFE BEREKIE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities e -MEBITHELE 2B
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash BLARER=NERBEER
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash ENLAEREHREERERD
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. ARSI EsRECE
/g\ o
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITER HEaE Mt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREEF T AREETIT ARETIT
At 1 January 2020 R-E_%F—HA—H
Bank borrowings RITIER 1,328,785 54,141 1,382,926
Interest payable FERTF]E 4,894 - 4,894
1,338,679 54,141 1,387,820
Changes from financing MERERELE .
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans #riRITERFTIS IR 2,583,406 - 2,583,405
Repayment of bank loans BEIRTEMN (3,598,435) - (3,598,435)
Interest paid BATH B (53,146) - (53,146)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B HEHEMERTE - (27,223) (27,223)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BAIHEEHF ETE - (1,926) (1,926)
Total changes from financing MERERESEENEEE
cash flows (1,068,176) (29,149) (1,097,325)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash 19 IRE KRS XEBE YR EMIA

flow information (continued) EREEN @)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MBEETHELEZEBHK @)

financing activities (continued)

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITE™M HERE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTT ARBTT ARETR

Exchange adjustments ERAE (33,348) (2,260) (35,608)
Other change: Hitheg) .
Interest expense FERX 51,598 1,926 53,524
Settlements of trade payables BERARTHEAEND
directly by the bank through B EXRMELES
import trade loan facilities BSENTE 979,214 - 979,214
Settlements of trade payables ERMERSELHE
directly by the bills endorsement B EOME 265 - 265
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFIIMEEEE Y
entering into new leases HEARBEN
during the year - 20,573 20,573
Decrease in lease liabilities from FRRIEHEERREEZ
terminating the lease agreement HEaBRL
during the year - (367) (367)
1,031,077 22,132 1,053,209
At 31 December 2020 NZEZZTHE
+-B=+—H 1,268,232 44,864 1,308,096
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

19 RERFEEFBYREMIR
TREEN @

(c) MEEHEEZERHKR B

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (continued)

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITfE™ HE&E amEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 NZ_E—-hE—HB—H 1,178,241 6,392 1,184,633
Changes from financing MERERELEE .
cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans HIRITEMAERIE 1,921,727 - 1,921,727
Repayment of bank loans BERRTER (8,008,131) - (3,008,131)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B HEHEMERTE - (13,110) (13,110)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BAIHEEHIF B TH - (1,230) (1,230)
Total changes from financing MEREMELBLLE
cash flows (1,086,404) (14,340) (1,100,744)
Exchange adjustments EREE 15,617 467 16,084
Other change: HthEg .
Interest expense FEEL - 1,230 1,230
Settlements of trade payables ERARTERENES
directly by the bank through EXRELEES
import trade loan facilities MR 1,221,331 - 1,221,331
Increase in lease liabilities from ERNJUNBEEEEY
entering into new leases HES/EM
during the year - 60,392 60,392
1,221,331 61,622 1,282,953
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—h%&F
+-B=+—H 1,328,785 54,141 1,382,926
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

19 Cash and cash equivalents and other cash
flow information (continued)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

19 RERFEEFBYREMIR
TREEN @

(d) AREEZRERLEE

MEEFARERERZ SR

Within financing cash flows FARMEBERESME

IL
Within operating cash flows FARERERE

These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid.

(e) Major non-cash transactions

Major non-cash transactions during the year included the
following items:

BIEMUTEIE:
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-N=E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARHET T
29,149 14,340
9,626 3,891
38,775 18,231

ZEcHEEHHNRESNEESAE

%&%O

(e) XEHFRERH

7

FR-EFBFEREXZEEU

TIEH

2020
b S 52

RMB’000
ARBTT

ERHRTEBENES
BERRELEEES
N/

Settlements of trade payables
directly by the bank through
import trade loan facilities
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979,214

2019

RMB’000
AEBTT

1,221,331




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Bank borrowings

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A &R UAREFIR)

20 iR1T

Long-term bank borrowings RHEARITIER

— secured (Note (a)) —BIET K@)
— unsecured — g
Short-term bank borrowings 2 HRIRIT AR

— secured (Note (b)) —BIER/ Ha2m)
— unsecured — R

(@) As at 31 December 2020, the balance was the long-term
bank borrowings with effective interest rate of 1.95% of
TWD255,000,000 which was repayable within 3 years. It
was secured by 26,160,850 shares (31 December 2019:
16,160,850 shares) of Newmax Technology Co., Ltd. (an
associate) held by the Group.

EITA

At At

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-E_2F NRIB—hF

+TZH=+—H ==

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

59,211 59,237
100,000 -
159,211 59,237
261,152 332,833
842,869 936,715

1,104,021 1,269,548
1,263,232 1,328,785

(@)

W_ZEEF+ZHB=+—H"F
RS A ERAE1.95% 88N =
FRERZ & 1255,000,0007T
ZEBARTER HALXEEFAE
226,160,850 (ZZ—NF+=
A =-+—H :16,160,8508%) #EEF}
FERHBRAR (—EEERE) K
PUEIRIR
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% HEIEEIN > UARIES
20 Bank borrowings (continued) 20 iR1T
(b) The Short-term bank borrowings were secured by assets (b)

of the Group and the carrying amounts of these assets
are as follows:

)

= TA (IIE

RHRITERHEERNEEF
iR ZFEEMNREENT

At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RIEZZHF RIE—hE
+TZHA=+—H [l =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AREEFT
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFIRITER H13218)
(Note 18) 260,860 90,691
Trade receivables (Note 15) B S EWEIE (K 15) - 278,827
260,860 369,518

(c) As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings with (c)
effective interest rate of approximately 2.32% (31

M-S -SFE+-A=+—

==
E\

MEN#2.32% (Z

H>BKR
December 2019: approximately 3.42%), were repayable F— j‘LE‘f’ B=+—H:%8
as follows: 3.42%) ZIR{TTEMBEEW
—]:
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZETET RIZZE—NE
+ZB=+—H |gyY=k=als
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AREETF T
Within 1 year or on demand —FARHZEREER 1,104,021 1,269,548
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBERMEN 159,211 -
After 2 years but within 3 years MEBEBR=FRN - 59,237
1,263,232 1,328,785
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

21 Trade and other payables 21 B REMECTRIE

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®FT

Trade payables and accruals B ENRIEBEBRESTER
— third parties —%=5 4,472,760 4,593,637
— related parties (note 31(c)) —RAM s (BWaE31(c) ) 32,199 24,367

Bills payable (note (a)) FE Ei% (K@)

— third parties —%=5 962,415 973,655

Trade and bills payables (note (b)) B ZEARIBRENZE

(Mt&E b)) 5,467,374 5,591,659

Accrued payroll Est T & 157,703 123,013

Other payables and accruals HMENTIERESER 388,395 219,990

6,013,472 5,934,662
All of the trade and other payables as at 31 December 2020 AT ETEBEF+"H=+—HHFR
are expected to be settled or recognised as income within EBS REMENHIBTEEAN —4
one year or are repayable on demand. NBERERABWANBZERKRE

}zﬁ °
(a) Bills payable analysed by type of security (a) BIRIFER DT ZECERE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-N=E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T

Bills payable unsecured EIREN R 962,415 973,655
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 “ZE _FF+_F=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

21 Trade and other payables (continued)

(b) An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as
follows:

21 BB RHMENRIE &)

(b) BEZAPE D ZEZ MM
EREMEBEZIREDHMT:

Within 3 months

More than 3 months but
within 6 months

More than 6 months but
within 1 year

More than 1 year

P38 B LA

HBiE3ME B BrefE B LA

HBiE6fE B B 1R

BiE1F

2020 2019
ket 3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
4,480,859 4,932,881
389,087 345,546
32,172 5,964
22,860 12,387
4,924,978 5,296,778

As at 31 December 2020, the accrued trade payables
which represented the amounts with no invoice received
by the end of the year, amounted to approximately
RMB542,396,000 (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB294,881,000).

22 Contract liabilities

RNZIEZEF+ZAHA=+—
B> EstESEAHIE BIER
I AR E ZEMNRRIE) A A
R #6542 ,396,0007T (ZZE—H,
F+-B=+—H HARHK
294,881,0007T) °

22 5NEE

Receipts in advance BRI

All of the amount of receipts in advance is expected to be
recognised as income within one year.
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2020 2019
—ECEH “E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
7,990 257,072

P A FRUGRIR TR 51 B — F A HE SR
FHUA o
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A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_F=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

23 Lease liabilities 23 tfHE AR
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRERNAEB HEEBGR TS
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities: A HARR -

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
et S-S S ER SlEl SN G+"A=+—H
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum Ty the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
EV NN payments payments payments
RIEHE REHE REHRE REMRE
ftRZHME el (TR RE NEAEEE]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETH BENGESRTN . R wr

Within 1 year e 2 ?,?2_3 ______ 2 9,9(53 ______ 2 (_3(_35_5 ______ 2 33,531_5_
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ERERER 16,418 17,402 17,770 18,700
After 2 years but within 5 years 2EBRBRSER 2,623 2,981 13,016 14,393
o W 20888 ¢ 0788 ____: 33,098

44,864 46,746 54,141 56,908

Less: total future interest expenses il R KA EBZAE (1,882) (2,767)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEZRE 44,864 54,141
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

24 Deferred income

24 RIEYA

Government
grant
BT HEBh
RMB’000
AREFT
At 1 January 2019 A “E-NF—F—H 65,648
Additions during the year FRRE 73,816
Amortisation credited to consolidated SFAEHEGD REMEEE RS
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (9,809)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZE—NF+ZA=+—08xK
—E-ZEH—F—H 129,655
Additions during the year FRRE 24,448
Amortisation credited to consolidated SFAGHEGD REMEEIE RS
statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income (16,510)
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_EF+"HA=+—H 137,593

25 Employee retirement benefits

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Mainland China subsidiaries of the Group participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the municipal and provincial
government authorities whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at the applicable rates
of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authority is responsible for the entire pension obligations

payable to retired employees.
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25 [EEEAKEF

FE HRIBAETE

RRAEBENSPEAENE RS
SHERPREE BT KRSN
AYE R AR NGB 5B (TZEET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee retirement benefits (continued)
Defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Starting from 2014, the Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(HK$25,000 prior to June 2014). Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

Equity settled share-based transactions

On 26 October 2016, the Company granted a total of
39,425,000 share options (the “2016 Share Option Scheme”)
to 165 eligible participants (“‘Grantees”) to subscribe for a
total of 39,425,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company, subject to performance conditions
related to certain revenue growth target of the Company’s
2017, 2018 and 2019 financial years. Details of the three
tranches of the 2016 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 26(a)(i).

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

25

26

BERKER (&)
FE AR E) (&

BE-Z—OFiE AEETREE
BoadlE R BEEEEL ) BRE
BAEBIEGA)EETRENZA]
WRMARTERBFRAKTENRE
EEMARFEATEEE (MR
58  RBEHEAHBIURT
SAEENRTHIERAKTE R
Rt BEEREEEESD
AEFEFABHREEAENS%
EARER SR BEBABRNLERS
30,0008 T (ZE—UEXAAA
25,0008 7T) c HEtE|FH B MHR
BIBSER /88 o

B £ RSN RE B TR
rERATEAEMERSE-

UEmETRNR S

RZE—RFE+AZ+,B X
NEIE165BHEERZEE (IKE
AJ) & 3£39,425,00017 B pe 12
(TZE2—RNEBRESE) U
BBARNBRAFH139,425,0008%
SREECO1EBTZEER HAE
FEEAARAD _E—E-ZZF—N
RZZE-—APBRFEEZETWAL
REEZRBBRGEENRER A
EB = - NFEERES
B 2 EBEH M E26(a)()
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B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 LESGENRNRS (@)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

On 9 June 2017, the Company granted a total of 8,083,000
share options (the “2017 Share Option Scheme”) to 48
Grantees to subscribe for a total of 8,083,000 ordinary share
of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company, subject to
performance conditions related to certain revenue growth
target of the Company’s 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020
financial years. Details of the 2017 Share Option Scheme |
and 2017 Share Option Scheme Il are set out in note 26(a)(ii)
and note 26(a)(iii).

On 7 December 2018, the Company granted a total of
12,720,000 share options (the “2018 Share Option Scheme”)
to 83 Grantees to subscribe for a total of 12,720,000 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company, subject
to performance conditions related to certain revenue growth
target of the Company’s 2019, 2020 and 2021 financial
years. Details of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 26(a)(iv).
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RZE—tF BB &A2H
M48% A& A H &£8,083,000
mERE (T TSt FERES
) UBBALRBRAFPEH
8,083,000k B KREEC.01E T
ZER O EHEFRBEBEARBZE
-t " ZTE- )\ "ZTE-NKZE
“EHREEZETHRAEEHR
B RBEHEENRE > HAlE
B 2 tHFEREFIIRZE
—t FERESEIZFEBE N
5F26(a)(ii) K M 5E26(a)(iii)

R_E—NE+_BtH > &R
M83% A A HE 12,720,000
mERE (T ZTE—-N\FERES
) URBARBDRAFEH
12,720,000k &K EE0.01E 7T
2EBER EEFEBEAREZE
— N ITEIERIET-HREF
EzETWABEERZRIBHEMY
BERE FOUEE-ZZT—N\F
BRESE ZFBEHNMIEE26(a)

(iv) e
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BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _Z_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

On 21 June 2019, the Company granted a total of
11,454,000 share options (the “2019 Share Option Scheme”)
to 68 Grantees to subscribe for a total of 11,454,000 ordinary
share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the Company, subject
to performance conditions related to certain revenue growth
target of the Company’s 2020, 2021 and 2022 financial
years. Details of the 2019 Share Option Scheme are set out in
note 26(a)(v).

On 16 September 2020, the Company granted a total of
17,879,600 share options (the “2020 Share Option Scheme”)
to 119 Grantees to subscribe for a total of 17,879,600
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company, subject to performance conditions related to
certain revenue growth target of the Company’s 2020, 2021,
2022 and 2023 financial years. Details of the 2020 Share
Option Scheme | and 2020 Share Option Scheme Il are set
out in note 26(a)(vi) and note 26(a)(vii).

26 UEmETNRNRS (&)

RZE—hENBZ+—8>
AABHESHLARAREE S H
11,454,000 @R (T2 —nF
BEIGESTE)) » UBBA AT KRA
& 311,454,000 P& E E0.01
BTz EER HBATEBRAAT
b S —— |
BHEEZETWAREBEZEZR
WK EERE FAHEE-ZFT
— N EBREE 2 BE N
26(a)(v) °

ﬁ\_v “E2EHFAB+AB K
NBEAI19B AFEARHAE &
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows:

26 LEmGENRNRS (&

(a) RUEBIMERBRAFMHMT ¢

Vesting conditions

BERME

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TAHE BRUEBBESZER BRENSHED
() 2016 Share Option Scheme:
S-S ERREE
Granted to directors:
BYEE
- on 26 October 2016 1,124,800 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RIB-RFE+HAZ+H 1EZ5EA 2FEZ2EA
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
-RIE-RE+AZ+H 2FZ5EA 3FZ2MEA
- on 26 October 2016 843,600 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RIB-RFE+AZ+RH 3EZ5EA 4FZ2(EA
Granted to employees:
BYEE:
- on 26 October 2016 14,645,200 1 year and 5 months 2 years and 2 months
—-RIB-RF+HAZ+H 12588 2FEZ2EA
—on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 2 years and 5 months 3 years and 2 months
—-RIZ—RE+AZ+RH 2EZ5EA 3FEZ2EA
- on 26 October 2016 10,983,900 3 years and 5 months 4 years and 2 months
—-RIB-—RE+HBZ+7"H 3FEZ5EA 4EZ2E B
Total 39,425,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 LEmGENRNRS (@)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows: (continued)

(a) RUEHIERBRFHMT @ ()

Vesting conditions
FERM

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TAHE BRUEBBESZER BRENSHER
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme I:
—E—-CEBREHE
Granted to employees:
BEYES:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,935,200 9 months 1 year and 6months
-RIE2—t&FRANH 9EA 15 26EA
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 1 year and 9 months 2 years and 6 months
-RIZE—t&FRANH 1EZOEA 2FZ6MEA
—-on 9 June 2017 1,451,400 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
-RIE—t&FRANH 2FZIEA 3FZ6fEA
Total 4,838,000
my
(iii) 2017 Share Option Scheme II:
—E—tEERESEN
Granted to employees:
BEYES:
—-on 9 June 2017 1,298,000 1 year and 9months 2 years and 6 months
-RIE2—t&F<ANH 1FEZ29EA 2FZ6fEA
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 months
-RIE—tHFRANH 2FZIEA 3FZ6fEA
—-on 9 June 2017 973,500 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 months
-RIE2—t&FANH 3FZIEA 4FZ6E AR
Total 3,245,000
my
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 LESGENRNRS (@)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

(a) RUEBIERBEAFSHMT @ ()

Vesting conditions

BERMS

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TA#E BEHBABESZER BRENSHER
(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme:
—E-)\EEREHE
Granted to employees:
BEYESR:
- on 7 December 2018 5,088,000 1 year and 4 months 2 years and 1 month
-RZE2-NE+ZAtH 1FEZ4EA 2FZ1EA
- on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 2 years and 4 months 3 years and 1 month
-RZZ2-N\E+"HtH 2EZ4EA 3EZ1EA
- on 7 December 2018 3,816,000 3 years and 4 months 4 years and 1 month
-RIB-N\F+ZBtH 3FEZ4EA 4FZ1ER
Total 12,720,000
ES
(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme:
“E-hERBRERE
Granted to employees:
BEYEE !
—-on 21 June 2019 4,581,600 1 year and 9 months 2 years and 6 month
-RIZE-AFARBZ+—H 1EZEA 2FEZ6EA
-on 21 June 2019 3,436,200 2 years and 9 months 3 years and 6 month
-RIE—NEFERAZ+—H 2FZIE R 3FZ6MEA
—-on 21 June 2019 3,436,200 3 years and 9 months 4 years and 6 month
-RIE-N&FRAZ+—H 3FZIEA 15 Z6EA
Total 11,454,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁl‘ﬁﬁi

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 UEmETNRNRS (&)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows: (continued)

(a) RUEHIERBRFHMT @ ()

Vesting conditions

BERMSF

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TAHE BRUEBBESZER BRENSHER
(vi) 2020 Share Option Scheme I:
—E_ZEBRESIN
Granted to directors:
BYEE!
- on 16 September 2020 552,000 6 months 1 year and 3 months
-RIEZEFNA+RH 618 A 1EZ3EA
- on 16 September 2020 414,000 1 year and 6 months 2 years and 3 months
-RIZZZFENA+RH 1EZ6EA 2FZ3MEAR
- on 16 September 2020 414,000 2 years and 6 months 3 years and 3 months
-RIEZEFNA+RH 2FEETOEA SEZ3EA
Granted to employees:
BYEE:
- on 16 September 2020 4,495,840 6 months 1 year and 3 months
-RIEZZEFNA+KRH 6E A 1EZ3EAR
- on 16 September 2020 3,371,880 1 year and 6 months 2 years and 3 months
—-RIZEZZEFHA+AH 1EZ6EA 2EZ3EA
- on 16 September 2020 3,371,880 2 years and 6 months 3 years and 3 months
-RIEZEFNB+KRH 2FZ6fEA 3FZ3EAR
Total 12,619,600
my
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 LESGENRNRS (@)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are as

follows: (continued)

(a) RUEBIERBEAFSHMT @ ()

Vesting conditions

BERMS

Number of  Years from the Contractual life
instruments  date of grant of options
TA#E BEHBABESZER BRENSHER
(vii) 2020 Share Option Scheme II:
“ZEZHEERESEN
Granted to employees:
BETESE !
- on 16 September 2020 2,104,000 1 year and 6 months 2 years and 3 months
-RIZ2ZZEFNA+RH 156 A 2FEE3EA
- on 16 September 2020 1,578,000 2 years and 6 months 3 years and 3 months
-RZZZZEFNA+RH 2FZ6fE 2 3FZ3MEA
- on 16 September 2020 1,578,000 3 years and 6 months 4 years and 3 months
-RIZEZZFENA+TAH 3FZ6MEA 4FZ3ME R
Total 5,260,000

Ly
VCA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme:

Outstanding at the
beginning of the year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Outstanding at the end
of the year

Exercisable at the end
of the year

REDHRITE

RERERM
RERETRE

RERHRITE

RERFTE

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

26 LEmGENRNRS (&

(b) BREHKBRITEENT

() ZE—NEFEHEREAE

2020 2019
k- G- 25 “2-hEF

Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
1B  BREHE BB  EREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT T BT T3
413 9,616 413 20,491
413 (121) 413 (1,067)
413 (9,495) 413 (9,808)

- 413 9,616
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UKEREENRNR S (&
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BBRGHEEBE RITEEWT @ (&
options are as follows: (continued)

(ii) 2017 Option Scheme | (il —E—tEFEREAZ
2020 2019
k- ol 25 “Z-NF

Exercise Number of Exercise Number of

price options price options

1B BREHE e BREHE

HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000

BT T BT Fi5

Outstanding at the REDERITHE

beginning of the year 6.22 946 6.22 1,891
Exercised during the year  RERBITE 6.22 (946) 6.22 (945)

Outstanding at the end RERERITHE
of the year - 6.22 946

Exercisable at the end RERATE
of the year - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LIEREENRMRRES &)
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BBRGHEEBE RITEEWNT : (&
options are as follows: (continued)

(iij) 2017 Share Option Scheme I/ (i) —E—tFEBREAZ
2020 2019
k- G- 25 “T-NE
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
1B  BREHE BB  EREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT T BT T3
Outstanding at the RERERITHE
beginning of the year - 6.22 400
Forfeited during the year ~ RERBERM - 6.22 (400)

Outstanding at the end RERERITHE
of the year - -

Exercisable at the end REKRATE
of the year - -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme

26 LEmGENRNRS (&

(b) BREHBRITEENT : (&)

(iv) ZE—/\FERIEAE

2020 2019
k- ol 25 “Z-NF
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
1B BREHE e BREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT T BT Fi5
Outstanding at the REDERITHE
beginning of the year 4.65 11,096 4.65 12,720
Forfeited during the year ~ RERBXRM 4.65 (579) 4,65 (1,624)
Exercised during the year ~ RER BT 4.65 (4,334) 4.65 -
Outstanding at the end RERERITHE
of the year 4.65 6,189 4.65 11,096
Exercisable at the end RERAITHE

of the year

The 2018 Share Options Scheme outstanding at 31
December 2020 had an exercise price of HKD4.65
(2019: HKD4.65) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.5 year (2019: 1.9 years).

2 9 8 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

N_ZE2E_Z &+ _H
—+—HEXRTENZZE
—N\FEREFENITE
BAa4658B T (ZE—N
T 4.6587T) RINEFH
FFEEOFHEA1.50 (2
TE—NE 1 1.95F)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _Z_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme

26 LEmGENRNRS (&

(b) BREHBRITEENT : (B

(v) ZE—AFEREAE

2020 2019
k- G- 25 “T-NE
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price options price options
1B  BREHE BB  EREHE
HKD ‘000 HKD ‘000
BT T BT T3
Outstanding at the RERERITHE
beginning of the year 6.02 6,774 6.02 -
Granted during the year ~ RERTHEH 6.02 - 6.02 11,454
Forfeited during the year ~ RERBXM 6.02 (2,266) 6.02 (4,680)
Outstanding at the end RERERITHE
of the year 6.02 4,508 6.02 6,774
Exercisable at the end RERAITHE
of the year - -
The 2019 Share Options Scheme outstanding at 31 N _EFE_-_=22F+ — B
December 2020 had an exercise price of HKD6.02 =+—HEFXRTEHN_E
(2019: HKD6.02) and a weighted average remaining — N EFEEEEAZNITE

contractual life of 1.9 years (2019: 2.9 years).

B76.0287T (ZF—N
F 1 6.0287T) RIN#ETEH
FeraMFHRR1.9F (2
T—fLEF 1 2.96F)°
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (continued)

(vi) 2020 Share Option Scheme |

26 LEmGENRNRS (&

(b) BREHBRITEENT : (&)

i) ZEZEFERIEZ

2020
ZEIEHF

Exercise Number of

price options

TEE BREHE

HKD ‘000

BIT T

Granted during the year REARBERH 9.22 12,619

Forfeited during the year RERNE LM 9.22 (303)
Outstanding at the end RERERITHE

of the year 9.22 12,316

Exercisable at the end RERB{TE
of the year _

The 2020 Share Options Scheme | outstanding
at 31 December 2020 had an exercise price of
HKD9.22 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 1.9 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UGS EENRMNRS &
(continued)

(b) The number and exercise prices of share (b) BBRGHEBBE RITEEBWNT : &)
options are as follows: (continued)

(vii) 2020 Share Option Scheme Il (vii) ZEZEFFERIEEN
2020
ZEIEHE
Exercise Number of
price options
TEE MR EEE
HKD ‘000
BT T4
Granted during the year REARBERH 9.22 5,260
Forfeited during the year RERNE LM 9.22 (350)
Outstanding at the end RERERITHE
of the year 9.22 4,910
Exercisable at the end RERB{TE
of the year _
The 2020 Share Options Scheme Il outstanding RZZEZZEHF+ T H
at 31 December 2020 had an exercise price of —t+t—HHEHEXTENZZT
HKD9.22 and a weighted average remaining “EFRERESIINITE
contractual life of 2.9 years. EA9.228 T R INEFEH

RF S FHRR2.9%F -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted.

The estimate of the fair value of each Share Option
Scheme granted is measured based on a Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the model.

The expected volatility of each Share Option Scheme
was referenced to the average of daily historical share
price volatility of comparable companies operating in
similar industry of the Company. Expected dividends
are estimated as the average of the Company’s
historical dividends. The option scheme was granted
under a performance condition, and management of
the Company estimates the probability of attaining
revenue growth target. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate. There were no market conditions associated
with the share option grants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁl‘ﬁﬁi

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 UEDEENRNRS &)
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BIREMNATERIRS &
(continued)

(i) 2016 Share Option Scheme: () ZE—;NFEEREE
2016 2016 2016
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
“E-RE —E-RE —E-RE

ES FHRE BEFRARE ES fRR1E

Vesting date FEAH 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
T—N\F “E-NEF =g
mE—H mBE—H mBE—H

Maturity date 21881 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020

“E-N\E “E-NEF TECEE
+-_B=+—-H +ZBE=+—H +ZBE=+—H

Fair value at RErEHHN HKDO0.97 HKD1.15 HKD1.31

measurement date NEE 0.9787T 115787 1.3178 7T

Share price BRE HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
41387T 41387 4138 T

Exercise price (noteb)(i) 1TEE (b)) HKD4.13 HKD4.13 HKD4.13
4A3ETT 4138B7T 413ETT

Expected volatility BRI 40.86% 40.64% 40.63%

Risk-free interest rate ‘R =E 0.47% 0.51% 0.58%

Expected dividends BHRE 0.49% 0.49% 0.49%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LIRS EENIRRAZS (&)

(continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BBIREMATERIRSE &)
(continued)
(ij) 2017 Share Option Scheme I: (il —E—tFBREAZ:
2017 2017 2017
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E—tE “E—tfF “E—tfF
BERERRE R BERERE
Vesting date %8 B 5 01/04/2018 01/04/2019 01/04/2020
—Z-N\F —2—-hF 225
MmA—H mAE—H mA—H
Maturity date FH A 31/12/2018 31/12/2019 31/12/2020
—2-N\F “Z-hF —E2IZHE
+-B=+—-H +ZB=+—-H +ZB=+—H
Fair value at Rt 2B HKD1.16 HKD1.56 HKD1.81
measurement date ANEE 1,168 7T 1,568 7T 1.8187T
Share price BRE HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2287T 6.22870 6.2287T
Exercise price (note(b)(i)) TEE W m)) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.227 7T 6.2278 7T 6.227 7T
Expected volatility TRERR 1R 37.86% 40.07% 39.51%
Risk-free interest RN X 0.57% 0.71% 0.80%
Expected dividends BHEE 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LIEREENRMRRES &)
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BIREMNATERIRS &
(continued)
(i) 2017 Share Option Scheme Il: (i) ZF—tCEFEERIEZ:
2017 2017 2017
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—E—t&E —E—t&E —E—t&E

ES FHRE BEFRARE ES fRR1E

Veesting date FEAH 01/04/2019 01/04/2020 01/04/2021
“E-NE —TTERF T -F

mE—H mBE—H mBE—H

Maturity date ) 31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021
“E-NE “ZTEF T -F

+-A=+—H +ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H

Fair value at RErEHHN HKD1.56 HKD1.81 HKD2.08
measurement date NEE 1.5678 7T 1.81787T 2.08787T
Share price BRfB HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2287T 6.22787T 6.22787T

Exercise Price (note(b)(ii) 1T1E18 (Wt w)i) HKD6.22 HKD6.22 HKD6.22
6.2278 7T .22 7T 6.2278 7T

Expected volatility B E 40.07% 39.51% 40.39%
Risk-free interest rate ‘R =E 0.71% 0.80% 0.90%
Expected dividends BHEE 0.41% 0.41% 0.41%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LEREENRGORRS &)

(continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BBIREMATERIRSE &)
(continued)
(iv) 2018 Share Option Scheme: (iv) —&—/)\FBEIB#EE
2018 2018 2018
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
ZT-N\fF “E-N\E ZT-N\F
EERERRE BB BERERE
Vesting date 5 /% 0 01/04/2020 01/04/2021 01/04/2022
IR _ET—F ZEICF
mA—H mA—H mA—H
Maturity date 3 H 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022
TEBCTE B B
+-B=t—-H +ZB=t—-H +ZB=+—H
Fair value at REt2BHN HKD1.15 HKD1.32 HKD1.51
measurement date /N 1,158 7T 1.3278 7 1,518 7T
Share price & HKD4.42 HKD4.42 HKD4.42
44278 7T 4427 7T 44238 7T
Exercise Price (note(b)fiv) 1B (B2 b)iv) HKD4.65 HKD4.65 HKD4.65
4,657 7T 4,658 7T 4,657 7T
Expected volatility FBHR 18 50.96% 48.60% 48.92%
Risk-free interest rate mRE R X 1.99% 2.02% 2.05%
Expected dividends BHEE 1.76% 1.76% 1.76%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LIEREENRMRRES &)
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BIREMNATERIRS &
(continued)
(v) 2019 Share Option Scheme: ) ZE—NFEREE
2019 2019 2019
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
“E-hE —E-hEF “E-hE

ES FHRE BEFRARE ES fRR1E

Vesting date FEAH 01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2023
S —F ZEICHE —EI=F

mA—H mA—H mA—H

Maturity date 3R 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023
—E-—F - “B=F

+-A=+—H +ZB=+—-H +ZA=+—H

Fair value at RErEHHN HKD1.74 HKD2.23 HKD2.49
measurement date NEE 1,748 7T 2.23%B 7T 24987
Share price BB HKD6.02 HKDB6.02 HKD6.02
6.028 7T 6.025 7T 6.028 7T

Exercise Price (note(b)(v)) TEE W) HKD6.02 HKD6.02 HKD6.02
6.0278 7T 6.0287T 6.0278 7T

Expected volatility B E 48.22% 54.12% 55.03%
Risk-free interest rate ‘R =E 1.56% 1.47% 1.41%
Expected dividends BHEE 1.47% 1.47% 1.47%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B HEFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LEREENRGORRS &)

(continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BBIREMATERIRSE &)
(continued)
(vi) 2020 Share Option Scheme I: i) —E_ZFRBRIEAZ:
2020 2020 2020
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
—ECEE —E-EEF —ECEE
EEMERE EEMmmE EEMERE
Vesting date 558 0 1 01/04/2021 01/04/2022 01/04/2023
“ETT-F S S —EC=F
mE—H mMA—H mE—H
Maturity date 28R 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023
B ZECCF TEBTZE
+ZA=+—H +ZA=+—-8 +ZA=+—H
Fair value at REt2BHN HKD2.25 HKD2.89 HKD3.34
measurement date NEE 2.25%8 7T 2.89% 7T 3.34%8 7T
Share price & HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.2 7T 9.22787T 9.2287T
Exercise Price (note(b)(vi)) TR W) HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.22787T 9.2287T 9.2287%
Expected volatility B 56.02% 54.90% 54.00%
Risk-free interest rate ‘R =E 0.14% 0.24% 0.28%
Expected dividends RS 0.81% 0.81% 0.81%
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A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

26 Equity settled share-based transactions 26 LIEREENRMRRES &)
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BIREMNATERIRS &
(continued)
(vii) 2020 Share Option Scheme lII: i) ZEZZFEIRESE:
2020 2020 2020
Employee Employee Employee
Share Share Share
Options Options Options
ZEZTE ZEZTE ZEZTE

ES FHRE BEFRARE ES fRR1E

Veesting date FEAH 01/04/2022 01/04/2023 01/04/2024
—EC-CF T =E —ZCIMF

mA—H mA—H mA—H

Maturity date 3R 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
—ECCkE —E-= —EME

+-A=+—H +ZB=+—-H +ZA=+—H

Fair value at RErEHHN HKD2.89 HKD3.34 HKD3.82
measurement date NEE 2.89%8 T 3343 TT 3.828 7T
Share price RE HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
9.2287T 9.22787T 9.2287T

Exercise Price (note(b)(vii)) 11118 (H72E(b)vi) HKD9.22 HKD9.22 HKD9.22
0.2287T 0.2287T 9.2287T

Expected volatility B E 54.90% 54.00% 55.17%
Risk-free interest rate ‘R =E 0.24% 0.28% 0.33%
Expected dividends BHEE 0.81% 0.81% 0.81%
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31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 SHBEFERRRDVEAER
of financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) AHBBRARPAENEAIRIE
of financial position represents: i5 .
2020 2019
= Jol >3- 3 —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Current tax payable BNHARE (SR 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax HE (2T 76,740 49,387
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) BHENHNEERBESERERE:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities FARESHHBRTREDZH
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial IRIEMIEE E R & E4E 0
position and the movements during the year are as DB -
follows:
Unrealised
Fair value profit arising Depreciation
change of  Undistributed from intra- charge of
financial  profits of PRC Group Depreciation  right-of-use Deferred  Cumulative
instruments  subsidiaries transactions  Impairment year asset income tax losses Total
BERRATH
ERIE TENEAR  RREEN EREEE
ATEES WRAREN  REREA A EEHE EXL BEMA  ERESR st

RWBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBIO0D
ARRTR  ARBTn  AREBTR  ARETR  ARETrn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-B-H 823 (428) 2,854 1,823 - - 9,847 6,638 21,557
Charged/oredited) to mea/ GrA)

proft ot loss ote ) 85 (25) 504 974 6 9663 440 1 9601 1130 16,499
Charged to reserves frofe § - TR B&HE (Ha28) - - - - - - - 106 106

At 31 December 2019 and RIZ-nE

1 January 2020 TIA=T-Bk
“ZTEZE-A-H 1,327 (5,402 2916 11,486 440 13 19,448 7874 38,102
Charged/[credited) to na/ GtA) B4
proft or loss o2 52) (o) 2149 (19599 14,53 560 ) 10 1191 15,504 19613
Charged to reserves fofe § - TR E G fE (H:28) - - - 6) - - - (1,259) (1,264)
At 31 December 2020 RIZIZE
+-A=+-H 3476 (25,000) 17,469 17173 532 2 20,639 22,139 56,451
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

27 Income tax in the consolidated statement 27 &{HBA TR REZIRHETER

of financial position (continued) (#Z)
(c) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of (c) BB RAREER

financial position:

2020 2019

ZEITHE “Z-AF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Net deferred tax assets K& BRI REDH
recognised in the consolidated iR IEE EFE
statement of financial position 81,451 43,504
Net deferred tax liabilities EAAHEZLE"I#(/R%EED 89
recognised in the consolidated ~ EIEFRIBE (EF 58

statement of financial position (25,000) (5,402)

56,451 38,102

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (d) *REVIEERIEAR
The Group did not recognise deferred tax liabilities in ANEBRTEPENE QTR
respect of the PRC dividend withholding tax relating TETEF+"A=+—HH
to certain undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries ERESEFRDB EZR P& a0
as at 31 December 2020 since the Group controls BG B 3830 57 FE 20 4k E 77 18
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based BE BRRAENAERTE %
on the assessment of the management, as of 31 ERMBATNKRERSE - EiE
December 2020, the undistributed profits amounted to BEEBIG O BHE_E_FF
approximately RMB136,022,000 (2019: approximately +—_HB=+—H k9B s F
RMB1,093,531,000) will not be distributed in the £ ARK136,022,000
foreseeable future. T (ZE2E—hAF HARKE
1,093,531,0007T) &~ &K AJ
FERBREK DA
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31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends
(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

28 BEx fEBEREKRE

(@)

T m BR D & &

AEESHERSHMOBEL
RERGEROHNRE N S HE
m EE R o AN ) R m B B 3B
MRENEFENEFFIBFR

the Company’s individual components of equity between T
the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Equity
settled
share-based  Accumulated
Share Share Exchange Other payment  loss/retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
NREEEEN 2itBR
2 Ry EE ER Hitil  RAMRERE /REER 5t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
V3 ARETF T AEBTR ARETFT ARBTR ARETFT ARBTT ARETT
28(d)fi) 28(dl)(i) 28(d)(v) 28(d)(v)/26
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-FB—H 9,022 1,061,395 82,201 66 4,988 (40,713) 1,116,959
Share issued under share REBREEBTRG
option schemes 28(c)fi) R 43,032 - - (3,340) - 39,784
Equity settled share-based NRHEFNROTRRS
payment transactions 4b) - - - - 3,051 - 3,051
Shares issued for the Placement 1R —R SR I E &R
under general mandate 28(c)fii) 134 182,021 - - - - 182,155
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 41,800 41,800
Other comprehensive income Hit2EkRE - - 17,270 - - - 17,270
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE+ZRZ+-BR
and 1 January 2020 Z3-Z5-A-H 9,248 1,286,448 99,471 66 4,699 1,087 1,401,019
Share issued under share REBRESVETRG
option schemes 28(c)fi) 135 76,348 - - (16,706) - 59,777
Equity settled share-based NRREENRHITRS
payment transactions ) - - - - 30,165 - 30,165
Dividends approved in respect ~ BAEEHERE
of previous year 280)fi) - - - - - (107,152 (107,152
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 115,596 115,596
Other comprehensive income B2 EkRE - - (70,648) - - - (70,648)
As at 31 December 2020 RZ2-2£+-A=1+-A 9,383 1,362,796 28,823 66 18,158 9,531 1428757
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&-HERBE (&)

(b) Dividends (b) BE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the () FERAEMERGTREFEAR
Company attributable to the year Y|

2020 2019
—E_EF “E-hE

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

Final dividend proposed after ~ RIR&EHIEREEZ

the end of the reporting FEARR & A5.078 1
period of HKD5.0 cents (ZZ—NEF 1081
(2019: HKD10.0 cents) MEERHAREL2D
per share, equivalent to (ZB—-hE:

approximately RMB4.2 cents £ AR £9.0%))
(2019: approximately RMB9.0

cents) 49,235 104,173
The final dividend proposed after the end of the year REIREHKF WEAEEL
has not been recognised as a liability as at the end REEZNERERARE
of the reporting period. BRAAE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FEABHERSZ T2 _F—EE
Company attributable to the previous financial HEFEEENEAGTREFEA
year, approved and paid during the year BRe

2020 2019
- k23 —T-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Final dividend in respect of BREIERBHERIHZ
the previous financial year,  E—1{EBEEREA
approved and paid during & EAER10.081 (=
the year of HKD10.0 cents ZE—HFE : 8) #HEER

(2019: Nill) per share, HARBESOD (ZE—H
equivalent to approximately £ : #&))
RMB9.0 cents (2019: Nill) 107,152 -
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31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 B (HERIBE (&)

(c) Share capital (c) Bz
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZETRZE
Number of
shares Amount
KRir& B8 kL]
000 HK$’000
T TFET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of F20.01E T
HK$0.01 each TiER% 50,000,000 500,000
Number of Nominal value of
shares ordinary shares
BahEA= EEkEE
Note '000 HK$'000 RMB’000
izt T FTET ARETRH
Issued and fully paid: BRITRERE .
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—A—H 1,131,722 11,316 9,022
Shares issued under REERES 2IZTRN
Share Option Scheme (il 10,754 109 92
Shares issued for the Placement RE—RFEFEE
under general mandate 7R (i) 15,000 150 134
At 31 December 2019 and RIE—NEF
1 January 2020 +ZA=1t-Hk
“ETE-FH 1,157,476 11,575 9,248
Shares issued under 2016 RE_Z—"EERE
Share Option Scheme AR TRM (i 9,495 95 87
Shares issued under 2017 RE_S—tFEBERE
Share Option Scheme BEELR 0] i 946 9 8
Shares issued under 2018 REZS—N\FBRE
Share Option Scheme AT (i 4,334 43 40
At 31 December 2020 RIBZEEF
+ZB=+—H 1,172,251 11,722 9,383
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZHF+_"A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&% A158RI > LA RIESITR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&-HERBE (&)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(c) Bz (&)

(i) Shares issued under Share Option Scheme

(i) RIEIEARE S B TTAR 17

(iii)

During the year, options were exercised to
subscribe for 14,774,680 ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of approximately
RMB59,777,000 (2019: 10,753,800 ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration
of approximately RMB39,784,000) of which
approximately RMB135,000 (2019: approximately
RMB92,000) was credited to share capital and the
balance of approximately RMB59,642,000 (2019:
approximately RMB39,692,000) was credited
to the share premium account and share-based
payment reserve. approximately RMB16,706,000
was transferred from the equity settled share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account
(2019: approximately RMB3,340,000).

Shares issued for the Placement under general
mandate

On 30 December 2019, an aggregate of
15,000,000 shares were allotted and issued at
HKD13.68 per share. The net proceeds after
deducting placing commission, professional
fees and all related expenses, is approximately
RMB182,155,000.

TN BREETEURE
RELH ANRES9,777,000
TOER B AN A B 14,774,680
RERERKR (CE—NF &
RELH ANRE39,784,000
TR BB AN /A E) 10,753,800

REER) HPOARTE
135,OOO§E(ZZ§§——7Lfﬁ3
“ AR #92,0007T) B 5t
ARERGEHNARK
59,642,000t (Z&—~h
F I ANRKEE9,602,000
7o) BEFFARMDEERK
URMDAERNN G
HB-BURIEENR
MR REEROARE
16,706,0007T & £ = i 11
BHER (CZE—AF LA
R #3,340,0007T) ©

(iii) 1RBE—ARIRETEE Z1TRIZ

RZE—AhE+ZB=+
HUEKRKRM13.68
Bk REBETAEH
15,000,000 IR 19 ° Fir
BRIBEFE (L0 E
EREs - EXEREY
MEREZR) ABARE
182,155,0007T ©
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31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

28 BEx fEBERKRE @&

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

U

(i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders
of Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividends is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of operations outside Mainland
China which are dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in note 1(v).

(iij) PRC Statutory reserve

the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC,

the Mainland China are required to appropriate 10%
of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before distribution of profits
to parent companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval
by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the subsidiary,
provided that the balance after such issue is not
less than 25% of its registered capital.
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(d) REENEERAR

U

(i)

(iii)

BB EE

RIEFASEERBE (KE
) A RBERMRERL
HNEEADIKFTERAITRK
RoRiEARBEREZRIKE
KREEBHZ®  &XABD
BENEBHEEFBREF
BEIHXE.

B

ERHEEEREPEA
#h UGN K5 B9 B R AR PR
EER—YISNEZ2E > 1/
R E TH AR R 5E1(v)Fr 8¢
GETHREE -

o B TE

BHRBEWNERRE &2
B] 5 AR B A R O R
N B S AR EZERE
Bt RAREREE R
MEREF10% (KIKH
FEBER BALIERE
HE BEERHAE %E’T‘LDE
MEAB50%% IE o #
%5215%1% EE’*F]“E%
K A B ETT o

ZERBETHEBRELE
B A BLUREE Rt 18
WM B RABNE A
WRBERETRNERD
BN HEEMEARI25% °
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 BE&-HERBE (&)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

d) REENEERBRE (@

(iv) Other reserve (iv) BtifEE

The other reserve of the Group as at 31 December
2019 represents the difference between (i) the
carrying amount of share capital of QT Great Ching;
and (i) the nominal value of the share issued by
the Company in exchange for all the issued share
capital of QT Great China under the reorganisation
of the Group completed on 26 June 2014.

At 30 December 2020, Kunshan QT China
completed shareholding reform. The difference
between the net assets as at 30 November 2020
of approximately RMB3,577,879,000 and the new
share capital of RMB2,887,588,000 were credit
to the share premium of Kunshan QT China, as a
result, retained profits and PRC statutory reserve
amounted to approximately RMB464,397,000 and
approximately RMB173,900,000 respectively was
transfer out.

rEEBRZZE—NEFE+Z
B=+—HBWHEMFEHEE
(i) QT Great ChinaRyp&zs
REE ; R(i)A&RQBRE
REBRZ-Z—EOENRA
“t+ARHERNEAAR
QT Great ChinaZ &
STRAMET RGN Z
HEZENERE.

6:7_$$+ A=+

2 tn:IJ_IEﬁKEF‘ITUWHR
Tﬁﬁ%JEﬁzL N_EEF
+—B=+HWNEEZFE
#H NE®3,577,879,000
7TTHE TR AR AR
2,887,588,0007T < & A9 2=
BEFARLES®RFRHZ
D imE EIL > REEF
RHPBEEEREDNADN
AR #£464,397,00070 K 4
AR #173,900,00070 2 F
Bio
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31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

28 B& HERRS @
() HEBHMERBR (&)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Equity settled share-based payment reserve

(v) HUEZAZFBIRA TG

The equity settled share based payment reserve
comprises the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised shares options granted to the
directors and employees of the Group that has
been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note

1(n(ii).

DA i 45 E BV B 19 FR
B EERBEOMIEE ()P
UMD REANE
THRERER TFAERE
EREEZRITEBRRE
HRHHBRAFESD -

(vi) Distributability of reserves (vi) (BRI REE

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount WZZE_ZHF+_H
of reserves (including share premium and —+—H 8a#H9IkT
retained profits) available for distribution to equity KABlREFH AW GE
shareholders of the Company was approximately B (BRERMEEKRRF
RMB1,372,327,000 (2019: approximately Baf) BESNAR
RMB1,287,535,000). #4,372,327,0007T (Z—

T —hhFE I HOARKE
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 28 B& (EERBE (&

(e) Capital management

(e) BEXEHE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for its shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure with reference
to its debt position. The Group’s strategy is to maintain
the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure
there are adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
34.6% at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
approximately 48.2%).

AEEEEEANEZERS
REXREEFEEENES
EBRERBKFAHERER
URUAGENARSRE &
18 7 IR ER T 2R B3R e A Hfh
mFA AH R o

FEBBEHRERERREER
BERRE UHFIFMEES K
FTHERTAIEBRNESR
REOFmAEFRBE AR T
WRhkZE2ZEEFTE I
BREEHEBERNEEHRESE
AIRAE ©

AEEL2BEBRBERKRER
BAEE AEBNKE IR
FRGDHEENEE T ®
RERHEEESHZHERK -
RZEZEF+H=+—
A AEENERASELEXL
A34.6% (ZE—HNE+_A
=+—B8 :448.2%)
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SHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 _ZE_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

29 TRIEREEKRATE

FEENRHEXEBBRRETELEEFEE R
HEZ MEREEER - TXHRAEE
EEHBZFRBRHNR IR AEREE
ZERABRBNEMEAREERRR
18

(@) FEER

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents, other financial assets and derivative
financial assets is limited because the counterparties are
banks, for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

The Group does not provide financial guarantee which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2020, certain amounts
of sales were related directly to the related parties (note
31(b)).

The management considers that related parties are
under significant influence of the Group’s Controlling
Shareholder, hence no material credit risk exists on sales
to related companies.

320 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

SERBEXZHFRERTHS
NEZMEAEEELEVBERN
B - AEENEERREEZRE
REHREAMMBUTRIE A EEEF
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A HFEERRMEE

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@ EERAMR #&)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of
the reporting period, approximately 20.57% (2019:
approximately 37.20%) and approximately 84.22%
(2019: approximately 93.16%) of the total trade and bills
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

B S REMEWRKE (1)

AEEEZZEERRNEETES
BEEMIEE P EEMMETENE
XMENFEFE HEERKRS
EEFFEAAERZTSTEAME
MELEBEREE REREHER
B 5 R IE K e R 4R 589 49
20.57% (ZE—NF : #37.20%)
R#84.22% (ZE—NLE ' H
93.16%) D RIEWBREEBRAK
ERAEAREE-

R EEFHEMEERBERME
HEFEENE LA MIT LLET G
HEFBENNBMREHEEE A
HIREE TEEEESEEN
REMBERREMBRQCERIEN
BN -BREEFEERNHEEH
FARE30ZE90H M B A - 45 BR A HAG
BAEMNEHEARERITEEEAE
—SNEEBZ A& BB KBRS
BRo—MMEs  AEEBFABEER
WeERIE AR R o

FEBBHEERERBAREREHA
LR (RERERESE) RTEE
ZRWREBEER EHAEEN
BEEEBBEERRAARTIER
FRSMEEREZRENEGRIEE

RERREAENBEEELIATE
FEBIRSFEBE-—TED -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RIEMSEERATE &
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (@ EERMRE #&)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

The Group derecognised bills receivable when it
transferred bank acceptance bills to suppliers through
endorsement. Bill holders in due course preserve right
of recourse against the Group in case of dishonor of
the bills. As at the year ended 31 December 2020,
the outstanding bills endorsed with recourse totaled
approximately RMB965,000 (2019: approximately
RMB15,164,000), which represents the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. All of these bills are due within
one year.

The Group only accepts bank acceptance bills issued
by major banks or banks with qualified rating in the
PRC and thus considers that the credit risk associated
with such bank acceptance bills to be insignificant. The
Group had not suffered any losses in this respect during
the year.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables:

ESRAMEKKE (#

REBMPUSEHAERIFITER
EETYHEBRKLILLBIRRE
BomMEHREEM MEEFEA
BEEEHAERNBRE-HE
TECEF+_HBA=+—HL®E
B MER#EBEZERNAEER
ZERSHEABHNARE65,0007T (Z
E—NF  HAE¥15,164,000
) ERRAEEEENEER
o sz EERIIN—F AR o

AEEERMPEE ERITHAR
BRMIETHANRTARRE
A ARlZFRTERREER
NEERBIEARER - FR K&
B A E R AR

TEREH A EE@EREE RO
NERKREZEWRIBENTEEEE
548 ¢

2020
—EZEE

Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

TREARS R IRE4aE EiE R

RMB’000 RMB’000

% AREFT AREFT

Current (not past due) BNHR (k@R 0.01% 3,393,759 (270)

1 - 90 days past due #E1E0H 1.00% 7,042 (70)

91 - 180 days past due #HAI91E180H N/A RiEH - -

181 - 365 days past due #HA181E365H N/A R - -

More than 1 year past due BB 1E 100.00% 1,250 (1,250)

3,402,051 (1,590)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERAKE &)
Trade and other receivables (continued) EBESRBMENKEIE (&
2019
“E-NE
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
A RmARE bt
RMB’000 RMB’000

% ARET T ARET T

Current (not past due) BIER (R 0.00% 4,776,699 -
1 - 90 days past due wmHEF1E90H 0.00% 225 -
91 - 180 days past due #HA91E180H 6.01% 566 (34)
181 - 365 days past due AHA181E365H 23.53% 391 (92)
More than 1 year past due ~ #AIHBBE1F 100.00% 1,171 (1,171)
4,779,052 (1,297)
The Group keeps assessing the expected loss rates AEBRBEBEIFEEERER
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience B (EHERABTCRERETHEE)
over the past years, adjusted for factors that are specific RPRERIBETERFERINRS A
to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current FE B A R TERBRELEIE R
and forecast general economic conditions at the end > HIEAASEERETHET G-
of the reporting period over the expected lives of the
receivables.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented EeEERRAGREVBENRTIERA
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the FrMEENRBEME

consolidated statement of financial position.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values

(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Group
are carried at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow and all the non-
interest bearing financial liabilities are with maturities
within one year or repayable on demand as at 31
December 2020.
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) THBHEEEK &)
The following tables show the remaining scheduled TRIRAEBRIREBREEDN
maturities at the end of reporting period of the Group’s REEREESHRENSHERS (B
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual BENNESg WBEER) BER
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments REHRBTHONERAENN EN
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on ) B THTEEE TS -

rates current at the end of the reporting period):

Total
contractual
undiscounted More than More than
cash flow/ 1 year but 2 years but
within 1 year less than less than Carrying
or on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
BHRER
Renews/ BiB—F BBRE
—FERHEEKR BORmE BLOREE st REE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETT ARET T ARETT ARET T

Bank borrowings RITEN 1,119,672 163,732 - 1,283,404 1,263,232
Lease Liabilities HE&R 26,363 17,402 2,981 46,746 44,864
Trade and other payables  E 7 REMERFIE 6,013,472 - - 6,013,742 6,013,472
At 31 December 2020 RIZEZZE

+-A=+-H 7,159,507 181,134 2,981 7,343,622 7,321,568
Bank borrowings RITER 1,293,400 1,155 50,974 1,354,529 1,328,785
Lease Liabilities HE&RE 23,815 18,700 14,393 56,908 54,141
Trade and other payables &7 R EMERHIE 5,934,662 - - 5,934,662 5,934,662
At 31 December 2019 RIZE—hE&E

+ZB=+—- 7,251,877 19,855 74,367 7,346,099 7,317,588
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29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank borrowings and lease
liabilities. As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019, the Group does not obtain any bank borrowings at
variable interest rates. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Details
of the interest rates and terms of bank borrowings are
disclosed separately in note 20.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
bank borrowings, and sales and purchases which give
rise to loan balances, cash balances, receivables, and
payables that are denominated in a foreign currency,
i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and
RMB.
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REME (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk () EiEmEpEAE
The following table details the Group’s major TRV AEFNRRHEHE
exposure at the end of each reporting period to FASHNTIEEKEAR %%
currency risk arising from recognised assets and SRS EEEREERE
liabilities denominated in a currency other than SUEHEAERNANEBRNINAE
the functional currency of the Group to which they ERMNINNERSTEMmMES
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of MEREWMS > AEFEZE LA
the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated R R o I U RIRERRD
using the spot rate at the end of each reporting BNEAE =R E o
period.
usb RMB
e N
2020 2020
~%-% : —g-%f
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETR AEBTFR
Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY 196,386 91,931 147,282 1,073
Trade and other receivables B 7 K H U FIE 797,884 170,766 283,322 22,746
Trade and other payables &5 R E I FIAE (1,655,115) (1,596,754) (387,568) (52,367)
Bank loans and borrowings $R{TE R ER (391,037) (425,548) - -
Gross exposure to BT EREEEE
currency risk (1,051,882) (1,759,605) (216,964) (28,548)
Notional amounts of EXITETAN
exchange rate derivatives #%ELH 802,072 1,700,100 - -
- Forward contracts —-zEEY 267,030 1,112,704 - -
- Option contracts —-HEaY 535,042 587,396 - -
Net exposure to EREBARTE
currency risk (249,810) (59,505) (216,964) (28,548)

20205 4 ESRE (@) AR 327



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
éﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁi

31 December 2020 —E_ZFF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (% HEIERRIN > UAREESIR)

20 TRIEGEERRATE @)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)

d) EBER &)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis

(i) SRESH
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRIFVNEAERGRRBER
(B fR& T A) K B £ & B
e H AR n (M A= M
P 3 1 45 £5 S SR IR R SR 8%

change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to

which the Group has significant exposure at the end A mETERAR  RE
of the reporting period had changed at that date, FFrEEMRASEERIFAE)
assuming all other risk variables remained constant. BB sk Ef o
2020 2019
—E°%F “E-NE
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) S8 (decrease) Effect
in foreign  Effect on on other [EEIR{OEIO! Effect on on other
exchange profit component [EESTEIENILE profit - component

rates aftertax  of equity rates after tax of equity

SMEER Higs Y= HikEm

Lt/ HERE HthEo tH/ %‘JW% A

(Fr) &EARE v (T  &RZ2 T

% RMB’000 RMB’000 % RMB’000  RMB’000

AEBTR ARBTR AEEFT ARETFR

usD ETT 5 (7,349) - 5 (2,261) -
(5) 7,349 - (5) 2,261 -

RMB AR 5 (9,058) - 5 (1,191) -
(5) 9,058 - (5) 1,191 -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(d) EBER &)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (i) HREZH )

Results of the analysis above represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling
as at the end of the respective reporting periods for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency at the end of the respective reporting
periods, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis
for 2019.

LMD ITERBE T ~EE
DERATsE E R 5t BRI E
it ) Be R B2 ian A1) BY B B %2 &8
BRFEUSREPRNIRT
BERBES AR UHET]
ZRe

EHBRE DT THRE& NS E

BN SR SRR ERER
HESNERENEMIE &
BAREERREEENRIER
FEWRIR ARRIENERA
HERADEEE UG
SI{E - DAL A B EIE SN
BMBRRZBBEERZY
ERELNER - DMHLUA
“E-NEFHRNEEET
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RIEMSEERATE &

(continued)
(e) Fair value (e) A¥1{E
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BAFEFEREHTA

The following table presents the fair value of the TREIXAEFRSHR TEHNA
Group’s financial instruments measured at the FEZESTARRESE
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, R EEREESH S WHLE
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy AERI TSR E R FE135E A
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. THEEAEMAEHN =HAFE(E
The level into which a fair value measurement BN EAENENE
is classified is determined with reference to the BT REY T HE S EFTA
observability and significance of the inputs used in HMABENERYEREEY
the valuation technique as follows: BET:
e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using o EMRIGE:EEBEEHR

only Level 1 inputs i.e. Unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using o
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using °
significant unobservable inputs
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMEBERAFE (&
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued) (e) AFEE (B

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BRAFEFENZHTA (2)
(continueq)
The Group has a team headed by the chief financial AEBMEBE—BAHPBERETE
officer performing valuations for the financial NEKHemITE (B1FE 948
instruments, including foreign currency option ERNTEFHRFPER2OINE
contracts and foreign currency forward contracts HESHRINEERSH) &
which are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value THE ZEBEEZEEITHRE
hierarchy. The team reports directly to the chief BT N B RS HRRERM
executive officer. A valuation report with analysis of BATEEEFHONMEE
changes in fair value measurement is prepared at WS MHMBEEERKLI
the end of each reporting period, and is reviewed /o

and approved by the chief financial officer.

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
R_EZEE+A=Z+—HNATHESEDES

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—EIFF =R E#R2 B3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Assets: BE:
Other financial assets HitepEE 100,000 - 100,000 -
Liabilities: af:
Derivative financial liabilites ~ $T4 8 &E
- Foreign currency option —SMNEHBREEH
contracts (47,302) - (47,302) -
— Foreign currency forward —SNEERREH
contracts (975) - (975) -
(48,277) - (48,277) -
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RIEMSEERATE &

(continued)
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) A¥F1E (&)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () ERAFEIIKHZHIA (&)
(continueq)
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2019 categorised into
RIE-—NE+ZA=+—HNATEHENES
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
“E-NE B4R E4R2 2R3
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AEEFT
Assets: BE .

Derivative financial assets T4 & FEE
- Foreign currency option ~ —/MNEEREA 4

contracts 26,472 - 26,472 -
Liabilities: afE:
Derivative financial liabilities #74£ £ R & &
- Foreign currency forward  — MEREAH
contracts (9,142) - (9,142) -
The fair value of other financial assets in Level 2 BihozHMEMEEZAF
is determined using discounted cash flow models. BNhEAWRRRSREEE
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant EoMERZMIRETRAN
government yield curve as at the end of each EWREHHRVIEEBATEEH
reporting period plus an adequate constant credit BENMTERRENEERE.
spread.
The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts N ERBEAINAFE
in Level 2 is determined by using the forward JhiEBRAREEERIREAER
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period BE wEASHEXRELL &
and comparing to the contractual rates, with the FriSEBEMIRERRIEE

resulting value discounted back to the present
value.
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31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&5 A &R UAREFIR)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REMSERERATE &)
(continued)

(e) Fair value (continued) (e) A¥F1{E (&)
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value () BERTFEIKNEH#TR (B)
(continueq)
The fair value of foreign exchange option contracts RoINEHRE SN A FE
in Level 2 is determined by using the Black- AR NDR TR —=EE
Scholes-Merton model. The observable inputs for HET HENTEHZEE AH
valuation were described in note 17. BEERMEE1T7
(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (i) IR FEIRNEMEE
carried at other than fair value REEHATFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 7R £ B ¥l AN 2 8 A AN A BR
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are NEmTANREERER
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 ETEF+RA=+—HKZ
December 2020 and 31 December 2019. Z—NFEF+ZA=+—HHR
FEUMMEARER o
30 Commitments 30 AiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not R_B_TFEF+_HA=+t—HHX
A = \
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: _EEE B BA 35 ¥R 3R M M 5T R B A Y
BARKENT

2020 2019
—EZE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR#F T

Contracted for [SEES 251,861 386,731
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31 Material related party transactions

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following significant related party transactions:

Name of related parties

R B 75 0 8

31 EXRME R

PRe% 5 M F5 IR R EL M BB 9 P 452 B8 Y RAT gk
HERS AEBIL U TEREABS
X5

Relationship with the Group
EAREERF

— CK Telecom Limited (“Heyuan CK”)*
(‘ERBERMRE TR BRAE")

—ARBERMRE (AR BRAR (HARER)

— Van Telecom Limited (“Van Telecom PRC”)
(‘MELZRELFRAE)

—MZREERAR (LR AR

— Chengdu CK Technology Limited* (“Chengdu CK”)
(‘PLESTER R B R R E))

—REFEA BB RAT (TREFE R )

— C-Flex Electronic (Huangshi) Ltd.*(“Huangshi C-Flex)
(BAAEEFREBRERT)

—BOREEFREAERARS (EAAEE)

— Kunshan KEIRAKU Precision Industrial Company Limited*
(“Kunshan KEIRAKU") (‘BB EBERE TEBRRE)

—BULERZEETERRAD (ELEL)

— Heyuan Youhua Micro Electronic Technology Company
Limited* (“Heyuan Youhua”)
(TRREMEERRARAR")

—ARREMEERRBRAD (DARAZE))

— Dongguan Xinxu Optical Limited* (“Dongguan Xinxu”)
(‘"REMBEAZERRE)

—REMBABERAE (MREHE)

* The English translation of the companies’ names is for reference
only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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31 December 2020 _Z_ZEF+_H=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

31 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Company’s directors.

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 6 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 7, is as
follows:

Short-term employee benefits R ERA
Post-employment benefits BB ER
Equity compensation benefits e ERN

The above remuneration to key management personnel
is included in “staff costs” (note 4(b)).

31 EXAMAERS @&

() TEESEASHM

TEEEABERTIERNBRE
BERE EEREFAERTHN
RAESEZEBBHOAL &
NEEF-

rEBTEZEEASHFNSESH
KRBESE (MM E6FTIKRE) k&
TREHMNES (W7 R ER)
AL

2020 2019
I ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
INLESN AE%TR
13,046 10,709

83 145

5,841 402
18,970 11,256

FHFESEASHFMENET
A (MIsE4(b)) ©
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31 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

31 EXHBERS (B

(b) ERAERA RS

2020 2019
“EIEF —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT

Sales of products to EmET
- Heyuan CK —AREEA] 4,171 12,117

Purchases of products from EnER
— Huangshi C-Flex —=AAE 138,177 101,962
— Kunshan KEIRAKU — B E% - 82
— Heyuan Youhua —AR R EE 124,007 110,749
- Dongguan Xinxu —HEHB 71,070 39,877
333,254 252,670
2020 2019
—EEH ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBFTT

Rental expenses to SRHEREF

— Chengdu CK — R EREE A - 55
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31 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(c) Balances with related parties

BHMBEHRRME

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (&3 BI5EIN > UARIEFIT)

At 31 December 2020, the Group had the following

balances with related parties.

(i) Due from related parties

31 EXAMAERS @&

(c) EBLRAEGTSASER

R_E_TF+"/A=+—H'%&
EEAR S B LU TSR

() BB

2020 2019
—ECEHE —E—NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Trade-related =RZY L
Trade receivables B 52 FEWRIE
— Heyuan CK —ALRA A 1,263 7,479
(i) Due to related parties (i) FETEIB A
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Trade-related =R Y]
Trade and bills payable B EMRIBRENRE
— Huangshi C-Flex —=AAE 13,691 3,794
— Heyuan Youhua —AR R EE 1,739 12,567
— Dongguan Xinxu —EREHE 16,769 8,006
32,199 24,367
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31 Material related party transactions 31 EXEBMAERS &)
(continued)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) HiRAEE A 45ER (2
(i) Due to related parties (continued) (i) TR (&
The amounts due from/to related parties as at 31 RN_E-_EFEF+_F=+—H
December 2020 and 31 December 2019 were E_E—HAEFE+ZB= —|— —
expected to be recovered/repaid within one year. H o FEW e BB 5 2 I8

BN —FRRE EE-

2020 2019
—ECER —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
Lease liabilities (Note) HE&R (W)
- Van Telecom PRC —MEZ R 11,472 3,104
Notes: The Group entered into leases in respect of Mizk . AEBE T AE S HRBE B
certain leasehold properties from its related H (MR RE) B
party (Van Telecom PRC), with lease terms of EFHEHEYXESTIME
2~3 years. During the year, the amounts of X FHEAMBE=4fF o
rent paid by the Group under the lease to its FR > AEBRREHELY
related parties were RMB5,162,000 (2019: BENEBEMANEESS
RMB3,192,000). The Group has recognised 284 AR 5,162,0007T
right-of-use asset and lease liabilities relating to —ET—HE AR
the lease arrangement. 3,192, OOOjT:) o AREH
[ ‘E*EFEF@
MEREEEREER
‘e
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31 Material related party transactions 31 EXEAMAERS @)
(continued)

(d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (d) BIFERAERXZEMAN TR

continuing connected transactions

The transactions in relation to sales of products to
Heyuan CK, purchases of products from Kunshan
KEIRAKU, Heyuan Youhua and Huangshi C-Flex as
disclosed above constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in the sections headed
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected

ApE A

LRI EE 2 B A AR 7 Al
?ﬁ’i}éuu‘rﬂtbmu“ /_J/}_
RERBOAEEEERNR
SEREAMERZMBREA
—%%tﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁWD
FBUUAEMEENBEER S N
FEBERZ - LmHKRASE
UAEFMREZIREHNES
ﬁﬁir%L 25 K TR R
B IEMo

Transactions” of the Directors Report.

32 Company level statement of financial

32 AT EEMFHRRR

position
2020 2019
“ECEHF —E-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARBT T AREFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KERE AT 157,711 127,545
Investments in associate KEBRE AT 275,236 275,236
Amount due from a subsidiary & U — 1 B A 5 718 522,017 558,123
954,964 960,904

Current assets REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary & U — Bk B A B =R I8 631,184 603,524
Cash and cash equivalents BeERIBEEEY 1,709 2,075
632,893 605,599

Current liabilities ik =R
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN A 124 8,185
Amount due to a subsidiary B —EH B AR HRIE 158,976 157,299
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32 Company level statement of financial 32 RNEIBREMERRAR &)
position (continued)

2020 2019
—ECEHF —B—-hE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR¥F T AREFT
159,100 165,484
Net current assets REEEFE 473,793 440,115
Total assets less current HEERRBHEE
liabilities 1,428,757 1,401,019
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARRGEE
Share capital A& 7 28(c) 9,383 9,248
Reserves E1E 28(a) 1,419,374 1,391,771
TOTAL EQUITY ke 1,428,757 1,401,019
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors EFERBE_—F=ZRAZ+N
on 26 March 2021. HiZ &5 a] )25 o
He Ningnin AEE
gning Directors o 55
Hu Sanmu =K
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5B BTSN UAREEZITR)

33 Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
these financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 1. The Group believes the following
critical accounting policies involve the most significant
judgements and estimates used in the preparation of these

financial statements.
(a) Loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the
use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the end of reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
keeps assessing the expected credit loss of trade
receivables during their expected lives.

33 EARGsHE st R FIER

st RAEE LR RAEMAR (B1F
HEERB IS ASBHRREHNEE
TRER) HEERET G-

SRR HRNEER FEZSHRE
FABY ) i e E A S BARR A 3= LUK P 2 3
FEBRFRERBRREFNHRAEIRE
R EMBRREFAERNAR T2
GEFBREIINMIEE - AEEBE U
TESETHAHRIRBRIEFHHFRE
P A B B 7 B 2 AV i S (& 5t o

(a) BEZBWRIANEGERERE

AERBBHERRAEEBIBMES
BRERENBERE -BEFE
BRI R - FRHREEEET
REAEENBEEERBELR
MEBRREFANARIFHZAER
RBERREER R FBHERE
HEAR SRR BISTE IS o i fh 5T &2
Nt HIRERE BEREERE

EE S RURIENREE Bt
ERfL st AERESGES LIRE
8 o AEEGETRMMRA BT
HEZERIRIENTAREERKIE
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33 EAG st KR FIER (&)

33 Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b) Net realisable value of inventories

()

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products with similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer
preferences and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss
may be recognised in profit or loss. The carrying
amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgment relating to level of
sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales
revenue and amount of operating costs.

34 2 Q Technology (Group) Company Limited Annual Report 2020

(b) FENATEFFE

(c)

FENAEFEFEDNNAEERB
Rt EER G AR A
RETIHEMBNMG AT -ZF
et ER B H R RSB MIE
HERNBEER HAERAZR
RENES RHRFHFHHRET
FEARDNTHIMERERE
E-BEERZ RS IHAREMFE
ZEMEte

ME - BB KRR ERE

B REREENREEEEE
Wl RIZBEERRERARS B
B WA EEm PR EER-
EENREESTEHETER X
SHERWEEMESE FTHREMRRN
FREE EFHREREHBETRZ
FHEEMNGCHRA BN EEARE
K AMEEGETREN H
BIRERTE BREEGAETI
Bl

BJ Uy (o] BB 2% A B R Al A £
ERAEBEMETNRSE -TEE
EREBEER EEEENRRRE
REGHREERE MEFEY
HERE HEWAREEMAIFL
B ORHI B o A< S B 1 7 e B2 P R[]
THEEENGERERERAME
PHERANER SEREEHE
BAHEWRARKEREANGER
B LAEE 15 32 i BV R ER AN FER F LH A9
fli5te
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are based on the Group’s historical
experience with similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and
amortisation expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Impacts of COVID-19 pandemic

The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 has brought
additional uncertainties in the macroeconomic situation. As
of the date of the 2020 annual results announcement of
the Company, the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the
Group’s operation in 2021 was insignificant. The production
and operation of the Group’s manufacturing base in India has
resumed normal.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

As at 31 December 2020, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party of the Group to be QT Investment,
which is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Group to be Mr. He Ningning.

ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁi@lﬁﬁi

31 December 2020 —_E_ZEF+_A=+—H
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33

34

35

EXGsHAF RAE @&

(d) ITERI#H

ME-BFEk&ETES R
SHRERUBRENEMGEEH
ERFHRITE-BLEENE
MOER E LSt Rl £ B F A
HoAEBEENEREEND
StRIERER UBEREW
w5 B A A0 Bk BY T EE K H8H
At ERFHRBRE
AEENEUEENBEL
%fﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁm&m*ﬁ@

E %X%%%ﬁ%&%%ﬁ
SAEERFHE-

MAERKESERZEE

:%:%Emtmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%
BEEHRERBIRIESRKEINTE
AR - BEARBEM_ZE-Z
FEXGBREZHIE ﬁ@ﬂ#ﬁ
FBREHAER ST —FWNE

FEWAEE- K%lmF%Lﬁ
M EERESEEMELES-

ERR&EERT

MoB-SE+-A=+—H0E
FRATEENERERSBRR
BELHSERALNEHEE
1 2 S B 60 SR AR AR 5 23 T R 58
Ho
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, IFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

SBHEE_E_ZTF+=-A

=+—HLEFECEMER
RERBIEST ~ WsT Z# R K
RRENAEERE

RERSUBRRNUAN BB
AR EIEMHS BT R—EN T8
ERMBRSEABITRRREH B
KEE-S-FFE+-A=t+—BLE
M RER MRS R B RE LR
Mo mERREELU T AR A% EIE
-

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
R BN ZERKBE
SEHEIREX

Amendments to IFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework
B R B 75 R S R BI SB35 (1B5TA) » S AEZE 2 18t
Amendments to IAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment:

1 January 2022
2 F—A—H
1 January 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
Bl & st ERF165 (BeIX) ¥FE BERRKE
TE#EE FF#R A1 2 AT fg 7k B

Amendments to IAS 37, Onerous Contracts

2 "HF#—HF—H

1 January 2022
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

BIFR G 5 ZERISE375E (BEIAR) » BRI 84— BT E A2 A 2 F—F—H

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

BT BREEN S \FE_ S SFERFENE —E-f—-H-—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what RNREB FTIEZELERENERIER
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the ,HH BB ERNTESRE EoizSKE
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the B8 S T aZ#ﬁ/*}E%‘JA
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on 1# ﬁa‘?“%&%%;_}ﬂz%ﬁ(%% Pl EEE
the consolidated financial statements. Ko
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